          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          8

             -------------------------------x

          9

         10                 November 12, 2002

                            Start:  11:23 a.m.

         11                 Recess: 5:28 p.m.

         12                 City Hall

                            Council Chamber

         13                 New York, New York

         14

                  B E F O R E:

         15

                         CHRISTINE QUINN

         16                                Chairperson,

         17

                         COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Philip Reed

         18                                 Helen Sears

                                            Kendall Stewart

         19                                 James Oddo

                                            Hiram Monserrate

         20                                 Simcha Felder

                                            Michael McMAHON

         21                                 James Sanders

                                            Eric Gioia

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Gregory N. Connolly, D.M.D., M.P.H.

          4  Director

             Massachusetts Tobacco Control Program

          5

             Jane Fisher

          6

             Alex Munter

          7  Chair, City of Ottawa Health Committee

             Ottawa City Council

          8

             Jeremy Bohen

          9  Houston's Bar

         10  Rob Ritacco

             First Edition Sports Bistro

         11

             Robert Bookman

         12  New York Nightlife Association

         13  David Rabin

             Lotus

         14

             Joe Gillespie

         15

             Chris Norwood

         16  Healthforce: Community Preventive

             Health Institute

         17

             Charles G. Wolf

         18  BAMRA

         19  Michael O'Neal

         20  Susan O'Brien

             NY Committee for Occupational Safety and Health

         21

             Carrie Sunday

         22

             Ahcene Boukenken

         23

             D.J. Wilson

         24  Massachusetts Municipal Association

         25

                                                            3

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Peter Grayson

          4  Freshway Air

          5  Paige Lampkin

          6  Marisol Chioney

          7  John Mulvey

          8  Brian Rohan

             United Restaurant

          9  And Liquor Dealers Association

         10  Jessica Heald

         11  Peter Slocom

             American Cancer Society

         12

             Joe Weaver

         13

             Joel Wachs

         14

             Adam Sandler

         15  Bingo Operators

         16  Audrey Silk

             NYC CLASH

         17

             Jody Rudin

         18  Housing Works, Inc.

         19  Emmett Irwin

         20  James Miller

         21  David Lennon

         22  Richard Christie

             Brooklyn/Queens Restaurant Association

         23

             J.C. Arnwine

         24  New York Bowling Association

         25

                                                            4

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Michael Stuto

          4

             Eileen Weiss

          5

             Henry J. Stern

          6  New York Civic

          7  Russell Sciandra

             Center for a Tobacco Free New York

          8

             Julia V. Murry

          9

             Robert Swinton

         10

             Frank Barnes

         11

             Darrell G. Sukhdeo

         12  American Cancer Society

             Agenda 21

         13

             Jean Ouyang

         14

             Harold Kramer

         15  Raven Bar

         16  Wade Farthing

             Fitzpatrick Grand Central Hotel

         17  Joseph Dobrian

         18  Paul Chesik

         19  Iisup Kim

             Coalition for a Smoke-Free City

         20

             Kai Wang

         21

             Patrick Kelly

         22

             Mimi Burnham

         23  Jefferson Democratic Club

         24  Stephen Helfer

         25

                                                            5

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Mariella Moser

          4

             Bernadette Lin

          5

             Theresa Cassiack

          6  New York Public Interest Research Group

          7  Sarah Porter

             Friends of the Northside

          8

             Gene McKenna

          9  Bronx Restaurant and Tavern Association

         10  Dan Kelly

         11  John Seirup

             Sierra Club

         12

             Richard Toes

         13

             Ann Arlen

         14  Community Board No. 2, Manhattan

         15  Josephine Chung

         16  Melanie Smith

             South Bronx Concerned Citizens

         17

             Jade Mandrake

         18

             Anita Thacher

         19

             Peter Koo

         20  Asian Tobacco Control Task Force

         21  Alex Stavis

         22  Frank A. Cvervo

         23  Jay R. Schrand

         24  Albert Hsu

             Asian Pacific American Medical Student Association

         25

                                                            6

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Nancy Rodriguez

          4

             Carrie Lu

          5  Asian Tobacco Control Task Force

          6  Phil Konigsberg

             Smoke Free Educational Services

          7

             Alison Jolicoeur

          8

             Beatrice Dupont

          9

             Geoff Geringer

         10

             Candida Bido

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Good morning. My

          3  name is Christine Quinn. I'm the Chair of the City

          4  Council's Health Committee. I want to sincerely

          5  apologize for keeping everyone waiting. We have

          6  actually scheduled this hearing for 11:00 instead of

          7  10:00, in which we typically start hearings, in the

          8  hope that we would not have had to start late. Today

          9  is, for one of those schedule reasons, a jam-packed

         10  day. Our Land Use Subcommittees are meeting today,

         11  in the room next door the Transportation Committee

         12  is hearing proposals also introduced by Mayor

         13  Bloomberg regarding tort reform.

         14                 So, some of the Health Committee

         15  members were in Transportation and needed to ask

         16  some questions. Now we're able to start. People will

         17  be coming in and out. Council Member Sears is asking

         18  questions now and will be in in a minute, and

         19  Council Member Reed is on his way from across the

         20  street from a Land Use Subcommittee. And I'm joined

         21  by the Minority Leader of the City Council, a member

         22  of the Health Committee, Jimmy Oddo.

         23                 This is the Council's, as many of you

         24  may know, second hearing on Mayor Bloomberg's

         25  proposed Clean Indoor Air Act.
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          2                 We're going to be hearing testimony

          3  for the second time on the bill today. You might

          4  remember, any of you who were here at the first

          5  hearing, that hearing was most of, we went from

          6  about one until eight or so that day. All but two

          7  and a half hours or so of that hearing were

          8  prescheduled panels.

          9                 Today's hearing is going to be more

         10  time set aside for general public testimony. We are

         11  going to start, though, with a couple of three pro

         12  panels, three con panels, and then move to general

         13  witnesses who have filled out slips.

         14                 I just want to again emphasize, if

         15  you want to testify, whether you're on a panel or

         16  not, please fill out a slip, you can see the

         17  Sergeant over there. It is most important that you

         18  check in favor or opposition, or if you come without

         19  a position, which I somehow doubt, note that on the

         20  slip as well.

         21                 If your slip doesn't note a position

         22  then we'll put all of those to the side and we'll

         23  call those people at the end.

         24                 So, please note that if you've

         25  already filled out a slip and didn't note it, go get
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          2  another one and we will replace that.

          3                 We're going to give all witnesses

          4  three minutes to testify, and try to allow each

          5  member, you know, one or two questions like we did

          6  at the first hearing.

          7                 Okay, with that, I'm going to call

          8  our first panel.

          9                 Jane Fisher, Jeremy Bohen, Alex

         10  Munter, Dr. Gregory Connolly and Bob Ritacco.

         11                 I just want to announce that they

         12  will be followed, so folks could be on deck, if you

         13  will, by Joe Gillespie, Chris Norwood, Robert

         14  Bookman, David Rabin, and Charles Wolf. So, that's

         15  the second panel, just be ready for folks after

         16  these folks start.

         17                 And you can go in whatever order you

         18  want. For all witnesses, please identify yourself

         19  before you begin speaking.

         20                 I just want to state, I'm sorry, I

         21  should have said this. Since the Mayor and the

         22  Health Commissioner spoke at the first hearing, they

         23  are not going to be testifying today. We do have a

         24  representative from the Department of Health with us

         25  today. There will be representatives from the
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          2  Department of Health throughout the entirety of the

          3  hearing, and I can attest, I work with these folks

          4  in a number of different hearings, they actually

          5  give sometimes more detailed reports to go back than

          6  maybe somebody would have heard if they were

          7  actually here listening themselves, if you know what

          8  I mean. So, people should rest assured that their

          9  comments will be conveyed back, as well as the

         10  written. We will forward, you know, a written

         11  transcript to the Department as well.

         12                 That said, we've been joined by

         13  Council Member Sears, who is a member of the Health

         14  Committee from Queens, and whatever order you'd like

         15  to go in.

         16                 MR. BOHEN: Good morning, members of

         17  the Health Committee. My name is Jeremy Bohen, and I

         18  live at 67 Thompson Street in Manhattan.

         19                 I'm a constituent of the Chairwoman

         20  and I thank her for allowing me to testify today.

         21                 I was born and raised in the St.

         22  George section of Staten Island, and I have been a

         23  bartender in Manhattan for the past seven years of

         24  my life.

         25                 I currently work at the Houston's

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  Restaurant at 27th Street and Park Avenue South, as

          3  a member of the bar staff there, and today I

          4  represent the entire bar staff, all 22 members, and

          5  we are unanimous in support of the passage of this

          6  bill as written.

          7                 And the reason that I so strongly

          8  support this bill, is because I feel that the bill

          9  addresses issues of my rights as a worker in the

         10  City of New York, and I feel that I am being

         11  discriminated against today because of my

         12  occupation.

         13                 The same rights to a smoke-free

         14  workplace and a healthy workplace that are

         15  guaranteed to virtually all other workers in the

         16  City of New York are denied to me because I happen

         17  to work in a bar or restaurant.

         18                 If this discrimination was going on

         19  in New York City, because of my race, my religion,

         20  my cultural background, my sex or my sexual

         21  orientation, we wouldn't even have a debate,

         22  everyone in this room would be outraged, and this

         23  bill would be passed, I feel, without debate.

         24                 Over my seven years as a bartender,

         25  secondhand smoke has been a nuisance and an
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          2  annoyance to me, but until recently I wasn't aware

          3  of the real health dangers that I face every day

          4  when I go to my job, and in the last couple months

          5  I've become very well educated on the health effects

          6  of secondhand smoke, and I've also come to know a

          7  lot of fellow bartenders and restaurant workers, for

          8  whom it hasn't just been a nuisance up til now.

          9  Their health and their lives have been affected a

         10  great deal, and you're going to hear from some of

         11  them today.

         12                 As my knowledge grows, my fear of the

         13  long-term effects of my health grows, as does kind

         14  of my shock that the City of New York is such a

         15  progressive community, has not acted sooner to

         16  protect my rights and my health.

         17                 I see this problem now for what it

         18  really is. It's not a nuisance, it's not an

         19  inconvenience, it's a serious health crisis.

         20                 I'd like to add that filtration,

         21  which has been put forward as a solution to this

         22  problem, is ineffective, because even in a

         23  restaurant like the one where I work, with a

         24  state-of-the-art $60,000 filtration system, in

         25  between the cigarettes and the ventilation are my
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          2  lungs. So, my lungs are taking in smoke no matter

          3  the level of filtration.

          4                 In closing, I'd like to say that we,

          5  as New Yorkers, and you as our representatives, have

          6  an opportunity to exert our leadership in a profound

          7  and important way, by ensuring the rights of all

          8  workers in our City, to earn our livings and build

          9  our lives without the fear of the undeniable risks

         10  of secondhand smoke.

         11                 We can better the lives lived in this

         12  City and serve as an example to communities across

         13  the country, by passing Intro. 256 as written.

         14                 Thank you all very, very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Next witness,

         16  please.

         17                 DR. CONNOLLY: My name is Dr. Gregory

         18  Connolly, I'm Director of the Massachusetts Tobacco

         19  Control Program.

         20                 I'm born and raised in Boston, not

         21  from New York City, but I do have to make an

         22  omission that I have two daughters that live in the

         23  City with two grandchildren. My oldest daughter on

         24  9/11 was the chief resident in the Burns Unit at New

         25  York Hospital, worked very hard that week. I am
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          2  sorry to say, though, her salary is paid in large

          3  measure by taking lungs out up at 70th and York,

          4  among New York City residents who suffer from lung

          5  cancer.

          6                 I'm here for both professional and

          7  personal reason. Currently about half of

          8  Massachusetts has banned smoking in restaurants and

          9  bars. When the Boston bar ban goes into effect in

         10  March, the City of Boston, along with 17

         11  communities, have announced a ban similar to New

         12  York City, and the sister cities. We want to see

         13  this City join Boston to make the environment

         14  smoke-free for our restaurant and bar workers.

         15                 We have conducted numerous economic

         16  studies of the impact of those bans on restaurant

         17  and bar business and have found none.

         18                 Boston's survey conducted after their

         19  restaurant ban found no impact whatsoever on

         20  restaurant business. A study of Brookline,

         21  Massachusetts, the ban on smoking in bars found no

         22  impact, nor cross border sales to abutting

         23  communities.

         24                 A state study of 22 communities found

         25  no affect of restaurant and bar bans in the City of
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          2  Boston.

          3                 The two biggest counties that have

          4  restricted smoking, include Suffolk County that's

          5  Boston and Barnstable, Cape Cod, no affect on

          6  tourism. Tourism, in fact, has gone up.

          7                 We also look at health studies. In

          8  our state, restaurant and bar workers have some of

          9  the highest rates of lung cancer of any occupation.

         10  About 50 percent greater when they contribute to

         11  their own smoking behavior.

         12                 And as we ban smoking in restaurants,

         13  we're only concentrating the toxins to the bar

         14  workers. Their risk is becoming greater because of

         15  that.

         16                 We have also looked at the issue does

         17  it cause more noise outside of bars in Martha's

         18  Vineyard. That's gibberish.  That's foolish.

         19                 In Salem, Massachusetts, we found no

         20  evidence whatsoever of increasing noise in the

         21  street. The same is true of other communities.

         22                 I would urge this Committee to

         23  protect the health of the most vulnerable workers in

         24  this City, and that is workers who do not have

         25  health insurance. This is really an issue of equity.
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          2  The workers, if they had health insurance, believe

          3  me, would be working in a smoke-free environment

          4  today.

          5                 You owe it to these workers because

          6  they'll be responsible for paying out of their own

          7  pockets for damages caused by exposure to the

          8  involuntary smoke.

          9                 So, as a public health official, I

         10  urge you to join Boston so we can collectively move

         11  together with similar populations and similar

         12  environments.

         13                 The leadership New York is showing

         14  right now is affecting countries across the world,

         15  such as Greece, Italy and Ireland, where our Health

         16  Department works with Mehole Martin, the Minister of

         17  Health of Ireland, who also is going smoke-free.

         18                 Thank you very much. On behalf of my

         19  two kids, and my two grandchildren, I hope you do

         20  the right thing.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Just so folks

         22  know, if we can contain any clapping or anything. If

         23  folks can't, then what I'll just do is, once the

         24  clapping starts I'm just going to start the clock,

         25  so it will just eat into the side your in agreement
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          2  with, into their time, and I'll do that on both

          3  sides, if there's clapping or cheering or anything

          4  of that sort.

          5                 Thank you. That's assuming I can

          6  figure out how to use the clock. So, it was a bold

          7  statement I may not be able to live up quite to the

          8  nature of, but let's give it a shot.

          9                 Go ahead.

         10                 MR. MUNTER: Madam Chair, my name is

         11  Alex Munter. I'm a City Councilor in the City of

         12  Ottawa. I've been the past 11 years, and Chair the

         13  Committee overseeing public health in our community,

         14  and I bring you greetings from Canada's capital

         15  city.

         16                 Our Committee recommended and City

         17  Council voted 22 to zero to adopt a smoke-free

         18  public places and work places bylaw that went into

         19  effect August 1st, 2001. The reason? Yes, there was

         20  controversy and noise, but the support has grown and

         21  strengthened in our community, because residents

         22  understand the incontrovertible overwhelming health

         23  and scientific evidence about the dangerous effects

         24  of secondhand smoke, that leads to the death of 100

         25  non-smokers a year in our city alone.
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          2                 Public support, that public support,

          3  seven in ten residents has helped enforce the bylaw,

          4  because businesses know that their clientele and

          5  their potential clientele backs the bylaw.

          6                 We started out with 95 percent

          7  compliance, and one year and four months later we're

          8  virtually 100 percent down to four or five

          9  establishments that refuse to comply.

         10                 This has been possible, because the

         11  business community, and in particular, the Ottawa

         12  Restaurant Association supports the bylaw.

         13                 The Ottawa Restaurant Association

         14  supports one level playing field, no loopholes and

         15  exemptions that benefit some businesses at the

         16  expense of others.

         17                 On the issue of business impact, you

         18  know, despite the fact that there has been a turn

         19  down, dramatic turn down in hi-tech and tourism,

         20  which are two of our three biggest industries, we

         21  have seen 123 new and expanded bars and restaurants,

         22  that's in a City one-tenth the size of your City.

         23  The hospitality industry has adapted.

         24                 The bylaw was implemented August

         25  2001, and employment and food and accommodation was
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          2  up 6.5 percent that October, and unemployment claims

          3  in that sector down nine percent.

          4                 And a Pool by the Ottawa Sun, which

          5  is our version of the New York Post, showed that 30

          6  percent of people say they go out more often versus

          7  only 17 percent that go out less.

          8                 Very quickly, just a word on the

          9  weather, and here you and I speak different

         10  languages, you speak Fahrenheit, I speak Celsius,

         11  but trying to do that translation, our average

         12  maximum temperature in January is 21 degrees

         13  Fahrenheit, our minimum is five degrees. We heard

         14  that was too cold. British Columbia they said it was

         15  too rainy. In Arizona they said it was too hot. You

         16  always use the weather as an excuse. This is the

         17  right thing to do.

         18                 And lastly, come and see for

         19  yourself, come and skate on the world's biggest

         20  longest skating rink, come and enjoy the friendly

         21  clean green safe capitol of a friendly clean, green,

         22  safe country.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         24                 MS. FISHER: Hello. My name is Jane

         25  Fisher. I have worked as a cocktail waitress at a
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          2  hotel for nine years now, and I have health

          3  benefits, I have seniority, I have a 401K plan, and

          4  except for the smoke that I inhale in each shift, I

          5  have a fabulous job.

          6                 I not only enjoy my job but I enjoy

          7  my patrons that I wait on, my colleagues, my

          8  employer. This is my career, this is not a side job

          9  for me.

         10                 Unfortunately, my career is making me

         11  sick on a nightly basis, and the cause is totally

         12  preventable. Those who say just find another job

         13  haven't been there. They are totally insensitive to

         14  us who need these jobs, who need this insurance, who

         15  support our families.

         16                 We are dedicated to the hospitality

         17  industry in New York City, and we provide a service,

         18  and why am I not protected like all of the other

         19  workers in New York City? Why am I left out? Why is

         20  my health less important?

         21                 The hotel where I work installed the

         22  most state-of-the-art ventilation system that you

         23  can possibly by. They did negative air studies,

         24  airflow studies, negative pressure ventilation. They

         25  change the filters every three months. My ceilings
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          2  are 22 feet high, and yet I still cannot breathe. It

          3  doesn't clean the air. It doesn't always work. There

          4  are mechanical failures for days on end. There is no

          5  ventilation system, and we have an engineering staff

          6  to fix problems like this, leaving me and my

          7  co-workers with no clean air to breathe.

          8                 On most nights the air is heavily

          9  mixed with both cigar and cigarette smoke. Cigar

         10  smoke hovers at five feet. Right where I'm standing,

         11  breathing over the table. That's why we desperately

         12  need your help. I am regularly sick. I have sinus

         13  infections, burning eyes, I get nosebleeds, I feel

         14  nausea, I have what we call a smoke hangover the

         15  next morning, you wake up coughing and having a hard

         16  time breathing.

         17                 We regularly take breaks to go into

         18  the back where the air is cleaner to breathe. And we

         19  implore you to pass this.

         20                 Also, I've been seeing a fertility

         21  doctor for the last two years, I've been trying to

         22  get pregnant, and I was almost denied treatment

         23  because I am considered a smoker because of the

         24  environment I work in. And I asked my employer if I

         25  could move to another department, a smoke-free
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          2  department and he said that would be fine if I was

          3  willing to take a cut in pay and to lose my senior

          4  position.

          5                 I don't think I should have to be

          6  asked to do these things, to work in a smoke-free

          7  environment. My health is in your hands and I leave

          8  it up to you.

          9                 Please help us.

         10                 MR. RITACCO: Good morning. My name is

         11  Bob Ritacco. My brother Rick and I own and operate

         12  the First Edition Sports Bistro in Bayside, Queens.

         13  Councilman Tony Avella is our representative.

         14                 My grandfather started our small

         15  business way back in 1948, over 50 years ago.

         16  Through hard work we have grown our business, we now

         17  employ almost 50 people. We are not a member of the

         18  New York State Restaurant Association.

         19                 As a restaurant bar owner, I can't

         20  tell you how nervous the proposed smoking ban makes

         21  me feel. After all, most of my patrons are smokers,

         22  and the last thing I want to do is upset a huge part

         23  of my customer base.

         24                 However, it is my understand that the

         25  intent of this legislation is not about the business
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          2  side of my business, but solely about the health

          3  risk of the employees that work for me.

          4                 That's why everything I've been

          5  reading in the newspapers the last few days confuses

          6  me. I can only assume that the City Council is

          7  trying somehow to mitigate the financial impact of

          8  the Mayor's proposed bill by considering granting

          9  exemptions to one or several types of bars.

         10                 However, in the real world these

         11  exemptions would have just the opposite effect. The

         12  Council could not come up with a worst way to make

         13  this bill more harmful to business.

         14                 When it comes down to it, the only

         15  reason for the smoking ban is supposedly to protect

         16  the employee, yet none of these exemptions have

         17  anything to do with the health issue.

         18                 Why should customers be allowed to

         19  smoke in say a cigar bar, like the one right down

         20  the block from me, and not in my neighborhood sports

         21  bar?

         22                 I just don't understand why you would

         23  create a law that would ban smoking in most places

         24  while basically encouraging it in others. It just

         25  doesn't add up.
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          2                 To a small businessman like me, these

          3  proposed exemptions smell like bathroom politics, or

          4  even worse. If the result of this political power

          5  struggle between the Mayor and the City Council is a

          6  final bill that contains exemptions, it will create

          7  an overwhelming uneven playing field in the

          8  marketplace, and will have a disastrous impact on my

          9  business, and on many of the small bars and

         10  restaurants in New York City.

         11                 For instance, if I owned one of the

         12  bars or restaurants chosen for some reason by the

         13  City Council to receive an exemption, I would feel

         14  like I just won, you know, the lottery.

         15                 While on the other hand, if I was

         16  covered by the ban, most of my bar customers, the

         17  majority of which are smokers, would run in a New

         18  York minute to one of the City Council's special

         19  exempted bars.

         20                 I ask you, why should my family's

         21  business be financially harmed by the smoking ban,

         22  while others are rewarded?

         23                 If you and the other City Council

         24  Members are going to pass a smoking bill, it is

         25  imperative that you do not grant special favorable
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          2  treatment to any establishment.

          3                 The financial existence of my

          4  business, and many others, would pend on your

          5  passing a bill --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sir, you need to

          7  wrap up.

          8                 MR. RITACCO: -- That levels the

          9  playing field, a law that applies equally across the

         10  board to all bars and restaurants.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I just want to say

         13  we have been joined by Council Member Hiram

         14  Monserrate from Queens and Council Member Phil Reed

         15  from Manhattan, a member of the Committee.

         16                 If I could just, I'm sorry, Dr.

         17  Connolly, when you say that you have done studies in

         18  Massachusetts of quality of life impacts, and I

         19  think you also said of the economic impact; is that

         20  correct? And also of the health of employees who

         21  work in restaurants and bars where there's smoking

         22  first, and I can just request that copies of those

         23  studies, if they could be forwarded to the Committee

         24  and a member of the staff will give you their card,

         25  to just give the address and stuff, but if you could

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  tell us a little about when the quality of life

          3  study, what that entailed? How did you go about

          4  that, et cetera?

          5                 DR. CONNOLLY: There are two studies

          6  that are quantitative studies looking at economic

          7  impact. We looked at meals, in bar tax payments, by

          8  zip code, we controlled for those communities that

          9  had banned smoking in restaurants or bars, we looked

         10  at that over a period of time and found no impact.

         11  There were three studies.

         12                 Second study, we looked at the cancer

         13  registry data for Massachusetts, and we can sort by

         14  occupation and found elevated risk of lung cancer

         15  among restaurant and bar workers, we controlled for

         16  their smoking behavior, and that couldn't take into

         17  account the elevated risk.

         18                 We have not done a quantitative study

         19  in terms of quality of life, but at the request of

         20  the Coalition, I did call the City of Brookline, the

         21  City of Salem, Massachusetts, Oak Bluffs, and just

         22  asked very simple questions of the Health

         23  Department: Have we had any complaints about noise?

         24  Have we had any action by the police? In Oak Bluffs,

         25  which is a community that has biker conventions,
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          2  they banned smoking in Oak Bluffs and there was no

          3  report of any additional problems relative to noise.

          4                 We hope to do such a study but we

          5  think it's just not worth it. We don't think it's a

          6  valid issue worth looking.

          7                 I will get to you all the other

          8  studies I referenced in my testimony.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         10                 Council Member Sears.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 First, the gentleman from Ottawa, I

         14  was in Ottawa at the time when your Parliament

         15  opened, and I was pleased to attend the session

         16  because they had two priorities at that time, one

         17  was future of the health care of Canada and an

         18  Ethics Program.

         19                 At that time what surprised me was

         20  that the Council on Health Care was looking to

         21  develop some European allies; are you familiar with

         22  that? That had the same philosophy as you did, in

         23  terms of perhaps starting to have, which I find very

         24  difficult, a more global approach to this issue of

         25  smoking, and the affects of it on the health care
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          2  industry.

          3                 MR. MUNTER: Certainly the whole issue

          4  of prevention, we have a single payer system in

          5  Canada, and everyone is covered by health insurance,

          6  and so one of the issues is in fact prevention, and

          7  tobacco is the number one public health priority of

          8  all levels of government, including local

          9  government, which is, of course, what led to our

         10  City Council unanimously adopting the measure.

         11                 We do work with the provincial

         12  government in particular that have carriage of

         13  health care matters, have been strong allies in the

         14  implementation of our bylaw, and our bylaw is part

         15  of a strategy to deal with tobacco in Canada.

         16                 I'm not sure that answers the

         17  question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Do you find

         19  that the tobacco issue is accelerating and reaching

         20  other countries that Canada has been involved with?

         21                 I'm just trying to find out if Canada

         22  has started to do a global approach to the affects

         23  of tobacco?

         24                 MR. MUNTER: Yes, Canada has been

         25  working through the World Health Organization on
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          2  tobacco. And, frankly, the United States, too, is a

          3  leader when it comes to tobacco prevention policy.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: All right,

          5  thank you.

          6                 And my next, just for the gentleman

          7  with First Edition, I don't know if I heard you

          8  correctly, in hearsay on that there may be some

          9  things in speaking about exclusions; are you saying

         10  that if none of that happened you could see

         11  supporting this bill, because it would be straight

         12  across the board?

         13                 MR. RITACCO: Actually --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Because I was a

         15  little confused about that.

         16                 MR. RITACCO: Actually, I'm not in

         17  favor of the bill.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: You made that

         19  point.

         20                 MR. RITACCO: I'd be better off -- my

         21  business is 65 percent beverage, you know, probably

         22  about three-quarter of my customers smoke, so if

         23  there's a ban of smoking it's going to harm by

         24  business. But what scares me to death would be if my

         25  customers can't smoke, but there's other bars down
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          2  the block where they can smoke, that would put me

          3  out of business.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I understand

          5  that. Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Then perhaps you

          7  were put on the wrong panel by accident. Your name

          8  was given to us -- your name was submitted as

          9  someone who was supportive of the legislation. So,

         10  if there was an error made by our staff and we put

         11  you in the wrong place, I apologize.

         12                 If you would speak to the staff

         13  after, and you feel that you have been

         14  misrepresented and would like to retestify, we

         15  would, of course, accommodate that, because we were

         16  of course told obviously incorrectly I guess by

         17  folks who had suggested some of the names for the

         18  pro panels, that you were supportive of the bill.

         19                 I just want to further clarify,

         20  today's hearing is on the bill as introduced by

         21  Mayor Bloomberg. It's a very far-reaching ban. There

         22  certainly have been many suggestions for amendments

         23  that have been made by many advocacy organizations,

         24  trade associations, et cetera, members of the

         25  Council, certainly ideas have been batted around.
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          2  There are no formal exemptions or amendments or

          3  anything of that sort on the table today or in

          4  existence at this moment, though certainly ideas do

          5  continue to circulate, but I just want to be clear

          6  for all witnesses, this is on the bill as written

          7  and there are no formal exemptions which exist at

          8  this moment in time, except for whatever was in the

          9  Mayor's bill, which ain't a lot.

         10                 Okay, Council Member Reed. And we've

         11  also been joined by Council Member Kendall Stewart

         12  from Brooklyn, a member from the Health Committee. I

         13  believe this is our last question for this panel,

         14  and then we'll hear from the next panel.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Madam

         16  Chair.

         17                 Sir, I'm sorry I was here late, the

         18  Doctor from Massachusetts. I didn't quite understand

         19  your testimony. I'm Oak Bluffs 02557, so I'm quite

         20  familiar with it. But it's my understanding, I could

         21  be wrong, that they had a ban in place this past

         22  summer, then they took the ban back off because

         23  there was so many problems. But I didn't understand,

         24  so you can respond to that, but I also just plain

         25  didn't really hear what you were saying when you
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          2  were running through the various towns.

          3                 DR. CONNOLLY: Well, in those

          4  communities in Massachusetts that have banned

          5  smoking in restaurants and bars, we've analyzed meal

          6  tax payments and alcohol tax payments, and we

          7  couldn't differentiate an effect. There was no

          8  change between the communities that banned versus

          9  those that didn't.

         10                 In the case of Oak Bluffs, the Board

         11  of Health this spring did repeal the ban that was

         12  voted in by the residents of Oak Bluffs last year.

         13  The residents went back and voted again and

         14  reinstated the ban, so the ban is enforced in Oak

         15  Bluffs, and it was done by the voters, not by the

         16  Board of Health, the Board of Health did reverse.

         17                 We had one case in the paper where I

         18  think a smoker had left a ban and dropped his

         19  cigarette into an ice cream cup being eaten by a

         20  young child, and that got quite attention in the

         21  Boston Globe, but the Oak Bluffs and the rest of

         22  Martha's Vineyard today, it's smoke-free, as well as

         23  Nantucket, the Cape with the exception Falmouth.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Why did the

         25  Board of Health repeal it?
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          2                 DR. CONNOLLY: There was considerable

          3  pressure placed on the Board of Health, particularly

          4  one Board of Health member, by the Restaurant

          5  Association in Oak Bluffs. There were concerns that

          6  there was an exemption provided to some of the -- I

          7  think it was VFW and the Portuguese American Club,

          8  the clubs had received the exemption, and based on

          9  economic pressure, they repealed, went back to the

         10  voters and the voters reinstated the ban and the ban

         11  is in force, you know, today.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And, so, now

         13  it's county-wide?

         14                 DR. CONNOLLY: Yes, the entire

         15  Martha's Vineyard is smoke-free, as well as

         16  Nantucket. Cape Code, with the exception of

         17  Falmouth, has a weak ordinance, and I believe

         18  Dennysville.

         19                 Provincetown, which again is a

         20  community known for noise and whatever, they totally

         21  banned smoking in Provincetown.

         22                 So, it's a wave of the future, and I

         23  think this City and this City Council is really

         24  directing the world, when it comes to issues of

         25  looking at secondhand smoke.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

          3                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          5                 If we could hear from the folks that

          6  I called up to be on deck, Joe Gillespie, Chris

          7  Norwood, Robert Bookman, David Rabin and Charles

          8  Wolf.

          9                 And then following these folks,

         10  actually I'm not going to call an on-deck quite yet,

         11  so we'll just wait and call after that.

         12                 I'm a little nervous, people stepping

         13  over this thing with the tort reform hearing going

         14  on next door, it may be like a set-up but I don't

         15  know.

         16                 Again, you can testify in whatever

         17  order you'd like. Apparently we're having a tort

         18  issue right here. Whatever order you want to go in

         19  and identify yourself for the record.

         20                 You guys ready?

         21                 MR. BOOKMAN: Ready.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         23                 MR. BOOKMAN: My name is Robert

         24  Bookman, I'm Counsel to the New York Nightlife

         25  Association.
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          2                 Since the first hearing on this Intro

          3  a month ago, it has become increasingly clear that

          4  there is no consensus in this City supporting the

          5  all or nothing approach being vigorously pushed by

          6  the Administration. If history teaches us anything,

          7  it's that the government cannot imposes changes in

          8  individual behavior. What government can and must do

          9  is educate, lead by example and offer programs to

         10  help people make the choice to change habits.

         11                 While today's hearing is only on

         12  Intro. 256, there are alternatives which reasonable

         13  people can and must agree to. A compromise should

         14  not be a dirty word.

         15                 We look forward to working with the

         16  Council to pursue such a compromise, one that will

         17  give individuals, business owners, employees and

         18  Council members a choice.

         19                 Today you will hear from a broad

         20  range of people who are seeking such a reasonable

         21  approach to the issue of where the over one and a

         22  half million New Yorkers who smoke will be committed

         23  to do so. We are not pro smoking. We do not smoke

         24  tobacco, or if so, is so incidental it could easily

         25  be given up. If you make it illegal, fine with us.
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          2                 So this debate is not about the evils

          3  of tobacco, on that we agree. What it is about is

          4  the fact that you are not making tobacco illegal,

          5  and that these million plus New Yorkers are going to

          6  continue to smoke.

          7                 The question is, by forcing them to

          8  not smoke inside our establishments, what will the

          9  consequences be for our businesses and your

         10  constituents' neighborhoods?

         11                 To answer those questions you will

         12  hear from a community health expert who will tell

         13  you that prohibition only succeeds in closing

         14  neighborhood small business, the back bone of our

         15  neighborhood, but does not stop smoking.

         16                 You will hear from community board

         17  and neighborhood association representatives, who

         18  recognize that pushing thousands of smokers onto our

         19  local streets late at night to smoke and talk and

         20  socialize will destroy the quality of life of

         21  thousands of your constituents, and there is no

         22  enforcement that could stop it, they will not be

         23  breaking any laws.

         24                 To compare Manhattan with Martha's

         25  Vineyard is just so laughable that we can just move
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          2  on.

          3                 You will hear from bar and club

          4  owners who not only fear the unwanted wars this will

          5  create between our businesses and our neighbors, but

          6  also the reduction in businesses at a time in our

          7  local economy that we can simply not afford to take

          8  any chances.

          9                 Tourism is down and so is employment

         10  in this industry. You will hear from bar employees,

         11  adults who are making the knowing personal choice to

         12  work in a smoking environment because it is good for

         13  their lifestyle and good for their income.

         14                 You will hear from hospitality

         15  industry experts that the economic impact with

         16  similar bans have not been as neutral or positive as

         17  the Administration has led you to believe, despite

         18  the previously strong economic environment that has

         19  now disappeared.

         20                 You will hear from ventilation

         21  experts, a subject that needs considerably more

         22  research by the Council before you accept the

         23  Administration's notion that ventilation technology

         24  is a waste of time and money. They will tell you it

         25  works in many jurisdictions.
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          2                 And you also will undoubtedly hear

          3  that the data presented to you in the first hearing

          4  concerning the health impacts of secondhand smoke

          5  were based on studies about long-term exposure over

          6  decades in the home, the only place you refuse to

          7  regulate.

          8                 We have still yet to see any data

          9  concerning our employees, not extrapolations or

         10  estimates but real data. It is frankly irresponsible

         11  to use scary numbers of people dying without showing

         12  who these people are, whether or not they were

         13  smokers themselves --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Robert, wrap up,

         15  please.

         16                 MR. BOOKMAN: Okay.

         17                 -- And where they were exposed to

         18  smoke and for how long.

         19                 Again, let me say that we want to

         20  work with you to give all New Yorkers a real choice.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         22                 The next witness, please.

         23                 MS. NORWOOD: Good morning. I'm Chris

         24  Norwood, founder of Health Force: Community

         25  Preventive Health Institute in the South Bronx.
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          2                 Health Force is probably the nation's

          3  largest peer educator based health organization. We

          4  train people affected by chronic disease to be

          5  leaders and educators in the fight against a high

          6  level of unnecessary illness in urban communities.

          7                 How we fight cigarettes and how

          8  successfully is very important in the South Bronx,

          9  which probably has the highest level of illness that

         10  are worsened by smoking.

         11                 I have come to speak to you today

         12  because I am so disturbed by what I see before us.

         13  It is very difficult to understand how the correct

         14  determination of so many people to reduce smoking

         15  has resulted in such negative consequences, but the

         16  fact is that the path to prohibition, while paved

         17  with good intentions, is now taking our City

         18  backwards, both in terms of effective smoking

         19  cessation, and in its very civic life.

         20                 Before I speak about the proposed bar

         21  and restaurant ban, I want to review the

         22  consequences we already see from the cigarette tax.

         23  In a matter of months, cigarettes have entered the

         24  extralegal distribution system.  In many areas in

         25  New York, street cigarette sales equal, or by some
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          2  estimates, exceed those of hard drugs, with the

          3  consequence that we are headed to the many tragedies

          4  of the war on drugs.

          5                 In neighborhoods where one-third of

          6  men are already in jail or on parole, undercover

          7  police squads are arresting people now for single

          8  pack sales.

          9                 Far from keeping cigarettes from

         10  teenagers, teens are out selling loose cigarettes

         11  from 50 cents to a dollar, and have become cigarette

         12  salesperons in New York, they never worked

         13  previously.

         14                 Given what's occurred, I don't think

         15  it's possible to exaggerate the bad results of

         16  further prohibition in the form of a complete

         17  smoking ban. People certainly will be out on the

         18  street smoking in groups. This is a crowded urban

         19  area, and if there's concern about the health of

         20  waiters now, we may wonder what the consequences

         21  will be if foreign restaurant staff are forced to

         22  maintain order night after night between these

         23  groups and annoyed residents.

         24                 There will be an unquestionable

         25  proliferation of unlicensed clubs and bars, which
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          2  are even harder to control, and routinely lack

          3  safety features such as fire exits.

          4                 The impact will be the worst in poor

          5  and working class neighborhoods where 33 percent of

          6  people still smoke, and on the other hand, have the

          7  most to loose by a system which threatens their few

          8  stabilizing local businesses.

          9                 I am really asking you that we change

         10  tactics now. Selective regulation has helped in the

         11  past, but now we have to focus on cessation. Let us

         12  have New York be an un-cessation program. The true

         13  leader.

         14                 We have at this time the Health

         15  Department with an extremely high level of planning

         16  and programmed ability with real prospects of

         17  developing effective cessation. It's an added

         18  tragedy to have them wasting energy and resources on

         19  repetitive, senseless and futile enforcement issues.

         20                 Let's all make it our mission,

         21  administration and advocates to City Council and

         22  community to go forward toward a true goal and say

         23  we know for absolute sure that public health and

         24  widespread arrests can never be equated.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.
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          2                 Next Speaker, please.

          3                 MR. WOLF: Hi. Good morning. My name

          4  is Charles Wolf. I'm the presiding officer of the

          5  Bleeker Area Merchants and Residents Association. We

          6  are a neighborhood organization, a volunteer

          7  organization, if we will, on Bleeker Street between

          8  Sixth Avenue and Mercer, the area just below

          9  Washington Square Park.

         10                 We had a meeting last month to

         11  discuss this, a balanced meeting of merchants and

         12  residents. We have pro and con and the vote was 22

         13  to four to oppose this bill, okay?

         14                 And I want to say upfront that I am a

         15  non-smoker, I lost my stepmother to cancer, I hate

         16  the smell of cigarettes, I don't like walking behind

         17  someone who is walking on the sidewalk, and that's

         18  my personal thing.

         19                 But with regards to our organization,

         20  we have a serious problem, Madam Chairman, with the

         21  collateral damage this bill is going to have.

         22                 It is going to have an immediate

         23  opposite affect, one the Administration is looking

         24  for with it's Silent Night Operation.

         25                 The fact of the matter is, passage of
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          2  this bill will not cause smokers to stop smoking. It

          3  will only change where they smoke. They will smoke

          4  either outside the bars, or they will smoke outside

          5  the City.

          6                 We have right now on my block on

          7  Bleeker Street is one of the target areas for Silent

          8  Night. We already have crowds on the street. If the

          9  no smoking ban goes into effect, we will have scores

         10  of people in front of every bar trying to smoke.

         11  Either that or they will stay awake completely. So,

         12  you've either got a quality of life concern, or you

         13  have a significant business concern. This is not to

         14  say that perhaps the City Council or the Health

         15  Department shouldn't set something up to encourage

         16  non-smoking bars. It will have an immediate effect

         17  like this. Basically what will happen is the smoke

         18  will rise into the open windows during the warm

         19  weather months, during the cold weather months

         20  people will duck into the vestibules of apartment

         21  buildings to smoke, leaning on the buzzers. When

         22  they're ready to go back into the bar they can

         23  argue, whether they can go back ahead of other

         24  people on line, pedestrians will have to walk

         25  through clouds of smoke. The narrow sidewalks in the
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          2  village in Chelsea, which are barely passable now.

          3  Will soon be crowded with law-abiding smokers,

          4  forcing pedestrians to walk in the streets.

          5                 In our neighborhood alone we have 22

          6  bars and clubs, including restaurants, and if you

          7  include restaurants with bars that's 61, that's in

          8  eight square blocks. The bars will end up in taking

          9  the rap when neighbors call the quality of life hot

         10  line to complain. How will the police move along

         11  groups of people who aren't breaking the law?

         12                 Basically what we're saying here is

         13  that when you're looking at statistics, you have to

         14  look at who is patronizing the bars and not the

         15  statistics on the residents of the City.

         16                 European and Asian residents smoke

         17  much more heavily and they supply a lot of business

         18  to the City.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Charles, if you

         20  could wrap up.

         21                 MR. WOLF: Right.

         22                 And what we're saying basically, the

         23  final thing I'm saying is -- I lost my place-- sorry

         24  about that. Oh, here we are.

         25                 Is that no bill is passed in a
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          2  vacuum, and you must consider the collateral damage

          3  that this bill will produce when considering.

          4                 I think this bill is ahead of its

          5  time. I don't think we're there yet. I think we need

          6  to, shall we say, grease the skids in terms of

          7  smoking cessation programs before we hit it.

          8                 This City cannot take more of an

          9  economic hit than it has had already because of

         10  9/11, period.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         12                 Next witness, please.

         13                 MR. GILLESPIE: Good morning. My name

         14  is Joe Gillespie. I am a small business owner. I own

         15  a small bar restaurant in Sunnyside, Queens.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Joe, just move the

         17  mic up a little bit higher so we can hear you more

         18  clearly. Thanks.

         19                 MR. GILLESPIE: Can you hear me now?

         20                 Okay, I'm also a member of Community

         21  Board 2 in Queens, and we had this issue in front of

         22  our October meeting, and the Board members were

         23  extremely concerned about the quality of life impact

         24  of this legislation, as well as the economic impact

         25  on our small businesses.
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          2                 They voted by a margin, I believe, of

          3  27 to nine against this bill. They appreciate the

          4  fact that this will have a severe impact on the

          5  small neighborhood businesses. Anywhere in the

          6  country that we're aware of that smoking bans have

          7  been passed in bars, anyone we've talked to have

          8  said the experience of downtrodden business have

          9  been anywhere from 25 to 40 percent.

         10                 In the current economic climate, we

         11  cannot take a hit like this. I know from talking to

         12  my customers at least 70 percent of them are

         13  smokers. They're telling me if this ban goes into

         14  effect, we're not going to come out. It would just

         15  be not worth the trouble. You'll put us out of

         16  business.

         17                 As we go out of business, the

         18  neighborhood goes down. There's nothing worse for a

         19  neighborhood than an empty store, and these are not

         20  statistics, these are the facts as we hear them

         21  every day from our customers.

         22                 And the quality of life issue is a

         23  big thing for everybody in our neighborhood. Most of

         24  the bars in Sunnyside and other parts of Queens are

         25  situated close to residences, to private houses, to
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          2  apartment buildings. The idea of forcing groups of

          3  our customers out onto the streets at two, three,

          4  four o'clock in the morning to smoke a cigarette

          5  just doesn't make sense, it's absolutely ludicrous.

          6                 I've seen the results of it in

          7  California. I was in San Francisco about a year ago.

          8  In a neighborhood bar on a Saturday night, the

          9  police were there twice in the short time that I was

         10  there because of noise from residents, people

         11  congregating on the sidewalk to have a smoke.

         12                 Over the course of the past couple of

         13  weeks I have been involved in meetings with several

         14  Councilors and the thing that has struck me about

         15  those meetings, is the apparent unwillingness of the

         16  Mayor and some members of the Council to even

         17  discuss compromise on this issue.

         18                 Madam Chair, we met with you last

         19  Thursday morning, we met with this gentleman from an

         20  air filtration company who has the science, proven

         21  science by OSHA, that, yes, the equipment is

         22  available to keep the air clean. What we need for

         23  the Council is to set clean air standards. We are

         24  prepared to do our part. Go to the expense of

         25  installing the equipment, make whatever adjustments
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          2  are necessary on our stores. The question we are

          3  asking you is, are the Mayor and the Council

          4  prepared to do you part?

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          7                 Next witness.

          8                 MR. RABIN: Good morning. My name is

          9  David Rabin. I am the co-owner of Lotus and Union

         10  Bar, with a combined 130 employees. I am also the

         11  president of New York Nightlife Association, which

         12  is an organization of approximately 100 bars and

         13  nightclubs.

         14                 I'm also a member of Community Board

         15  5, where I sit on the quality of life committee.

         16                 The last time I was here I tried to

         17  tell you about the differences between California

         18  and New York. Most bars and restaurants in my

         19  experience in California are in commercial areas and

         20  strip malls, not under deep six-story walk-up

         21  buildings. They have smoking patios in LA on their

         22  parking lots, also not in residential neighborhoods.

         23  They close at 1:45 in the morning, not 4:00 in the

         24  morning, also like Boston, which is supposedly

         25  getting ready to pass this bill, the drinking hour
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          2  in Boston closes at 2:00.

          3                 The other fact that bothers me is the

          4  statements that all business went up after this law

          5  was passed in 1998, I'd like to ask what business

          6  did not go up from 1998 to 2001.

          7                 I tried to tell you last time that

          8  there was no consumer demand for this. There isn't

          9  one non-smoking bar in New York. There isn't even a

         10  weekly theme night in any nightclub in New York

         11  where there are many weekly theme nights - gay

         12  night, Salsa night, this kind of night, that kind of

         13  night, but no one has decided to do a non-smoking

         14  night because no one thinks they could make any

         15  money for it because no one believes that there's

         16  20,000 people sitting in their house itching to come

         17  out to a night club the moment they stop smoking.

         18                 I tried to tell you of the increased

         19  security and internal monitoring nightmare, in and

         20  out people all night, extra security that we have to

         21  hire at a time that our revenue is going to be

         22  decreased, greater risk of substance abuse being

         23  snuck in when people go in and out all night.

         24                 I tried to tell you about the number

         25  of people who are going to be in the street, that

                                                            50

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  it's the number one complaint at community boards,

          3  and you all know it, you know the number one

          4  complaint is noise on the street from night clubs,

          5  not internal problems at night clubs.

          6                 CB 3 already came out against this.

          7  CB 5 passed ten to one a resolution calling for

          8  continuation of the 60/40 standard, and it also

          9  calls for a change in the Catch-22 of the law.

         10  Catch-22 of the law, which I explained last time, is

         11  that we won't call the police, because if we call

         12  the police we risk a disorderly premise summons or a

         13  failure control crowd summons. So we'll never call

         14  the police if there's noise out front.

         15                 If we were able to run commercials

         16  like the City is showing smokers all over Second

         17  Avenue and Amsterdam Avenue, you know where public

         18  opinion would be, it wouldn't be in favor of this

         19  ban.

         20                 Lastly, what I'd like to say -- well,

         21  two last things I'd like to say quickly, if I may,

         22  Madam Chairman, is, one, although I think it's great

         23  that someone came down from Ottawa, and no offense

         24  to Ottawa, but what in the world does Ottawa have to

         25  do with New York?
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          2                 I thought we wanted to be mentioned

          3  in the same breath with Rome and Paris and London

          4  and Tokyo, not really to be mentioned in the same

          5  breath with Ottawa.

          6                 Finally, when Deputy Mayor Doctoroff

          7  congratulated the City as to winning the Olympic bid

          8  --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you could wrap

         10  up, please?

         11                 MR. RABIN: I am. This is my last

         12  comment. I promise. When he made the comment when we

         13  won the Olympic bid for the United States, he called

         14  New York "the City that never sleeps." Well, who

         15  makes it that way? We make it that way. And by the

         16  time 2012 rolls around, when he's gone from office,

         17  we'll be known as the City that goes to bed at

         18  10:30.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, I just want

         20  to say this is -- everybody, this is -- I failed to

         21  say this at the beginning so I'll say it now. What

         22  we're going to do here is this is a warning. We

         23  cannot have outbursts in these hearings regardless

         24  of what the topic is. So, this is a warning. After

         25  that there will be another warning and after that
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          2  we'll clear the Chambers and just have whatever the

          3  panel it is and have those pre-scheduled witnesses

          4  wait outside, okay? That goes for both sides. I

          5  don't care whether you're clapping because you agree

          6  or you're booing because you disagree. But I don't

          7  know what Ottawa ever did to you. No, I'm only

          8  kidding.

          9                 I want to say we've been joined by

         10  Council Member McMahon of Staten Island, Council

         11  Member Felder of Brooklyn.

         12                 I also just want to say, which I

         13  should have said in the beginning, I did say, there

         14  are three pre-scheduled panels for each, pro/con,

         15  each side was offered three panels of no more than

         16  five people per panel, some panels may have less,

         17  that was up to the determination of the folks

         18  putting them together. So, I just want to be clear,

         19  each side was offered the same.

         20                 Council Member Sears has a question.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

         22  Madam Chair.

         23                 My question is for Mr. Bookman.

         24                 Now, today we're dealing with Intro.

         25  256. That's what's on the table, there's nothing
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          2  else on the table.

          3                 However, we did hear in some

          4  testimony there's been some talk of things going

          5  around and what other issues may be considered.

          6                 My question to you is that respecting

          7  the intent of Intro. 256, and its focus, do you have

          8  any suggestions as to what might be in the bill that

          9  might be somewhat of a compromise to the issues that

         10  have been raised?

         11                 MR. BOOKMAN: Yes, I don't think it's

         12  any secret, Councilwoman, that the people on this

         13  side of the microphone have been reaching out to the

         14  Council, the people who are sitting on the dais

         15  right now and to other Council members trying to

         16  find a reasonable solution that would accommodate

         17  the intent of the Mayor's bill which is to increase

         18  the protection, increase the no smoking in the work

         19  place from the current 80 to 85 percent to something

         20  significantly greater. And I believe there's plenty

         21  of room to do that, and with any other bill,

         22  frankly, everybody would stand up and say, you know,

         23  we reached a compromise, wonderful, let's move on,

         24  we've increased protection. For our perspective, if

         25  you give the Mayor everything he asked for in his
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          2  bill but you simply exempt bars as defined under the

          3  current law, then you protected 99 percent of the

          4  current workforce, and if you require those bars to

          5  install technology, which is not required now, you

          6  will improve even the workplace for that one percent

          7  of the workforce, which is not covered.

          8                 Ninety-nine percent coverage, plus

          9  improvement for the other one percent, is not only I

         10  think a public health victory for the Council and

         11  everyone else, but it would also provide real choice

         12  for those half of one percent of the employees that

         13  work in bars of the workforce who are not smokers

         14  themselves, because about half of our employees are

         15  smokers. So, we're now down to one-half of one

         16  percent of the workforce that work in bars that are

         17  not smokers of the entire city's workforce, and they

         18  would then have a real choice of other bars and

         19  other restaurants where they could try their trade,

         20  because you would be dramatically expanding no

         21  smoking environments in eating and drinking

         22  establishments.

         23                 So, there's plenty of room for

         24  compromise. But not if your goal is to basically

         25  make it illegal to smoke in the City of New York,
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          2  then there's clearly, you know, there's a problem.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

          6  Stewart.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

          8  Madam Chair. I hope one of you can answer this

          9  question. The total ban in other states, in other

         10  cities, in other areas, did not create empty stores

         11  and all the problems that you have mentioned. Why do

         12  you think it will happen in New York?

         13                 MR. WOLF: I'd like to answer this

         14  one, as I'm an unpaid member, and a resident here.

         15                 New York City is a dense urban

         16  environment. There isn't another city like New York

         17  in the entire country. The closest you would get to

         18  New York you would have to go over to Europe some

         19  place. This is more like a European city. So, when

         20  you compare, let's say San Francisco has been the

         21  city that has been compared most closely to New

         22  York, although it's about one-eighth the size, I

         23  believe, California culture is very different from

         24  New York culture. The people that feed our nightlife

         25  are much more from out of our area than within our
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          2  area.

          3                 California's ban is a statewide ban.

          4  This would be a city ban in which people could

          5  choose to go to other municipalities to do their

          6  smoking.

          7                 Legislation does not change human

          8  behavior immediately. It will modify it over time.

          9  So, by thinking that this is going to immediately

         10  change things is wishful thinking. I wish it were. I

         11  lost my mother to lung cancer, and as I said before

         12  I hate cigarette smoking, but to compare New York

         13  City to almost any other city, except for perhaps a

         14  section of San Francisco, perhaps a section of

         15  Chicago, I'm not too sure about it. But you have to

         16  make sure that you take a look at the whole picture

         17  where you have people. Think about Second Avenue,

         18  Third Avenue, Chelsea, Greenwich Village, Columbus

         19  Avenue, all these places right now, of people living

         20  above bars and nightclubs. Just think about that.

         21                 MR. GILLESPIE: I'd like to address

         22  that if I could possibly as well?

         23                 Like I said before, any towns that we

         24  talked about where the ban has been put into effect,

         25  and San Francisco is a prime example, in the late
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          2  1990s, since the ban has gone into effect, most of

          3  the bars in San Francisco tell us they experienced a

          4  decline in business of anywhere from ten to about 30

          5  percent. This is the midst of the biggest economic

          6  boom this Council has ever seen, when business

          7  should have been probably doubling, instead they're

          8  down 30 percent. That's the real impact.

          9                 Right now in the current economic

         10  climate in New York City, we cannot afford to take

         11  that type of a hit. We will be out of business.

         12  That's a fact.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right, I

         14  have another question.

         15                 You spoke about collateral damages,

         16  are you really comparing collateral damages with the

         17  health risks of the employees? That's what you're

         18  doing?

         19                 So, you're saying the health of these

         20  employees is not that important?

         21                 MR. GILLESPIE: Absolutely not. What

         22  we're saying is there's been no discussion on how we

         23  can improve the conditions within our stores except

         24  banning smoking. That is not the answer.

         25                 If you ban smoking right now, you
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          2  will make the air in my store or any other store the

          3  exact same quality as what you breathe on the street

          4  outside. It's not that good.

          5                 We are offering to put in new

          6  equipment that will make the air probably about ten

          7  times cleaner than that, and yet nobody is willing

          8  to even discuss it with us.

          9                 MR. BOOKMAN: Councilman, you asked

         10  this question last time, and let me just respond the

         11  same way, because in the months since the last

         12  hearing we've seen nothing since then other than

         13  anecdotal extrapolations from the Health Department

         14  concerning the entire issue of secondhand smoke.

         15                 There's something of a three-card

         16  Monty game going on here where we talk about the

         17  evils of smoking, which we all agree on, we talk

         18  about the evils of secondhand smoke, but if you read

         19  the studies, that's about secondhand smoke over

         20  decades of exposure in homes.

         21                 Now, it is not -- and then they apply

         22  it to saying, you know, here in New York City.

         23                 Now, where is the health improvement

         24  that we've had since 1995?

         25                 Before 1995, the Health Department

                                                            59

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  came to this Chamber and was quoting lesser

          3  statistics as far as health damage to the City than

          4  they're quoting now.

          5                 They're saying the number of people

          6  that are dying and are negatively impacted by

          7  second-hand smoke has increased dramatically since

          8  1994, yet we've gone from zero percent of the

          9  workplace coverage to 85 percent of the workplace

         10  coverage.

         11                 When you walk to talk about claims

         12  that haven't been made and crying wolf, there's

         13  claims that haven't been made.

         14                 Where are the names of the people,

         15  the real case studies, not extrapolations? So, I

         16  reject, because I have yet to see any data

         17  concerning the 15 percent of the employees in the

         18  City of New York that are not covered under the no

         19  smoking law now, which of them died last year, and

         20  was it as a result of home exposure, their children

         21  are being exposed on a daily basis, yet the Council

         22  and the Mayor is prepared to do nothing about that?

         23  Or was it due to, you know, working in one of my

         24  client's establishments?

         25                 Let's see the real data. When you're
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          2  accusing somebody of murder, you have an obligation

          3  to meet a burden of proof.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So, what

          5  you're saying basically, that all the studies that

          6  have been done about secondhand smoke are erroneous?

          7  Are you saying it's not true?

          8                 MR. BOOKMAN: No, I'm saying it's true

          9  for 20-year exposure and daily exposure. Those

         10  studies that the EPA cited in its Seminal study that

         11  this Council put in its legislative findings in

         12  1995, I suggest you read that study, Councilman,

         13  because that study is based on home exposure, home.

         14  Not workplace exposure, home exposure. Are you

         15  prepared to stop home exposure, where there exposure

         16  to secondhand smoke is? Those studies are real.

         17  Those dangers are real, I agree.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But, you

         19  know, we may not have the control of what you do in

         20  your home, but we have control of what you can do to

         21  another employee and that's what we're talking

         22  about.

         23                 MR. BOOKMAN: Well, you have plenty of

         24  control over what's done in homes. You have all

         25  kinds of building codes and safety codes, you
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          2  certainly don't allow parents who abuse their

          3  children, you have all types of controls.

          4                 If you really believe these

          5  statistics that you've been presented, if you really

          6  believe that secondhand smoke is a killer, I don't

          7  see how you can't amend this bill today to prevent

          8  smoking in homes where are children.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Is the Nightlife

         10  Association then suggesting or urging the Council to

         11  amend this bill to include homes?

         12                 MR. BOOKMAN: We suggested even more

         13  than that. We stated in our meetings that if you

         14  want to ban tobacco in the City of New York, we'll

         15  support it. Go right ahead and do it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I just want to be

         17  clear. So, formally the Nightlife Association is

         18  saying that we should ban tobacco, which would then

         19  by extent make it, it would be illegal to smoke at

         20  home, as well.

         21                 MR. BOOKMAN: Formally, informally,

         22  any way you want to do it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         24                 MR. BOOKMAN: You have to stop people

         25  from smoking. If you're not going to stop people

                                                            62

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  from smoking, then they're going to continue to

          3  smoke.

          4                 The other side seems to indicate

          5  there is no economic down side to passing this. If

          6  they're correct, and assuming arguendo for a moment

          7  that they're correct, then the same number of people

          8  who go out today and smoke, and the first panel, the

          9  guy who was maybe confused in the wrong panel said

         10  60 to 70 percent of his clients smoke, so if the

         11  number of people who smoke now could continue to go

         12  out and smoke, because they don't believe not a

         13  single person is going to stay home as a result of

         14  this bill, and they can't smoke inside our

         15  establishment, then they're going to smoke outside.

         16                 If you're not going to make it

         17  illegal and start arresting people left and right

         18  for smoking in the City of New York, then you're not

         19  solving the problem.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I want to

         21  apologize for jumping in on Council Member Stewart's

         22  time, but I believe that if it actually is the

         23  position of the Nightlife Association that we should

         24  be making tobacco illegal and therefore making it

         25  illegal for people to smoke in people's homes, you

                                                            63

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  and the American Cancer Society should probably go

          3  chat outside in the rotunda, because we could have a

          4  totally different proposal perhaps before it's very

          5  soon.

          6                 I don't know if they support that.

          7                 MR. BOOKMAN: Well, they support it, I

          8  don't know if they'll publicly state it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Well, they should

         10  speak for themselves when they come back up. That's,

         11  you know, a pretty bold statement that that's the

         12  way we should go. I'm surprised that that's the

         13  formal recommendation, but we will obviously

         14  consider that and would urge you to come back to us

         15  with a formal thing on that.

         16                 Council Member Stewart, do you have

         17  any more questions?

         18                 MR. RABIN: Madam Chair, may I add to

         19  that? May I?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure.

         21                 MR. WOLF: From a resident's

         22  standpoint, I'm not sure that I agree with Mr.

         23  Bookman. First of all, it's important that the

         24  people understand that cancer develops over a 20 to

         25  25-year-period, okay? There are other diseases that
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          2  are impacted by smoking which are more immediate,

          3  heart disease and emphysema. Emphysema is also a

          4  long-term thing. But in terms of gauging cancer

          5  deaths, you're really looking at a long-term

          6  situation.

          7                 And I think it's important that from

          8  our neighborhood, and probably most of the other

          9  neighborhoods, the patrons, and, again, it's

         10  important to understand, that most of the business

         11  we're talking about comes from outside of New York

         12  City, it's the bridge and tunnel crowd, tourism from

         13  domestic cities, and tourism from international

         14  cities, Europe and Asia, okay? Those are the people

         15  that frequent the bars. So, a ban on smoking within

         16  New York City, even within homes, would not mitigate

         17  the quality of life problems, nor would they

         18  mitigate the business problems and the attending tax

         19  revenue problem.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: We've been joined

         21  by Council Member Sanders from Queens, who also has

         22  a question.

         23                 I just want to say that if there is

         24  such a bill to make tobacco illegal, or ban smoking

         25  in people's homes, I hope we can refer it to
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          2  Consumer Affairs or Housing and Buildings, because

          3  otherwise I'll spend the rest of my political life

          4  in hearings only on smoking.

          5                 Council Member Sanders. And we've

          6  also been joined, I apologize, by Council Member

          7  Eric Gioia also, of Queens.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Thank you,

          9  Madam Chair.

         10                 And as a member of the Consumer

         11  Affairs Committee, I think it's best handled by your

         12  hands.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you for the

         14  vote of confidence.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Because I

         16  also would like to do other things with this City,

         17  because I'm Chair of Economic Development for the

         18  City of New York, and I have not hand the pleasure

         19  of hearing the position of the New York Nightlife

         20  Association on this bill. To be honest, I'm a little

         21  surprised, I haven't heard from many anti or -- I

         22  don't want to say pro smoking, I'm trying to find a

         23  way of saying people who are against this bill.

         24                 I have not heard many people speak on

         25  this, and although I am a former smoker, and you can
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          2  imagine where that puts me, I am also Chair of

          3  Economic Development. I'm very concerned about the

          4  well-being of New York City's economy. And I'm

          5  astounded that no one has come to our office against

          6  this bill in presenting a credible case, presenting

          7  studies. I overheard some of what was said that

          8  there were studies that said that the nightlife or

          9  the impact of cutting down on smoking has done

         10  negative things.

         11                 I'm looking forward to hearing more

         12  of these things. Right now I am not committed on

         13  this particular bill, and I know of many other

         14  Council people who have certain worries also, but we

         15  haven't heard from you guys.

         16                 The other side has been fairly

         17  effective. I haven't had the pleasure.

         18                 MR. BOOKMAN: We did present in the

         19  first hearing a study, which I will get to you,

         20  which went beyond polling, which is more than an

         21  accurate science, but it went to actual field

         22  interviews of over 1,000 individuals in bars and

         23  clubs in the City of New York in the month of

         24  October, and asked the individuals there what they

         25  would do if this law was passed, and we did present

                                                            67

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  that at the first hearing and the economic impact

          3  was astounding. Over 20 some odd percent, as I

          4  recall, of the individuals who responded said they

          5  would spend less time in bars and clubs if they were

          6  -- if the only place they could smoke is outside.

          7  Over 50 percent of the smokers said they would go

          8  outside to smoke, and about another nine percent

          9  said they would either stop going out all together

         10  or they would seek other jurisdictions, such as New

         11  Jersey, where they came from, you know, and simply

         12  stay home.

         13                 So there was not only a huge economic

         14  impact, but it was also a huge quality of life

         15  impact, and that's a real New York City study, not

         16  an extrapolation.

         17                 MR. RABIN: Councilman, if I may

         18  respond as well? We have a two-fold concern. The

         19  first concern is on the immediate economic impact,

         20  which many businesses are much more fearful than

         21  some others. Some of the smaller mom and pop shops

         22  are scared to death this is going to put them out of

         23  business right away.

         24                 Some of the other establishments

         25  aren't quite as concerned, for example, I'm not
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          2  quite as concerned at Lotus that we're going to go

          3  out of business tomorrow. I do think we're going to

          4  face enormous problems. I do think we're going to

          5  see a drop in revenue. I think we're going to have

          6  enormous security problems, but I don't think this

          7  is going to put me out of business tomorrow.

          8                 I feel very badly because I think a

          9  lot of the people may get put out of the business by

         10  this, but I'm much more concerned with the longer

         11  term impact of this, one, two, three years down the

         12  road, because by that time there will be so much

         13  animosity between communities and our businesses,

         14  that I think we're going to be fined virtually out

         15  of existence. I really do.

         16                 Because there's no way, as Rob has

         17  said, it's not illegal to have a cigarette and chat

         18  in the street. It's not. So, if you've got 30 people

         19  out in front of your bar having a cigarette, and I

         20  ask them to move down the block and they say to me

         21  sorry, guys. They say, screw you, you're not a cop,

         22  which is basically what they say, because they don't

         23  have to listen to me, I can't call the police.

         24  Because if I call the police, I get a summons for

         25  failure to control my crowd.
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          2                 So, what's going to happen is that

          3  community boards and you guys are going to be

          4  inundated by furious residents, in my opinion, and

          5  I'm really not here as some high-powered lobbyist

          6  from the smoking industry. I sit on the quality of

          7  life committee of Community Board 5, I listen to

          8  these complaints once a month, and I know that if

          9  you dump hundreds and hundreds of people into the

         10  street to smoke, someone is going to be the

         11  scapegoat, and since they can't arrest the smokers,

         12  we're going to be the scape goat, we're going to get

         13  fined, and small people are going to say why am I in

         14  this business? This is nuts. All I do is go to court

         15  to fight these fines and these summonses, and all

         16  I'm doing as a legitimate tax-paying business, I

         17  employ 130 people. I'm probably one of the few

         18  businesses in New York, I can't call the police and

         19  ask for their help, because if I do, I get a ticket.

         20  It's ridiculous. So I just don't call the police,

         21  and I try and get people to move down the block.

         22                 Until you guys are prepared to change

         23  that law, and to allow us to avail ourselves of the

         24  police without fear that we will get a disorder

         25  summons premise, like any other business that can
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          2  say we have a disturbance, we need help, then we

          3  have no recourse other than to face fines, and I

          4  know maybe there are some people on community boards

          5  who would love to see us put out of business, at

          6  this time I don't think New York can afford to lose

          7  one business, let alone hundreds of businesses.

          8                 MR. WOLF: And may I say that I've

          9  done a little surveying of the BAMRA area, and the

         10  Chairwoman will know that one of the community

         11  leaders down there is very concerned about quality

         12  of life. My organization voted last summer, excuse

         13  me, the summer of '01, before the September 11th

         14  disaster, we voted to bring in the Guardian Angels

         15  to get rid of the drug dealers, and since then I've

         16  been on the Chairwoman's Quality of Life, ad hoc

         17  Quality of Life Committee, which we've done a lot of

         18  work on this whole thing.

         19                 So, in terms of the business impact,

         20  I did talk to a lot of the bar owners, bar and

         21  restaurant owners, informally, okay? We don't have

         22  any big budgets. We're talking street smarts here,

         23  okay? Thirty to 50 percent down in business right

         24  now. Thirty to 50 percent down over pre 9/11/01

         25  levels, okay?
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          2                 Store keepers, I'm not talking bars

          3  and restaurants, store keepers: Store keepers are

          4  about ready to fold on McDoogle Street. A barber

          5  shop in my building, at the corner of Thompson and

          6  Bleeker, out of business as of today.

          7                 We are having serious, serious

          8  problems. Serious problems. And these people, even

          9  places that are doing decent compared to other

         10  places, are concerned, okay?

         11                 This is not something that our

         12  neighborhood can take a hit. We do not want to

         13  become an Eighth Street. Eighth Street is where

         14  everything shuts down at 6:00. One of the advantages

         15  of the Village, the West Village, Chelsea, is the

         16  fact that we have nightlife down there. We want

         17  orderly nightlife. We don't want the places to go

         18  out of business. We are concerned for the fabric of

         19  our neighborhood, which is why we say this bill is

         20  the wrong solution to the problem.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Just one quick

         22  follow-up, and then thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: We all agree

         24  that New York City should be the City that never

         25  sleeps. It should be a place where the tourism and
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          2  people are coming from all over.

          3                 We also agree that we have to have

          4  wholesome neighborhoods, and we have to make sure

          5  that the safety and security of our City is

          6  maintained.

          7                 Having said that, if you tell me,

          8  sir, that there are parts of governmental policy

          9  that are restricted and are counterproductive and

         10  you can't call the police, then I encourage you to

         11  get in touch with our office, because we're trying

         12  to find these things and get rid of these road

         13  blocks to prosperity for our City and for

         14  individuals.

         15                 I just encourage reaching out.

         16                 Madam Chair, thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. And

         18  we'll make sure I'll follow up with Mr. Bookman and

         19  get you the contact info and the appropriate staff

         20  in Council Member Sander's office, since the

         21  Nightlife Association wants to follow up on that

         22  particular issue.

         23                 MR. BOOKMAN: The study.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And also the

         25  concern he just raised about the reports to the PD,
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          2  et cetera.

          3                 MR. BOOKMAN: Okay.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If I could

          5  request, there were some reference made to data from

          6  San Francisco; if that data could just be provided?

          7  One of the staff people, when you're done

          8  testifying, will grab it from you.

          9                 Council Member McMahon is the final

         10  question for this panel.

         11                 But just quickly before he asks it, I

         12  want to announce the next panel so they could be

         13  ready to come up.

         14                 Mike O'Neal. DJ Wilson. Carrie

         15  Sunday. Susan O'Brien, and TCN Bucanan, I'm sorry if

         16  I mispronounced that, from the Hospitality Industry

         17  Advocate.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Good

         20  afternoon, Madam Chairwoman.

         21                 I didn't get your name, I came in

         22  late.

         23                 MR. RABIN: David Rabin.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         25  Mr. Rabin.
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          2                 You spoke about a group in the

          3  industry that I'm very concerned about, what you

          4  called the "mom and pop" store, sort of the local

          5  tavern, the small facility, and I think that that's

          6  something that has a lot of Council Members

          7  concerned, and all the industry, certainly, because

          8  you mentioned it, that there's a concern out there

          9  that the effects to them would be dramatic and quite

         10  possibly drive them out of business.

         11                 And I know that in New York City,

         12  being as an older city and more ethnic city, that

         13  they are very much a mainstay of our neighborhoods,

         14  and of our economic fabric, if you will.

         15                 Having been to places like Los

         16  Angeles and even San Francicso, and maybe after a

         17  long day of sightseeing, trying to find a sort of

         18  mom and pop local tavern or traditional tavern is

         19  what I call it, there doesn't seem to be as many.

         20                 Am I correct in assuming that? Is

         21  this something more akin to New York City in places

         22  like Boston that the traditional taverns are more

         23  frequent and more of a mainstay? And if so, have we

         24  looked at the numbers from California, in terms of

         25  analyzing the impact on the industry, and looking at
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          2  are they, you know, my assumption, having been in

          3  Los Angeles, that the places are much bigger,

          4  they're much more like chains and they're not the

          5  more traditional tavern that relies on the regular

          6  customer. Is that something that I'm just making up

          7  or is that something that the industry considers?

          8  And have the impacts to that very particular

          9  industry in New York been considered, in relation to

         10  other jurisdictions that have banned smoking?

         11                 MR. RABIN: I guess I would like to

         12  defer you to our next panel, because they have

         13  representatives from those establishments, my

         14  eyeball is the same as your eyeball, New York is way

         15  different from LA. Everything is in a strip mall out

         16  there. You could smoke out in that strip mall and

         17  never hear a neighborhood complain. But if you walk

         18  out by the dozen on Third Avenue in one of those

         19  neighborhood taverns and smoke in the street, you're

         20  going to hear a lot of noise from the community.

         21                 So, my off-the-cuff remark is you're

         22  right, those taverns are basically smoking lounges

         23  that have beer, and, you know, I think it would have

         24  an enormous impact on them.

         25                 MR. BOOKMAN: One other thing that
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          2  this bill has done is it's actually brought together

          3  for the first time all the various trade

          4  associations in the City of New York that represent

          5  bars and taverns and nightclubs, so we're really

          6  speaking to each other and exchanging information.

          7  And I think it's generally recognized amongst us

          8  when we meet that it's the small mom and pop places,

          9  the ethnic places, the neighborhood places, that are

         10  effectively smoking lounges that sell beer, and that

         11  they are going to have the hard economic impact of

         12  anyone.

         13                 The large dance clubs, you know, they

         14  have the three to 5,000 person occupancy, we don't

         15  think we'll have the greatest economic impact, but

         16  there will be the greatest quality of life impact.

         17  So, it's six of one or half a dozen of the other.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And a

         19  compromised bill, if you will, if ever such a thing

         20  should come into existence, that consider the small,

         21  stand alone bar, the traditional tavern, as a place

         22  to have an exclusion; is that something that you

         23  would support or do you seek something broader?

         24                 MR. RABIN: No, we would support a

         25  stand-alone bar, a bar exception, whatever you want
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          2  to define it. I mean, the current law defines a bar

          3  as any establishment that less than 40 percent of

          4  its gross annual sales comes from food. If you want

          5  to play with that number a little bit, I'm sure that

          6  can be negotiated, but basically we're talking about

          7  bars, yes, and nightclubs that are bars by

          8  definition, you know, they have little to no food.

          9  So, cabarets, licensed cabarets, nightclubs, dance

         10  clubs, are under the current law bars, and

         11  stand-alone bars. That is something we would love to

         12  pursue with the Council.

         13                 MR. GILLESPIE: I own what you call

         14  one of the neighborhood bars in Queens, and the

         15  bread and butter of our business are our regular

         16  day-time bar customers. We don't make money on food.

         17  Food is basically, if you can make money off the

         18  alcohol, the sodas, whatever you sell to them, and

         19  if this bill passes, you're telling me that I have

         20  to tell approximately 70 percent of my customers are

         21  no longer welcome in the premises. I can't survive

         22  without them. They're the guys that pay my rent

         23  every month, they pay my wages.

         24                 MR. WOLF: And going back to the

         25  question, it's a very, very good point about the
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          2  differences in the type of business. When you have a

          3  chain business, they have much deeper pockets in

          4  terms of capitalization.

          5                 I don't think, and I'm thinking

          6  because I've lived down there for 23 years now, I

          7  don't think there is one chain bar in all Lower

          8  Manhattan. You think about that.

          9                 That's a serious, serious difference,

         10  and being a business owner myself in another aspect,

         11  I'm surprised I didn't think of it. You are

         12  absolutely right, this would be a major hit. Because

         13  they have to pay their rent every month. And maybe

         14  there would be non-smokers who would eventually

         15  start coming out, you know, a year, year and a half,

         16  two years down the line, which in some people's

         17  frames of mind is not very long, but the landlord

         18  wants his rent every month.

         19                 So, we've got a problem here, we've

         20  got a problem that the bill is impractical. It's

         21  impractical to enforce, it's impractical to live

         22  with, its goals are admirable.

         23                 I mean, I, myself, don't argue the

         24  question is secondhand smoke. The extent of it can

         25  be debated by the experts. But I don't argue that
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          2  point at all. It's just that no bill is passed in a

          3  vacuum. You have to look at the harm it does, as

          4  well as the good it does.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, actually

          6  there's going to be one more question for this panel

          7  from Council Member Gioia, and then we'll have the

          8  next panel that I called a few minutes ago. Thank

          9  you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you,

         11  Madam Chairwoman, I'll be very brief.

         12                 I want to follow up on a question

         13  asked by Council Member McMahon.

         14                 I represent Queens. I'm from Queens

         15  and I represent Woodside and Sunnyside, home to many

         16  small taverns and pubs.

         17                 In fact, when you look at the history

         18  of Queens County. When burials were forbidden in the

         19  Island of Manhattan, cemetaries opened up in Queens,

         20  and two industries sprouted up around the cemetary,

         21  there were florists and there were small taverns.

         22                 My family when they came here 100

         23  years ago, open up a florist, it's still there on

         24  Roosevelt Avenue. And then around them are a number

         25  of small family run, for the most part, pubs and
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          2  taverns. If this law is passed as introduced, would

          3  this be the end of the small tavern in Queens?

          4                 MR. GILLESPIE: In a word, yes. For

          5  most of us, yes.

          6                 MR. WOLF: May I add to that that if

          7  this bill passes as introduced, one has to think

          8  about its impact beyond the bar and restaurant

          9  industry. One has to think about the European and

         10  Asian tourist.

         11                 An European or Asian businessman, who

         12  comes over here to the financial capital of the

         13  world to cement a deal, and then wants to stay on a

         14  few extra days, and doesn't go out and spend that

         15  money, one has to ask themselves if these heavier

         16  smoking Europeans and Asians are going to change the

         17  whole make-up of the tourism industry.

         18                 Now we're talking some real serious

         19  money. We're talking hotels, we're talking shops,

         20  we're talking shopping, we're talking Fifth Avenue,

         21  and that's a big question, because their smoking

         22  habits are different than our. We rely on them. We

         23  know how much of an impact they make from September

         24  11th, okay? I mean, September 11th has hit us all

         25  very hard. It hit me hard, my wife was killed on
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          2  September 11th, okay? So, we know, and we're

          3  fighting to make sure that our neighborhoods aren't

          4  destroyed anymore from the destruction of the World

          5  Trade Center.

          6                 Back in school we learned about the

          7  concept of the economic multiplier. Well, I call the

          8  destruction of the World Trade Center the square

          9  root effect, and it's still happening and it's still

         10  rolling. We haven't seen businesses who have run out

         11  of money yet, or whose landlords haven't thrown them

         12  out yet.

         13                 So, we have to take a look, and the

         14  entire -- the people who come to New York and feel

         15  that they can't smoke because it's a drug addiction,

         16  remember smoking is a drug addiction, and if they

         17  can't smoke, and because we rely on their business,

         18  what is going to happen to more than just the

         19  nightlife industry?

         20                 MR. BOOKMAN: Councilman, very

         21  briefly.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Very briefly.

         23                 MR. BOOKMAN: Even if, and I'm sure

         24  the next panel is going to say all our fears are

         25  unfounded, all the economic numbers are not true,
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          2  everybody is just going to do, you know honky dorie,

          3  we say no, they say yes, the bottom line is that

          4  according to NYC and company, the current economic

          5  climate in the City for our industry is the worst

          6  that it's been in years. Hotel occupancy is down,

          7  tours and numbers are down, employment in eating and

          8  drinking establishments are down. This is a terrible

          9  time to take chances and do experiments.

         10                 We survived for 400 years in this

         11  City, smoking in taverns, I'm sure we could survive

         12  a little bit longer until the economy improves, and

         13  if you want to try and experiment, you don't try it

         14  at the bottom of the economic troubles of the City,

         15  you try it when the City is doing much better. Thank

         16  you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         18                 The five folks that I called before

         19  could come up. Once again that is Mike O'Neal, DJ

         20  Wilson, Carrie Sunday.

         21                 Okay, this is going to be -- this is

         22  the second warning. One more outburst, we're just

         23  going to clear the Chambers. So, I just want to make

         24  sure folks know that. One more outburst, we'll put

         25  the hearing temporarily on hold and clear the
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          2  Chambers.

          3                 So, if those five folks could come

          4  up.

          5                 If these folks could be on deck to be

          6  the panel following this: Peter Grayson, John

          7  Mulvey, Brian Rowan, Marisol -- I can't completely

          8  read the handwriting. You know who you are, okay,

          9  great. And I think it's Page Lipkin. If you folks

         10  could be on deck to be the panel after this.

         11                 If folks have written testimony they

         12  can hand it into the Sergeants they will distribute

         13  it. Otherwise, whoever wants to go first should go

         14  first and just identify yourself for the record.

         15                 If we could have quiet in the

         16  Chambers, please. Okay, who would ever like to start

         17  should go first.

         18                 MR. O'NEAL: Okay. My name is Michael

         19  O'Neal, and I'm sorry it's taken so long to get

         20  here. That was the longest panel I've ever heard.

         21                 I've been in the restaurant business

         22  in New York for over 40 years.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sir, I just want

         24  to say that we put no limit on the questions, so if

         25  this panel goes as long with questions, they'll go
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          2  as long.

          3                 MR. O'NEAL: Fine. I didn't mean to --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, I just want

          5  to be clear there's no time limit set for either

          6  side on the question, so the treatment has been

          7  equal, that has been part of our goal throughout all

          8  of these proceedings, to treat both sides equally.

          9                 MR. O'NEAL: Okay. Thank you.

         10                 Anyway, I love my business and that's

         11  why I'm here today.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: State your name

         13  for the record.

         14                 MR. O'NEAL: I'm sorry. I said it

         15  before. Michael O'Neal, and I've been in the

         16  restaurant business for over 40 years.

         17                 I love my business and that's why I'm

         18  here today. I've testified before this Committee

         19  many times on this subject, but this time it feels a

         20  little different. I believe things can change, I

         21  believe we can win.

         22                 For the first time we have a bill

         23  that is truly fair and does not show favoritism and

         24  it levels the playing field.

         25                 I believe you, the Health Committee,
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          2  and the City Council, have an opportunity to really

          3  make a difference. If you really examine the

          4  opposition, when you see it come before you, it

          5  comes from one place, that's the tobacco industry.

          6  All those arguments have been put into the people's

          7  heads by the tobacco industry. The fears that we're

          8  going to go out of business, there's going to be

          9  people standing on the streets, it's all coming from

         10  the tobacco industry.

         11                 They give money to the ballet, they

         12  give money to the art museums, they give money to

         13  anybody that wants to make them look good.

         14                 You see their tricks on television

         15  every day. They've been giving money to the

         16  restaurant industry for years, we are taking their

         17  money and I believe its time we stopped.

         18                 In the past there were those of us

         19  who did not believe that secondhand smoke is deadly,

         20  but now we know the truth. We've been lied to by the

         21  tobacco lobby for over 50 years, and many people

         22  knew the truth then, but it took time for the truth

         23  to sink in and there's no doubt that secondhand

         24  smoke kills.

         25                 Almost ten years ago California took
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          2  the first bold step and outlawed smoking in the

          3  workplace. We were told that business would plummet

          4  and die. It didn't. Business thrived. Now, five more

          5  states, and soon Delaware, will start in January

          6  2003.

          7                 About eight years ago New York City

          8  outlawed smoking in the dining rooms, in all its

          9  restaurants, and, again, business thrived.

         10                 We have now have a brave new Mayor

         11  who has the well-being and health of the citizens

         12  foremost in his thoughts. He knows that business

         13  will not be harmed in any way, and business will

         14  thrive again.

         15                 For years the restaurant industry has

         16  been held hostage by the tobacco industry, and it is

         17  now time for us to get rid of their influence and do

         18  what we do best, serve healthy food and drink with

         19  great hospitality.

         20                 I congratulate the Mayor and this

         21  Committee for their leadership and this Committee

         22  for its prompt action, and I know that you will do

         23  the right thing, because the time is right and it is

         24  the right thing to do.

         25                 Up until this point we've been
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          2  talking about secondhand smoke, but I think we

          3  should also not forget primary smoke. We should

          4  redouble our efforts to educate the target groups

          5  that the tobacco industry singles out. I mean, those

          6  by the teenagers, the inner-city kids that are the

          7  focus of their advertising, and education is the

          8  answer.

          9                 But those of us whose life has been

         10  touched by cancer, and I'm sure everyone's has, we

         11  must work out the scourge as soon as possible in the

         12  workplace.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         14                 Whoever would like to go next, go

         15  ahead.

         16                 MR. WILSON: Hi. My name is DJ Wilson.

         17  For the last eight years I've been the Tobacco

         18  Control Director at the Massachusetts Municipal

         19  Association, a sister trade association to the New

         20  York Conference of Mayors and the New York State

         21  Association of Counties.

         22                 Of our 351 cities in Massachusetts,

         23  234 have enacted local laws addressing second-hand

         24  smoke exposure, 69 require restaurants and bars to

         25  all be smoke-free.
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          2                 The municipalities in Massachusetts

          3  are moving away from partial bans, especially those

          4  that deal with ventilation because it's been very

          5  difficult.

          6                 A campaign entitled Clean Air Works

          7  is underway to encourage 25 metro Boston cities and

          8  towns, including Boston and Cambridge to amend their

          9  current local measures, to include all work-sites as

         10  being proposed in New York City.

         11                 I believe that the general public and

         12  business owners both overestimate the number of

         13  smoking patrons they have. Out of allegations, and

         14  some of them that we've heard today, that the

         15  sidewalks will be filled with smokers if all

         16  restaurants and bars were to go smoke-free, we

         17  conducted Operation Bar Hop in Boston. It was a

         18  Thursday night in October in Downtown Boston. Teams

         19  of two went in and surveyed 78 liquor license

         20  establishments to count the total number of smokers

         21  that would be otherwise outside at a given time if a

         22  smoking ban were in place.

         23                 The total number of patrons in bars,

         24  or total number of patrons in smoking permitted bar

         25  area of restaurants were also counted.
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          2                 This makes it possible to extrapolate

          3  the number of smokers that would be outside in any

          4  given establishment using the maximum number

          5  indicated on their occupancy permit.

          6                 In the 78 establishments surveyed,

          7  337 patrons were counted as actively smoking out of

          8  4,606, or 7.3 percent. We were surprised by how low

          9  the number was, but it does indicate that a clear

         10  minority of the population smokes, smokers all don't

         11  smoke at once, and sidewalks will not be crowded

         12  with smokers.

         13                 Please remember, many of these

         14  establishments do permit waiting lines to form on

         15  these very same sidewalks, have historically needed

         16  to monitor the public places in front of their

         17  establishments, have historically had to work in

         18  communities about noise levels, and are therefore

         19  capable of patrolling patron traffic on the

         20  sidewalks.

         21                 We do have cities and towns in

         22  Massachusetts that have a lot of bars and

         23  restaurants that are in mixed use buildings, such as

         24  the City of Salem, and we have had no complaints.

         25                 Back in February, we did a randomized
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          2  voter telephone pool, and that was done in the

          3  greater Boston area. It did indicate that a majority

          4  said they would make no difference in how much they

          5  go out to eat, if a place was smoke-free.

          6                 However, it did indicate that while

          7  15 percent said they would go out to a smoke-free

          8  bar less often, 20 percent responded they would go

          9  out more often. So if you go by this quick survey,

         10  you'd find that five percent increase in bar

         11  traffic.

         12                 In the remaining few seconds I have I

         13  just want to indicate that my job has been to go to

         14  public hearings like this across the State of

         15  Massachusetts, and a couple of the same topics do

         16  come up over and over, and I do want to say, New

         17  York City is a destination for a million other

         18  reasons other than coming to smoke. Bostonians do

         19  not come here for a long weekend because they can

         20  smoke more here than at home. They come for a lot of

         21  other reasons, and you will not lose European or

         22  Asian tourism any more than the State of California

         23  ever has.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         25                 You all practiced with a stop watch.
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          2                 Who is next?

          3                 MR. BOUKENKEN: I am next.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

          5                 MR. BOUKENKEN: Madam Chairwoman,

          6  members of the Health Committee, thank you for this

          7  opportunity to testify on behalf of workers and

          8  smoke-free workplaces.

          9                 I am Ahcene Boukenken and I work

         10  about ten years in the hotel industry and this has

         11  been my career, not a job I have held while waiting

         12  for something else to come along.

         13                 I have enjoyed many of the benefits

         14  of most full-time jobs. Good health care, coverage,

         15  a good salary, a 401K, greater co-workers.

         16                 Unfortunately, because of heavy, on

         17  the job exposure to secondhand smoke, I have also

         18  suffered chronic illnesses, including sinus

         19  infection, the whole ear; bronchitis, and I have

         20  thick file medical, by request I will give you.

         21                 I have watched my co-worker

         22  experience breathing difficulty, dizziness and

         23  nausea at work from the combination of heavy

         24  cigarette and cigar smoke in the air. Some nights

         25  are worse than others. There are many nights when we
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          2  all have to step outside whenever possible, just to

          3  breathe.

          4                 People worry about the smoker who

          5  will have to step outside to smoke if bars become

          6  smoke-free. Has anyone thought of the worker who are

          7  stepping outside every night, just to breathe?

          8                 I'm here because of the heavy

          9  exposure to secondhand smoke and free smoking

         10  environment. I suffer.

         11                 My sinus condition is getting so

         12  severe that I wonder how long I will be able to

         13  continue to work under this condition.

         14                 My doctor tell me that my job is the

         15  cause of my chronic sinuses condition, and that I

         16  may have to leave my job to cure the condition, if

         17  the air quality on the job doesn't change.

         18                 My co-worker and I have talked to the

         19  management about the problem caused by secondhand

         20  smoke, why the very expensive ventilation system was

         21  installed - it doesn't help. It doesn't help. It is

         22  not enough to remove the enormous amount of smoke in

         23  the air, or it breaks down all the time. Leaving the

         24  workers stuck with breathing the poisonous air.

         25                 Anyway, on this point the management
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          2  get angry when we talk or tell them about the

          3  problem.

          4                 I came to this country believing the

          5  equal opportunity, yet I wonder why health is not

          6  protected as well as other occupation. Is my job not

          7  really an important job to others?

          8                 Please help me, along with my

          9  co-workers, so we don't lose our jobs simply for

         10  requiring breathing air.

         11                 If you do your work and pass laws to

         12  help all worker, we don't have to fight with our

         13  employees for something that should be everyone's

         14  basic right.

         15                 I believe in this country, I believe

         16  in you, and the New York City Council. Please

         17  support the Smoke-free Workplace Act of 2002.

         18  Protect the health of all worker, all children,

         19  equal end or the low. Allow me to do my job without

         20  constant illness and without risking our help.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         23                 MR. BOUKENKEN: Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Susan, are you

         25  next?
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          2                 MS. O'BRIEN: Okay. I'm Susan O'Brien.

          3  I represent NYCOSH, which is the New York Committee

          4  for Occupational Safety and Health.

          5                 We're a non-profit organization that

          6  provides training, technical assistance and advocacy

          7  to unoccupational safety and health issues to

          8  workers throughout New York State.

          9                 We are a membership organization

         10  comprised of over 250 local unions, hundreds of

         11  physicians, attorneys, scientists, public health

         12  advocates of all types.

         13                 We believe that workers have a right

         14  to a safe and healthy workplace and we are therefore

         15  in support of passage Intro. 256.

         16                 We are specifically concerned about

         17  bartenders, food service workers and casino

         18  employees who are at increased risk due to workplace

         19  exposure.

         20                 Levels of secondhand smoke in

         21  restaurants are twice as high as in offices and one

         22  and a half times higher than in homes where more

         23  than one family member smokes.

         24                 Levels of secondhand smoke in bars

         25  are over four times higher than in offices or in
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          2  smoking homes.

          3                 Food service workers exposed to

          4  secondhand smoke suffer a 50 percent higher rate of

          5  lung cancer and have also been found to be at

          6  increase for lung cancer.

          7                 Tobacco smoke consists of more than

          8  4,700 identified substances, including poisons, and

          9  irritants such as carbon monoxide, formaldehyde and

         10  hydrogen cyanide.  It contains at least 43 noted

         11  suspected carcinogens, cancer-causing agents,

         12  including benzene and nickel.

         13                 The EPA has classified secondhand

         14  tobacco smoke as a group A carcinogen, a designation

         15  applied to only 15 other pollutants, such as

         16  asbestos and benzene. There is no known safe level

         17  of exposure to any carcinogen.

         18                 We believe the best way to protect

         19  exposed workers is to eliminate smoking in indoor

         20  environments. Reducing exposure to ventilation, as

         21  often mentioned, is a solution. But according to a

         22  panel of scientists convened by OSHA in 1998, this

         23  approach is difficult to implement, expensive and

         24  has not been shown to be effective.

         25                 Dilution ventilation, the typical
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          2  system used in virtually all mechanically

          3  ventilation buildings has been shown to be

          4  impractical in removing secondhand smoke as the

          5  airflow rates would have to be increased over 250

          6  times the typical airflow rate, even if smokers are

          7  physically removed to another space, if they share

          8  the same ventilation system, non-smokers will still

          9  be exposed.

         10                 And other new technology called

         11  displacement ventilation has seemed promising, but

         12  there appears to be no data to support its use, it's

         13  very expensive and would require major retrofitting

         14  of existing ventilation systems.

         15                 Ventilated ashtrays were also

         16  examined and found to be ineffective in capturing

         17  all secondhand smoke and their effectiveness was too

         18  reliant upon cooperation by the smoker.

         19                 There are no OSHA or EPA regulations

         20  dealing with the indoor air environment and any

         21  building codes that do exist do not cover all

         22  buildings and are rarely enforced.

         23                 As a result, most workplaces

         24  currently have substandard ventilation systems and

         25  we do not expect this situation to improve any time
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          2  soon.

          3                 Finally speaking, our member unions

          4  are concerned that medical bills for treating

          5  tobacco-related illnesses are often footed by

          6  contractual and negotiated medical plans. Treating

          7  smokers and non-smokers affected by secondhand smoke

          8  consumed ten percent --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Susan, can you sum

         10  up, please.

         11                 MS. O'BRIEN: I urge the Council to

         12  pass Intro. 256 to protect those workers whose help

         13  is jeopardized by simply showing up for work every

         14  day.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. I think

         16  there's one more on this panel? You haven't gone

         17  yet, right? If the light is off, the mic is on.

         18                 MS. SUNDAY: Madam Chairwoman, and

         19  members of the Health Committee, thank you for this

         20  opportunity to testify on behalf of workers in

         21  smoke-free workplaces.

         22                 My name is Carrie Sunday and I'm an

         23  artist and a waitress at a large midtown hotel bar.

         24                 Let me first begin by saying that I

         25  don't just like my job, I love my job. The people I
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          2  work with have become my family, and I have grown

          3  very close to many of our patrons over the past

          4  seven years that I have been employed.

          5                 I have full health benefits, paid

          6  vacations, and I make phenomenal money. This is not

          7  the kind of job that one can just leave and easily

          8  find a replacement, and, quite frankly, I don't want

          9  to have to. Unfortunately, because of the degree of

         10  secondhand smoke, I am forced to inhale during a

         11  normal shift, I am now forced to choose between my

         12  job and my health.

         13                 Each night the combined cigarette and

         14  cigar smoke where I work is so thick that I am

         15  forced to take frequent breaks to go outside for

         16  fresh air.

         17                 Ninety percent of the time when I

         18  work, I wake up the next morning, this morning

         19  included, with a smoke hangover, which is similar to

         20  an alcohol hangover, but in addition to the headache

         21  and nausea, I have sharp pain in my lungs and chest,

         22  shortness of breath and dryness in my eyes.

         23                 During a typical evening I experience

         24  eye irritation, dizziness, throat irritation,

         25  shortness of breath and heaviness in the chest.
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          2                 My co-workers and I use throat

          3  lozenges throughout the evening simply to survive

          4  the shift. The smokier the evening, the worse the

          5  symptoms. I am under the care of a dermatologist for

          6  my skin rashes, my physician attributes to my

          7  sensitivity to smoke and I am on a prescription

          8  inhaler as are two of my other co-workers.

          9                 On February 2nd, 2002, on a very

         10  smokey night at my job, at 6:40 p.m. I was sent to

         11  the emergency room at St. Luke's Roosevelt Hospital

         12  for symptoms of smoke inhalation.

         13                 I had difficulty breathing, dizziness

         14  and severe headaches, as well as pain in my lungs.

         15  After the doctor examined my lungs, I was told that

         16  if I continued to work in a smoke friendly

         17  establishment, I would surely develop serious health

         18  problems and possible death.

         19                 When I asked the doctor if I could

         20  lessen my shift, my hours of work, he said

         21  absolutely not, and that if I were him, he wouldn't

         22  spend another day at my job.

         23                 I am considered to be one of the

         24  luckier ones. My hotel has installed at $100,000

         25  ventilation system, but with all the smoke, it makes

                                                            100

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  no difference at all. You would need a whirlwind of

          3  ventilation to keep the room at sufficient breathing

          4  levels. Sufficient meaning adequate according to

          5  OSHA, not acceptable to workers.

          6                 The only acceptable breathing level

          7  is the ability to breathe 100 percent smoke-free

          8  air.

          9                 I am angry that my profession is

         10  allowed subjugation to breathable poison day in and

         11  day out on the job without protection. Even people

         12  in the stewarding department of my hotel are

         13  provided proper gear when handling proper chemicals,

         14  even one as common as window cleaner.

         15                 We need your help and we need it now,

         16  without a Citywide workplace ban, more than 1

         17  million New York City workers are unprotected and

         18  left to fend for themselves, and we look to you and

         19  the Mayor of New York City and City Council for our

         20  protection.

         21                 I just want to say off my speech that

         22  I woke up this morning, and I have the worst sore

         23  throat, I have a terrible pain in my sinus, I have

         24  congestion in my chest, shortness of breath, I'm on

         25  an inhaler three times today. This is what it does,
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          2  this is the immediate effect. And I've been there

          3  ten years, so we're talking immediate and long term.

          4                 I've been there almost ten years, so

          5  they're talking 20 years I'm going to have to see

          6  these effects. This is what I see now, I can't

          7  imagine what I'm going to look like in ten years.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          9                 Dr. Wilson.

         10                 MR. WILSON: I'm not a doctor.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You're not a

         12  doctor? Mr. Wilson. But I bet your mother always

         13  wanted you to be one, right?

         14                 Could you provide to the Council, and

         15  again staff could give you the address as soon as

         16  you finish, some of the back-up on the data that you

         17  kind of went through.

         18                 MR. WILSON: I have it with me.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Oh, you do.

         20  Terrific.

         21                 Okay, thank you very much. This is a

         22  question for both of the workers who spoke. Could

         23  you just tell us a little bit more about some of the

         24  health effects that you feel that you suffered, or

         25  even perhaps more helpful, what doctors have told
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          2  you about why it is that you have the -- one, what

          3  are the conditions that you presently are suffering

          4  from? And, two, what have doctors said about why you

          5  have those conditions? You just have them because

          6  you have them? I mean, you've always had them, you

          7  had allergies since you were a kid, or there's

          8  something that has just come on. But I ask that

          9  question because people might be saying, well, she

         10  always had that and she's just coming today or he's

         11  coming today saying that he has asthma because of

         12  smoking, but it's not really the case. Whoever would

         13  like to go first.

         14                 MR. BOUKENKEN: Yes, I have

         15  bronchitis. It was developed by secondhand. I don't

         16  smoke, and secondhand smoke. I get bronchitis, I go

         17  to my doctor and he told me that it's due to

         18  smoking, oh, yeah, where do you work? And you have

         19  two choices, you can leave your job, and I have

         20  choice, you know.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You don't have a

         22  history of bronchitis?

         23                 MR. BOUKENKEN: No, since I start

         24  working in hotel, the first year, for ten years

         25  before that I never had. I was good health, I never
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          2  had like bronchitis or sinuses. Nothing I didn't

          3  have, nothing.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And your doctor

          5  has specifically said that --

          6                 MR. BOUKENKEN: Yes, I have all

          7  papers. I mean, I don't have with me but of course I

          8  will give you all the papers you look at in my file.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 MR. BOUKENKEN: You're welcome.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: All right.

         13                 MS. SUNDAY: I don't have asthma. I

         14  never had asthma. I developed asthma over the past

         15  five years.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Can you speak up a

         17  little.

         18                 MS. SUNDAY: I have never had asthma.

         19  I developed asthma over the past five years, when I

         20  went to the emergency room he basically told me I

         21  should not return, he gave me I should not return to

         22  work.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: The doctor?

         24                 MS. SUNDAY: The doctor. And I said I

         25  have to, this is my job, and I like my job, I don't
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          2  want to have to choose. If I lit up a cigarette in

          3  here, people would be appalled, and you're just

          4  trying to do your job, and the sickness, I feel sick

          5  constantly, and I'm sick of being sick. I'm sick of

          6  feeling like this all the time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And you were

          8  diagnosed with asthma when?

          9                 MS. SUNDAY: Asthma about five years

         10  ago.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You never had it

         12  as a child?

         13                 MS. SUNDAY: Not only that, I wake up

         14  every morning, I sound like a man. My voice is so

         15  deep I sound like a man. Because it kills your

         16  vocal, everything in your throat is just destroyed.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         18  Monserrate has a question.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you

         20  very much, Madam Chair.

         21                 I don't know, perhaps the members of

         22  the New York Committee for Occupational Safety and

         23  Health -- that's you, right? Are there other

         24  industries where the work environment also is as

         25  dangerous, like say painters, who are using
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          2  different kind of chemicals and so forth? Have you

          3  done any studies on those industries?

          4                 MS. O'BRIEN: While there certainly

          5  are other industries that have dangerous working

          6  conditions, I mean painters are certainly one of

          7  them. I mean, if we're talking about secondhand

          8  smoke being a carcinogen, there are a number of

          9  carcinogens that are regulated by OSHA, which OSHA

         10  is the federal agency that regulates the workplace

         11  health and safety conditions, and, so, as this woman

         12  mentioned there may be people in her hotel, for

         13  example, that are exposed to certain chemicals that

         14  have OSHA requirements for limits on their exposure

         15  in the workplace, and so those people might be given

         16  respiratory gear to wear or might be told they have

         17  to limit their exposure, or the employer might have

         18  to substitute some other kind of safer device, but

         19  there are plenty of other chemicals and I could

         20  certainly provide you with all kinds of data that I

         21  don't have with me at the moment, on other

         22  industries, if you wish.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Yes, I

         24  think that would be interesting to correlate the

         25  data.
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          2                 MS. O'BRIEN: But not everything is

          3  regulated exactly the way it should be, but, yes,

          4  there are plenty.

          5                 MS. SUNDAY: Can I say something also

          6  to that?

          7                 I use paints, I'm an artist. And when

          8  I spray my paintings with a UV protectant, it's a

          9  carcinogen, I think it's a cancer-causing chemical,

         10  I go outside on my roof, because I wouldn't even let

         11  my dogs inhale something like that, and I would

         12  never be responsible for hurting something because

         13  I'm spraying a painting or it's my job to do

         14  something like that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay. And

         16  a question for this gentleman here. In your

         17  testimony you spoke about your concern with having

         18  to leave your job; are you concerned that this bill,

         19  as presently presented and introduced goes into

         20  effect that your job wouldn't be jeopardized? You

         21  work in a cigar bar, right?

         22                 MR. BOUKENKEN: Yes, I believe it

         23  would be jeopardized.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So if this

         25  law went into effect, the ban went into effect,
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          2  you're saying your job would be jeopardized?

          3                 MR. BOUKENKEN: If you pass the no

          4  smoking, then, no, all things would be really

          5  different then.

          6                 We would have a hard time with,

          7  management is always, you know, each time we talk

          8  about the smoking, like the smoking and we have

          9  always hard time --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Maybe for

         11  clarity sake, if this law outlawed cigarettes or

         12  cigar smoking, where you work, would you be

         13  concerned that that place would go out of business?

         14                 MR. BOUKENKEN: No, I don't think so,

         15  because you know, they sell the alcohol, you know,

         16  more than cigar. So, I don't think it's an issue

         17  with cigar. No, I don't think so.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay,

         19  thank you.

         20                 MR. BOUKENKEN: There's a lot people,

         21  you know, they talk. I hear a lot of customers who

         22  come, and they talk about like smoke in the area and

         23  they say it's not issue. A lot of people, they are

         24  for it, you know, to ban the smoking in the area.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. BOUKENKEN: Because this is like

          3  health issue.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Mr. O'Neal, could

          5  you comment a little bit on, you know, numerous

          6  people who are involved in the restaurant or

          7  nightlife or bars, taverns, business, have raised

          8  the concern that this will have negative economic

          9  impact, and they've also raised the concern that

         10  those of us who are supporters of this proposal,

         11  when we say but it hasn't in California, that's not

         12  necessarily relevant because those were better

         13  economic times, et cetera. Could you just, as

         14  someone who is very much in the business, respond to

         15  that?

         16                 MR. O'NEAL: My experience has been

         17  that in every state, every City that this has been

         18  in effect, there have been no economic consequences.

         19  I've always believed that people go out to dine and

         20  have a good time, but they don't go out to smoke.

         21  These Asian people won't come here, if they fly 13,

         22  14 hours without a cigarette, I don't understand? I

         23  mean, why can't someone come to a restaurant for an

         24  hour or two or to a dance, or whatever people do in

         25  the nightlife thing, I don't know, I'm sorry I'm not
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          2  in that anymore. But my point is, I don't believe

          3  people go out to smoke, and they won't go out less.

          4  I hope people will stop smoking, quite frankly, I'd

          5  like for that to happen, but that's an educational

          6  process, and if you look at what's happened over the

          7  last, I don't know, 15 years, they have fewer and

          8  fewer people smoke.

          9                 When my mother was a smoker and she

         10  died of cancer, there were probably 30 or 40 percent

         11  of people smoked in those days, nobody knew it was

         12  bad, but now we know, so only 25 percent of the

         13  people smoke and I hope it goes down to ten, to

         14  five.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You run

         16  restaurants, right?

         17                 MR. O'NEAL: Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Tell me what you

         19  saw, because certainly my colleague Council Member

         20  Oddo raised this point at the first hearing, you

         21  know, I wasn't a Council member then, but in, you

         22  know, '94 and '95 when the bill was passed the first

         23  time, you know, people came to the Council and said

         24  everything will close, you know what I mean?

         25                 MR. O'NEAL: The same people --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: All restaurants

          3  are going to shut down, and that did not come to

          4  pass, so tell me a little bit about what you saw as

          5  a result -- what was the economic impact you saw as

          6  a result of the '95 law, because your establishment

          7  is over 35, so you were affected.

          8                 MR. O'NEAL: Yes, of course. I don't

          9  know any restaurants under 35 seats, quite frankly,

         10  not any on the west side of Manhattan anyway.

         11                 It's really -- if you think 75

         12  percent of the people don't smoke, or 77 percent of

         13  the people don't smoke, those people have said

         14  they'll go out more often, and if the 25 percent or

         15  22 percent don't go out as often, that's fewer

         16  people. But I believe you look at the statistics,

         17  there will be more people going out.

         18                 My experience was that people went

         19  out more. People thanked me. People thanked me. I

         20  remember people -- there are doctors and customers

         21  going to Lincoln Center now that sit at my bar and

         22  the new bar they won't do that, I'm under renovation

         23  right now, but when I reopen there will be no

         24  smoking no matter what the law is.

         25                 But I'm convinced that people will
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          2  come and sit at my bar, and they'll continue to do

          3  business. I don't think business will fall off. That

          4  fear has been put in heads by the tobacco industry,

          5  you've got to understand that. It's not real.

          6                 You look at the states and the cities

          7  that have put in no smoking, businesses remain the

          8  same and sometimes have gotten better.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And just before I

         10  call on Council Member Stewart, so you're new, when

         11  you finish renovations you're going to be no smoking

         12  regardless of what the Council and the Mayor do or

         13  don't do.

         14                 MR. O'NEAL: Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, thank you.

         16                 Council Member Stewart.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         18  Madam Chair.

         19                 I want to thank you all for your

         20  testimony, but I have a question.

         21                 How do you answer the critic who says

         22  OSHA regulates many of the workplace problems and

         23  safety, and they have not touched anything as far as

         24  the cigarettes and secondhand smoke is concerned.

         25                 They haven't done anything as far as
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          2  regulation is concerned; how do you answer that?

          3                 MR. O'NEAL: You're a politician. You

          4  know what that's about. I mean, I don't have to tell

          5  you.

          6                 The State of North Carolina,

          7  Virginia, you know they've got industries that

          8  depend on tobacco. OSHA is not going to handle that.

          9  Until the people get more educated and you begin to

         10  realize that secondhand smoke is harmful. It's

         11  political. It has nothing to do with real, the real

         12  world.

         13                 MR. WILSON: We in Massachusetts

         14  learned to have a local level tobacco control

         15  program, because --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Is your mic on?

         17  The light should be off.

         18                 MR. WILSON: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         20                 MR. WILSON: Where we get the best

         21  enforcement, where we get the best crafted

         22  regulation for the City or town being

         23  representative.

         24                 Also, as you climb the levels of

         25  government, that's when the tobacco industry becomes
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          2  more and more prevalent.

          3                 Our tobacco lobbyists in Boston

          4  working their magic for state laws, but they don't

          5  show up at the local level. So, that's why we've

          6  done very well in Mass just working at the local

          7  level.

          8                 When you get up to the US Congress,

          9  very difficult to be fighting the tobacco industry,

         10  or OSHA or any other agency within the federal

         11  government.

         12                 MS. O'BRIEN: I don't think it's

         13  really good practice to use OSHA as the measure of,

         14  you know, good sound practice in the workplace in

         15  terms of occupational health, because all of the

         16  regulations that OSHA passes go through a very

         17  lengthy process that is completely politically

         18  motivated, and our current administration and the

         19  current republican administration has made it as

         20  difficult as possible to get any kind of regulatory

         21  change passed.

         22                 For example, and this is not even

         23  talking about the Republican Administration, but for

         24  example, there is a regulation on the books

         25  protecting workers who enter what's referred to as
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          2  confined spaces. That means people who have to go

          3  into chemical tanks to clean the inside of them.

          4  Incredibly dangerous. Three-hundred people a year

          5  were being killed. It took OSHA 17 years to pass

          6  that regulation, because of political struggle back

          7  and forth, and all of the paperwork act requirements

          8  and small business regulatory, there's a million

          9  regulatory levels that have to be gone through. It

         10  doesn't mean it shouldn't be done, it just means

         11  there's a lot of obstacles.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         13  Oddo just mentioned that there were democrats in the

         14  Congress for 17 years, but I just told him to, oh,

         15  be quiet.

         16                 MS. O'BRIEN: That's not what I meant.

         17                 Council Member Monserrate had another

         18  follow-up question, and than Council Member Vann.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you,

         20  Madam Chair.

         21                 I have a question, I don't know

         22  whether there is anyone from the Bingo industry, but

         23  recently I was at a Bingo hall on Northern Boulevard

         24  and 82nd Street, and there are probably about 100

         25  customers there playing Bingo, predominantly senior
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          2  citizens, 70, 80 years old, and I did a poll,

          3  obviously there was a huge pot of smoke. Smoking

          4  bothers me, and I do have asthma, and I have

          5  bronchitis, so I'm not supportive of smoking in any

          6  way, but when I went to each one of them and asked

          7  each one of them, if they didn't allow you to smoke

          8  here, would you come here? 90 percent of them told

          9  me no.

         10                 And that's not a scientific poll,

         11  purely anecdotal based on 100 people in a Bingo hall

         12  in the middle of Jackson Heights, Queens, who said

         13  to me that they will not go there and play Bingo

         14  anymore if they can't smoke their cigarettes. And no

         15  one is changing their mind, most of them are 70, 80

         16  years old.

         17                 So, I just wanted to, I heard some of

         18  your concerns, and I heard some of the concerns of

         19  two employees that are in places where there's

         20  cigarette smoking, how do we find a solution here

         21  where we can still have businesses that are allowed

         22  to continue to thrive and protect workers health

         23  rights?

         24                 MS. SUNDAY: Do they serve alcohol and

         25  food in the Bingo hall?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: They serve

          3  soft drinks, food.

          4                 MS. SUNDAY: So these people do go out

          5  to play Bingo and to smoke?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

          7                 MS. SUNDAY: I would love to play

          8  Bingo, but quite frankly, I think it's too smokey. I

          9  went with my grandmother once in Brooklyn, and I

         10  almost died.

         11                 But, you know, I think that those

         12  people are 80 years old, like my grandmother who

         13  smoked for 50 years, cancer twice, and, yes, you may

         14  not change their mind, but there might be people

         15  that want to play Bingo, 80 years old, that don't go

         16  because they're ill, or they're afraid of getting

         17  ill, becoming ill. I mean, you never know, unless

         18  you serve every 80 year old, whether they would play

         19  Bingo if they're smoking or not smoking.

         20                 MR. WILSON: I can tell you in Boston

         21  currently the regulation draft that is being

         22  considered in Boston does include Bingo halls

         23  because it is a public place.

         24                 We currently have a dozen cities and

         25  towns that do ban smoking in Bingo halls because
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          2  they are open to the public.

          3                 Two other notes I'll throw out there

          4  for you. One of the things we found great difficulty

          5  dealing in Bingo Halls that are in parochial

          6  schools, we've asked help from the Archdiocese in

          7  Boston, they've offered no assistance, because it is

          8  those places that the next morning are going to be

          9  the places where the kids are doing the sit-ups the

         10  night before was the gymnasium used for Bingo.

         11                 The other thing that we currently run

         12  into is that most Bingos are losing money anyways,

         13  because of casinos, Foxwoods, and on-line betting,

         14  and you may find the same thing here.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Well, in

         16  the City of New York there's no casinos currently.

         17                 MR. WILSON: Well, Connecticut, but

         18  when people go to gamble, $500 as compared to $5,000

         19  is Foxwoods. Getting on a bus and going to Foxwoods.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: My concern

         21  is that these 90 or 100 seniors that frequent this

         22  Bingo hall several times a week wouldn't go there,

         23  wouldn't congregate there any longer because there's

         24  no smoking, and there's nothing currently that

         25  prevents smoke-free Bingo.
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          2                 MR. WILSON: Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: If

          4  somebody wanted to go and open a smoke-free Bingo

          5  hall, like the gentleman wants to open up a

          6  smoke-free bar, which is nothing in the law that

          7  prevents it, purely be someone's choice to go to a

          8  smoke-free or a non.

          9                 MR. WILSON: Right. My guesstimation

         10  is that if there's no other place for them to go,

         11  they'll still go, because the only game in town.

         12                 The problem we do run into in

         13  Massachusetts, those smoke-free Bingos in cities and

         14  towns in Massachussets that goes by the local level,

         15  you can drive for three minutes and be outside the

         16  cities and towns because they're physically small.

         17  So, we have had incidences where smoke-free Bingos

         18  have gone out of business, but, you know, it's hard

         19  to parse out the Foxwoods casino part of that. And

         20  these people may be going to neighboring cities and

         21  towns that do allow it, but if all of New York City

         22  had smoke-free Bingos, I don't know if there would

         23  be any other place for them to go.

         24                 MR. O'NEAL: And I believe they would

         25  come.
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          2                 MS. O'BRIEN: Yes, I do too.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: The final question

          5  for this panel I believe will be from Council Member

          6  McMahon, and the folks I announced to be on deck

          7  should be ready.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

          9  Madam Chairwoman.

         10                 I'm sorry, I forgot your name.

         11                 MS. SUNDAY: Oh, Carrie.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Carrie. You

         13  indicated that where you work they installed a

         14  ventilation system; was that recently or when was

         15  that?

         16                 MS. SUNDAY: It go so bad, we had been

         17  open for ten years, and it got so bad in there that

         18  we couldn't work. We installed it about two years

         19  after we opened, I think about two years after we

         20  opened, about seven years ago.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Have you had

         22  any relief?

         23                 MS. SUNDAY: Not one ounce of relief.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: What's the

         25  type of place that you work in?
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          2                 MS. SUNDAY: Type? It's a hotel bar. I

          3  think it has 40-foot ceilings. It's as big as this

          4  room.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: It's a large

          6  facility. And the clientele who come there, are they

          7  mostly hotel guests, are they neighborhood regulars?

          8  How would you describe them?

          9                 MS. SUNDAY: There's a lot of

         10  neighborhood regulars. I'd say 90 percent of our

         11  clientele are neighborhood people who live in the

         12  area. And there's also, obviously, a large clientele

         13  from the hotel.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: That come

         15  from the hotel?

         16                 MS. SUNDAY: Yes. Japan especially,

         17  Europe. Huge European clientele.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And can you

         19  say who smokes more than others, or everybody seems

         20  to smoke?

         21                 MS. SUNDAY: It depends. It depends.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Hard to say.

         23                 Mr. O'Neal, what type of business do

         24  you own again? I'm sorry.

         25                 MR. O'NEAL: I have a restaurant. A

                                                            121

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  large restaurant.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Does it have

          4  a bar as well?

          5                 MR. O'NEAL: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Or just

          7  primarily a restaurant?

          8                 MR. O'NEAL: Thirty percent of my

          9  business, 35 percent is liquor, and I'd say probably

         10  half of that sit at the bar, so large.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: It's a large

         12  facility?

         13                 MR. O'NEAL: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you all very

         16  much.

         17                 Next we're going to hear from Peter

         18  Grayson, John Mulvey, Brian Rowan, Marisol Chaney, I

         19  think it is, and Page Limpkin.

         20                 They'll be followed, the panel after

         21  this one I just called will be Peter Slocom, Joe

         22  Wachs, Jessica Heald, Joe Weaver, and I don't know

         23  if the representative from Local 802 is here. If you

         24  are here, if you could come over to the

         25  Sergeant-At-Arms' table to let us know you're here.
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          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 Just folks, this is the second panel

          4  in opposition. The panel to be on deck that I just

          5  called would be the final panel in support, which

          6  will be followed by the final panel in opposition

          7  and then we will go to calling in a pro/con manner

          8  from the slips that people had signed when they

          9  arrived.

         10                 If we could get quiet in the

         11  Chambers, please, for this panel? And, again,

         12  whatever order you'd like to go in, just state your

         13  name when you start.

         14                 MR. ROHAN: My name is Brian Rohan,

         15  I'm here, I'm a bartender here in New York and I

         16  also work with the United Restaurant and Liquor

         17  Dealers Association.

         18                 I was working last night and I don't

         19  have a cough today.

         20                 I want to address some of the issues

         21  that were brought up today. Number one, Ireland. I

         22  lived in Ireland as a kid and I lived there as

         23  recently as last year, and I'm very in touch with

         24  what's going on over there, and I want to tell the

         25  Mayor and tell his person who he flew in here today
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          2  from Ottawa, that Ireland is not considering going

          3  smoke-free. There's a gross misinterpretation of

          4  what is going on over there.

          5                 They are entertaining the notion of

          6  passing a bill which would set the smoking

          7  regulations over there on par with what we had with

          8  the 1995 legislation. That is a very fair solution,

          9  which would separate people who are smoking from

         10  people who are eating.

         11                 So, if someone gets up here from

         12  Ottawa telling you that Ireland is going smoke-free,

         13  that's just not true.

         14                 Secondly, Florida. That's another

         15  place that's been in the news recently.

         16                 Florida last week passed a referendum

         17  which does, another worthy piece of legislation,

         18  that is it separates once again, eaters from

         19  smokers. It allows smoking in taverns in Florida,

         20  it's a piece of legislation that we would love to

         21  see here in New York. It's a pity we don't have the

         22  same respect for democracy that Florida has, that's

         23  pretty ironic considering the election two years

         24  ago, but here we have a situation where they

         25  democratically elected to pass this legislation, and
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          2  it works, it provides choice for everyone.

          3                 Next stop, Ottawa. Ottawa, I think

          4  sounds like a place that would be perfect for Mayor

          5  Bloomberg. The government there threatened

          6  businesses with $25,000 fines, threatened them with

          7  jail time if they didn't adhere to the smoking

          8  legislation, and furthermore, they used $35,000 of

          9  taxpayer funds to set up a snitch line where anyone

         10  could call and snitch on a business that is having

         11  smoking. You could even use that line to call and

         12  report on a business of a competitor down the road,

         13  if you so wished.

         14                 Is this the kind of snitch culture

         15  that we want in New York? That's what I would like

         16  to ask.

         17                 When we sat here last time, about a

         18  month ago, one of the prize witnesses for the Mayor

         19  was a woman named Judith Joyce. Judith Joyce runs

         20  the Cornelius Street Cafe in the West Village.

         21                 The Cornelius Street Cafe is not

         22  smoke-free and it could go smoke-free in the

         23  morning, yet it does not, and why not? Because they

         24  realize, just like every other bar realizes, there's

         25  no market for it. That New York is a place that
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          2  should offer choice.

          3                 Mrs. Joyce got up here and says that

          4  businesses have nothing to fear by going smoke-free,

          5  she's being hypocritical because she refuses to go

          6  smoke-free herself.

          7                 I just want to finish a little bit

          8  about myself. I am a bartender. Like I said, my

          9  father was a bartender, and I grew up working in

         10  bars for a lot of my life. I've never been a smoker,

         11  and I think it's important that the Council realize

         12  the role that bars in neighborhood taverns play in

         13  their communities, we support the Little League

         14  teams, the softball teams and the Cubscouts, et

         15  cetera, and when we mess with the relationship

         16  between neighborhood taverns and communities, we

         17  break down an important part of the social fabric

         18  that makes New York City the greatest City on earth.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         20                 The next witness from the panel.

         21                 MS. CHIONY: Hi. Good afternoon. My

         22  name is Marisol Chiony, and I'm a cocktail waitress

         23  and bartender in two very high-volume bars in New

         24  York. I am here to speak against the ban of all

         25  cigarette smoking in bars and clubs. This will
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          2  seriously hurt my income, since my customers will

          3  repeatedly be leaving the bar to go outside, so they

          4  won't buy a lot of drinks and won't be tipping.

          5                 This cannot be prevented, because to

          6  my eye, a large majority smoke. The concept of going

          7  out and socializing with a couple of drinks, having

          8  fun and hanging out will not be there, since half of

          9  the party will be outside smoking, and it's only

         10  common sense that they are outside, or when they're

         11  outside they will disturb neighbors.

         12                 The fact that passive smoking can

         13  damage a person's health is well known, but it is my

         14  choice to work in this environment and I'm healthy.

         15                 I could have worked in a restaurant

         16  with no smoking, but the hours and potential income

         17  in bars, clubs, made it much more important for me.

         18                 I paid my own way through college and

         19  pay back a large student loan through my bartending

         20  job.

         21                 I'm sure that with a significant pay

         22  cut, this would not have been possible.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         25                 MS. LAMPKIN: Hi. My name is Page
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          2  Lampkin. I'm also a cocktail waitress and bartender

          3  in a local club.

          4                 I am by no means a proponent of

          5  smokers' rights. In fact, when smoking was allowed

          6  on airplanes I was always the one saying why don't

          7  they just put them in the front because when the

          8  plain crashes the nose goes down first.

          9                 I don't like having smoke blown in my

         10  face, I don't like them ashing on my floor. However,

         11  what I really, really do like is their money.

         12                 These people who are on a continual

         13  basis inhaling these toxins are also the same people

         14  who come to my club and are willing to spend over

         15  $1,000 on two bottles of vodka. In a sense my

         16  livelihood is completely dependent on these people's

         17  dementia. So, I, in no way, shape or form, want to

         18  not have them in my club. I don't want to deter them

         19  from my club. As a matter of fact, I try to

         20  cultivate them as often as I possibly can.

         21                 Herein lies the problem. I don't

         22  necessarily like breathing as much smoke as well as

         23  other non-smokers do. I am a non-smoker. So, what I

         24  would propose, instead of this rather overzealous

         25  attempt to create non-smoking in bars and whatever,
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          2  increase quality of life, is to perhaps look at it

          3  in a more -- look at it more closely and instead of

          4  just saying this is what we're going to do, we're

          5  going to ban smoking everywhere, say, okay, perhaps

          6  what we need to do is our first step is, stricter

          7  regulations on ventilation policies, and actual

          8  enforcing the regulations and the policies that we

          9  have, instead of just saying, okay this is what you

         10  have to have and nobody turns on their ventilation

         11  units. It doesn't work unless you turn it on.

         12                 You know, as one of the other

         13  gentlemen had said before, we are not Ottawa, we are

         14  not Salem, we are not San Francisco. We are New York

         15  City. Some of the fundamental differences between

         16  those places and us are the fact that they live here

         17  and go to fun here. We live in fun.

         18                 So, as one of the owners of Lotus had

         19  said earlier, you can't have a bunch of people that

         20  are in a club and tell them they can't smoke when

         21  you have a couple of hundred people in the club, and

         22  say, okay, now you gotta go outside if you want to

         23  smoke a cigarette, because you're going to have lots

         24  of noise. It just doesn't seem to make any sense.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. GRAYSON: My name is Peter

          3  Grayson, from Freshway Air, we provide commercial

          4  air cleaning services for the greater metropolitan

          5  area. We believe the intent and the objectives of

          6  the proposed smoking ban are correct and well

          7  founded; however, with the implementation of

          8  measurable standards for indoor air quality that can

          9  be regulated and enforced, the City can more

         10  effectively and economically guarantee these workers

         11  a healthy environment in their places of employment.

         12                 We're proposing an extremely viable

         13  solution to the New York City smoking ban debate,

         14  which is a proposal for enforceable clean air

         15  standards. Goes to protect the health of the

         16  hospitality industry workers and patrons without

         17  subjecting New York City's bars and restaurants to

         18  economically harmful exclusion.

         19                 Proper air filtration, using similar

         20  principles as waste incinerate (sic), using the

         21  similar principles that even the Mayor has proposed

         22  for waste incinerations and small stacks can clean

         23  the air in smoke-filled rooms to levels cleaner than

         24  the outside air.

         25                 This has been proven by numerous
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          2  scientific studies, and we have plenty of published

          3  and available data to support this. All variables,

          4  such as cubic footage, air changes per hour, air

          5  flow, et cetera, can be taken into account to ensure

          6  that the engineer and control standards can comply

          7  with the preset standard.

          8                 Air cleaning physically removes all

          9  particles up to .3 of micron in diameter, much

         10  smaller than tobacco smoke, which is about one

         11  micron.

         12                 It's very important to make a

         13  distinction between active air cleaning and

         14  ventilation that has been spoken about previously.

         15                 Air cleaning actually is a process

         16  that will remove particles from the air, ventilation

         17  will simply remove dirty air and put it outside.

         18                 When you hear about people saying we

         19  spent X amount of money on a ventilation system and

         20  it doesn't work, they didn't do it right.

         21                 Filtration is used in nuclear

         22  submarines, life support systems, used in infectious

         23  disease wards, used in numerous factors, to protect

         24  workers from much more harmful contaminants and it

         25  worked there. There's no reason to believe it can't
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          2  work in a smoke-filled bar.

          3                 So, again there have been problems

          4  expressed in the past about ventilation, there's a

          5  mistake being made in the process. That's where we

          6  focus on.

          7                 We believe proper process can really

          8  result in the correct solution, which is to be able

          9  to protect the worker, and enable the environment to

         10  stay as clean as it need be.

         11                 The setting of standards leaves a

         12  choice of whether or not to allow smoking to the

         13  business owners. It would be up to them to implement

         14  the engineer and control measure in order to permit

         15  smoking.

         16                 The objective of cleaner, healthier

         17  air for ways to work in the establishment will be

         18  met, while preserving one of the freedoms we all

         19  hold dear, freedom of choice. Setting a standard in

         20  the investigation of technological solutions have

         21  been surprisingly absent from prior debate, it's in

         22  everybody's best interest and can provide a win/win

         23  solution where workers' health is protected along

         24  with the business owners' right to make a choice.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. MULVEY: Good afternoon. My name

          3  is John Mulvey, and I own a family style restaurant

          4  and tavern in the West Brighton section of Staten

          5  Island.

          6                 My business is owned and operated by

          7  my wife, myself and named after our three-year-old

          8  daughter, Bridget.

          9                 First off, let me tell you I am not

         10  pro-smoking, rather I am pro-small business. My

         11  family business is part of the most regulated and

         12  heavy taxed industry in this City.

         13                 We are under constant scrutiny of

         14  both government and community. Although my

         15  occupation may seem glamorous to many, it may be one

         16  of the most demanding jobs in society today.

         17                 More often than not, 70, 80 hours a

         18  week are spent working, and I do not get overtime.

         19                 My business, like many others in this

         20  City, employ many people, and support numerous

         21  non-profit and charity events.

         22                 In this regard, we are often

         23  considered the backgone of our communities. Next

         24  time you go to a charity event or fundraiser, check

         25  the journal or sponsor board, as I am sure that you

                                                            133

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  will see locally-owned restaurants and taverns are

          3  the main sponsors.

          4                 I am here to speak to you in

          5  opposition of Intro. 256.

          6                 The reason why I pose this measure is

          7  the damaging effect it will have on my business, my

          8  employees and my community.

          9                 The restaurant industry has been

         10  accused of saying that in the past smoking bills

         11  will hurt our business, and you were told by the

         12  other side that the law did not hurt business. What

         13  many people fail to remember is that after passing

         14  the smoke-free air act in 1995, this City

         15  experienced the largest economic boom in the history

         16  of the United States.

         17                 In spite of this, New York City lost

         18  almost 3,000 jobs as a result of the 1995 law. They

         19  also failed to tell you that smokers, who are very

         20  often 70 percent of my business, were allowed to

         21  smoke at the bar area, and accepted the 1995 act as

         22  a fair act.

         23                 This is not likely to be the outcome

         24  of the Mayor's proposal if it is allowed to become

         25  law.
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          2                 A total ban on smoking will drive the

          3  smokers out of my bar area and onto the streets.

          4  This is not conjecture. The people you observe

          5  smoking outside of office buildings, will be smoking

          6  outside of restaurants and bars.

          7                 Some of my customers will head to New

          8  Jersey, where they will be able to smoke at the bar

          9  repeating the experience of numerous communities

         10  around the country that saw business lost to nearby

         11  towns with more reasonable smoking regulations.

         12                 My instincts about this are supported

         13  by the results of an on-site survey conducted last

         14  month, for the New York Nightlife Association.

         15                 If smoking were banned, nine percent

         16  of the people would go to a venue outside of New

         17  York City, 21 percent would spend less time and

         18  presumably less money, 52 percent of the patrons who

         19  smoke said they would go outside to smoke.

         20                 Even if you do not agree with me on

         21  the proposed smoking ban, it would have negative

         22  consequences for our businesses. Now is not the time

         23  to take such action.

         24                 Our industry is in the midst of a

         25  sustained economic turn-down. Consider the current
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          2  economic indicators. Employment at eating and

          3  drinking establishments remain at post-9/11 levels.

          4  Hotel occupancy rates and average daily rate are at

          5  the lowest levels in years, and hotel room tax

          6  receipts have declined substantially.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

          8  McMahon had a question.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I do. Thank

         10  you, Chairwoman.

         11                 The young lady, Carrie, who was in

         12  the panel before, spoke about in her place of work,

         13  which sounded like a larger hotel, they brought in a

         14  system and it didn't help her at all.

         15                 Is it Mr. Grayson?

         16                 MR. GRAYSON: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Mr. Grayson,

         18  specifically are you saying that the technology is

         19  better now?

         20                 MR. GRAYSON: More importantly, I

         21  think a distinction has to be made between

         22  ventilation and air cleaning. Ventilation is

         23  removing the air to another area, either outside, to

         24  another space, what have you. Air cleaners is a

         25  physical process, works by removing the particulates
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          2  from the air that may be contaminating that air.

          3  Entirely different process.

          4                 The process of air cleaning, like I

          5  said, would be used anywhere from an infectious

          6  disease ward, to such a contained area as a nuclear

          7  submarine where you have extremely harmful

          8  contaminants that are able to be physically removed

          9  from the air so the air that's recirculated is

         10  without those contaminants.

         11                 I.e., getting back to that hotel,

         12  whatever establishment it may be, if they're just

         13  moving the air outside, they're not actually

         14  attacking the problem. They're going after some of

         15  the symptoms. Air cleaning will go at the heart of

         16  the problem, which is take out any contaminants that

         17  may be in the air and recirculate clean air back in.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: That's

         19  certainly a concern. You heard testimony was

         20  compelling, the conditions you spoke of, would those

         21  be alleviated by this type of system?

         22                 MR. GRAYSON: Very much so. If it

         23  could be done in a weld shop where the density of

         24  the particulates is so much higher than tobacco

         25  smoke in a bar, there's no reason to assume it
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          2  couldn't be done with tobacco smoke.

          3                 The biggest factor in air cleaning of

          4  any type is particle size, not what the particle is.

          5  That's why air cleaning technology is approved by

          6  OSHA in any number of industries going to factory

          7  workers down to CDC levels and infectious disease

          8  wards.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Are there

         10  establishments in the City where they have this

         11  technology now?

         12                 MR. GRAYSON: Very many.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: What does a

         14  system like that cost?

         15                 MR. GRAYSON: Average rule of thumb is

         16  about a thousand dollars per thousand square feet.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: With the

         18  average tavern?

         19                 MR. GRAYSON: With the average tavern

         20  it could be a little bit less than that, if we could

         21  take advantage of an existing HVAC system, could be

         22  a little bit more if some custom design has to be

         23  incorporated.

         24                 The most it could be would be about

         25  $1,500 per thousand square foot, if it were to call
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          2  for the latter.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And is that

          4  something that your industry has considered, Mr.

          5  Mulvey? Is that something that has been discussed?

          6                 MR. MULVEY: Yes, it is.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Is that one

          8  of the things that's in the compromise that people

          9  talk about?

         10                 MR. MULVEY: I don't know if there is

         11  a compromise at this point.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: A talked

         13  about compromise.

         14                 MR. MULVEY: A talked about

         15  compromise?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: A not talked

         17  about compromise?

         18                 MR. MULVEY: That would be something

         19  we would all very much like to see.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Okay, thank you

         21  very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         23  Stewart.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

         25  Someone spoke about the ventilation system, who
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          2  would you wish to regulate or even to set the

          3  standard for this ventilation system?

          4                 MR. GRAYSON: There are any number of

          5  ways. We believe the best way would be a

          6  process-oriented standard, similar to weight and

          7  axles on a truck.

          8                 There is, like I said, where there

          9  are numerous studies that support that this

         10  technology works, so we take it as a given that it

         11  works. The process then becomes important, i.e., you

         12  need four axles per X amount of weight on a truck

         13  given that the axle is going to support the weight,

         14  so for a given size we could then dictate that X

         15  amount of machines would be necessary. There's a

         16  capacity lifted for every machine, so we feel that

         17  following the process would be able to provide an

         18  acceptable standard.

         19                 If that was not acceptable, it could

         20  be as simple as, you know, measuring air quality

         21  levels, but I don't even think that would be

         22  necessary.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Do you know

         24  of any City where they have tried this system and it

         25  works?
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          2                 MR. GRAYSON: I don't know because

          3  it's really not any kind of proprietary technology

          4  or rocket science, it's just using the best systems

          5  that are available.

          6                 You know, that's why it is very

          7  important to make the distinction between

          8  ventilation and filtration. You could spend a lot

          9  more money on ventilation than you could on

         10  filtration and not get the best results.

         11                 So, it's hard to say specifically. I

         12  don't know of any standards, but, again, there are

         13  areas that focus on the process that's necessary to

         14  read those standards, and there are a number of

         15  areas that do dictate a process must be followed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: How do you

         17  answer the critic who may say that for me to spend

         18  that kind of money to put in a system, that I have

         19  to keep running 24/7, it will then take all my

         20  profit away.

         21                 MR. GRAYSON: That would be up to the

         22  individual owner to make that decision, if they

         23  wanted to have smoking in their establishment, they

         24  would have to provide one of these systems. That

         25  would leave it to the choice of the proprietor.
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          2  Otherwise, then they should be allowed to have

          3  smoking.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: If I could,

          6  Madam Chairwoman?

          7                 I mean, the Department of Health

          8  tells us that they've measured the air quality in

          9  establishments that don't have this system; has

         10  anyone done empirical studies on this as to what the

         11  air quality is when these systems are in place? And

         12  if so, can you get that for us?

         13                 MR. GRAYSON: I'd be happy to, and

         14  yes, there are.

         15                 MR. ROHAN: Councilman McMahon, I

         16  think I speak for a lot of us when I say we're

         17  delighted to hear that the issue is being brought up

         18  here and that some Council members want to hear

         19  this. When some of our group have been meeting with

         20  members of the Council, we met with Christine

         21  Quinn's group last week, we were told that

         22  filtration was not on the table, and that there was

         23  no discussion to be had of it, and we're just

         24  delighted --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Actually, can I
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          2  just for the record, that's not what I said.

          3                 You raised the issue of filtration,

          4  and I gave you the advice that I did not think that

          5  was something that the Administration or the

          6  Department of Health would accept. I said take that

          7  for what you will. I didn't say you shouldn't raise

          8  it with members. I gave you what I thought was,

          9  which I won't probably do again, helpful advice,

         10  because I don't believe that is something that

         11  Commissioner Frieden would embrace.

         12                 Now, of course the Council could

         13  choose to pass a bill that would be rejected by the

         14  Mayor, we've done that before, and one could argue

         15  maybe you would or shouldn't do that on this. I

         16  didn't say it was off the table. Nothing is off the

         17  table. What we're hearing today, though, is the full

         18  bill. And what I told you is actually what I think,

         19  that's something that I believe Commissioner Frieden

         20  would oppose, one could argue rightly or wrongly,

         21  but that is what I said.

         22                 And what I also said was that at that

         23  point in the process no one on the Council had

         24  raised that to me as a way they wanted me to go, as

         25  I told you at that point I had not yet spoken to
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          2  Council Member McMahon about various legislative

          3  ideas that he had, we since had.

          4                 So, there was nothing incorrect,

          5  deceiving or otherwise --

          6                 MR. ROHAN: I wasn't implying --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          8                 MR. ROHAN: I'm really appreciating

          9  that --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         11                 MR. ROHAN: -- It's now being

         12  introduced as part of the process --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         14                 MR. ROHAN: -- Of getting the bill up

         15  to --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         17                 Okay, we're now going to hear from

         18  Peter Slocom, Joel Wachs, Jessica Heald, Joe Weaver.

         19  They're going to be followed, so should be on deck,

         20  Audrey Silk, Jody Rudin, and Adam Sandler.

         21                 If folks could exit the room quietly

         22  please, so folks could start. And as I said, after

         23  the panel that Adam Sandler, the Bingo operator, is

         24  on, we'll move to general testimony from the public

         25  for folks who have submitted slips.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Madam

          3  Chairwoman, as we settle, could I just make one

          4  statement in response to what was said there? I

          5  don't think anyone should interpret at any City

          6  Council hearing the fact that a Council member asked

          7  questions. It should be inferred to mean a Council

          8  member has one position or another position.

          9                 Our job here is to inquire from both

         10  perspectives to see and to ask witnesses about their

         11  expertise and so on and so forth. I think that

         12  sometimes I'll ask a question that's totally from

         13  the other side of what I believe and it's not to be

         14  read into an advocacy. This is a hearing not a

         15  moment for advocacy, that happens on the floor of

         16  the Council.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Absolutely.

         18                 People actually sometimes, and it can

         19  be a very effective, it can be very effective in

         20  helping understand the process by actually playing

         21  devils advocate and asking the other side questions,

         22  so-to-speak.

         23                 Whatever order these folks want to go

         24  in, you should just state your name for the record.

         25                 MS. HEALD: My name is Jessica Heald,
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          2  I'm a bartender and a cocktail waitress in a hotel

          3  bar in the City. Four years ago I could bike 100

          4  miles. After working in a smokey bar for three and a

          5  half years, I gasp for breath just walking uphill.

          6                 I have asthma now. After a night at

          7  my job as a cocktail waitress, I wake up in the

          8  morning wheezing and coughing. I didn't work last

          9  night but I'm still wheezing and coughing from two

         10  nights ago, just to continue that discussion.

         11                 My sinuses hurt so much I can't focus

         12  or concentrate. The weight of my eyeglasses is

         13  unbearable. Often the sinus pressure triggers

         14  migraine headaches, but leave me in such

         15  excruciating pain that I'm bedridden.

         16                 I've actually brought some examples

         17  of what I need to get me through these ailments. For

         18  the asthma I have two inhalers. This one I take

         19  daily for maintenance, and this one I have in case

         20  of emergencies, like, you know, on any given night

         21  in the bar when the air is so thick with smoke that

         22  I have to step outside just because I can't get

         23  enough air in my lungs.

         24                 I try not to use it though, because

         25  it makes my hands shake uncontrollably, and not only
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          2  do I find this a disconcerting and unpleasant side

          3  effect, but it makes it really difficult to serve

          4  martinis, to point that out.

          5                 This is the nose spray that I need to

          6  alleviate the sinus pressure, tame the raging sinus

          7  infection that will not go away, and just to be able

          8  to breathe through my nose.

          9                 And lastly, this is my migraine

         10  medication. They're all prescription. Nothing over

         11  the counter will work.

         12                 And I want to point out that if I

         13  take this more than once in a seven-day period, I

         14  risk having a heart attack. I want to point that

         15  out.

         16                 Anyway, I need at least a half a day

         17  to recover from the sinus pressure and the smoke

         18  hangover that everybody was talking about. It's very

         19  real.

         20                 I start feeling normal again just

         21  about in time to go back for another toxic

         22  eight-hour dose of somebody else's carcinogenic

         23  habit.

         24                 I like my job in the hotel bar. I'm a

         25  good bartender and I'm a good cocktail waitress.
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          2                 I'd also like to mention that my

          3  hotel has been at maximum capacity for the last two

          4  weeks, so I don't know if that's a sign of good

          5  things to come, but take it for what it is.

          6                 My job offers me a decent living

          7  wage, health benefits that include full health and

          8  dental coverage, eyewear. The problem is that

          9  working in a bar has literally taken my breath away.

         10                 The size of a bar and customers don't

         11  determine the damage. The bar where I work is

         12  relatively small, it seats about 46. It has not

         13  natural ventilation and on any given night the smoke

         14  is so thick you can see it hovering in clouds around

         15  you.

         16                 That said, we do have two

         17  smoke-eaters that supposedly clean the air. We have

         18  an AC unit that brings in fresh air from outside and

         19  a ventilation system that pulls air out. It doesn't

         20  work.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Are you done?

         22                 MS. HEALD: Well, can I say one last?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: One, quickly.

         24                 MS. HEALD: In summation, I just want

         25  to say that I am here today because my co-workers
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          2  and I have the right to breathe clean air at work,

          3  and no one should be forced to choose between being

          4  able to pay their mortgage and being able to

          5  breathe.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          7                 Next witness, please.

          8                 MR. WEAVER: Good afternoon. My name

          9  is Joe Weaver, and I'm a resident born and raised in

         10  Bayside, Queens.

         11                 Intro. 256 is important to me for

         12  several reasons. I believe that secondhand smoke

         13  should be treated as an environmental hazard, along

         14  with asbestos, lead and radon gas.

         15                 It has been ten years since I worked

         16  in a college bar. I supported myself through

         17  Stonybrook, working as a bar, restaurant, working --

         18  but I remained in denial most of my life that

         19  smoking was addictive. I didn't realize until after

         20  the ten years that I suffered from upper respiratory

         21  tract infections, headaches, severe headaches,

         22  bronchitis, pneumonia. The air we breathe is

         23  essential to live, how can 4,000 chemicals that

         24  consist in secondhand smoke, and at least 48 of

         25  these chemicals known as carcinogens can be actually
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          2  beneficial to one's health.

          3                 It is estimated that smoke-filled

          4  rooms can have up to six times the air pollution as

          5  a busy highway. Bar workers inhale the same amount

          6  of four amino biphenyl, a potent human carcinogen as

          7  if they actually smoked six cigarettes. Nicotine can

          8  also be found in the urine of non-smokers.

          9                 The tobacco industry will use every

         10  method possible to defeat the policies to protect

         11  the public from exposure to hazards of secondhand

         12  smoke.

         13                 Their tactics include: the use of

         14  third parties, such as front group, restaurants and

         15  bar owners associations to carry the tobacco

         16  industry's messages or implement their strategy.

         17                 They use paid scientific experts to

         18  refute any scientific data by anyone against their

         19  profit.

         20                 Nicotine is an addiction. I was

         21  addicted for it since I was 17, 90 percent of

         22  tobacco people focused on teenagers. It was almost

         23  impossible for me to quit. It's been four years

         24  since I've touched another cigarette.

         25                 This ban is not about if smokers
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          2  should quit, or if it's bad for you. Alcohol is also

          3  addictive and can be extremely destructive.

          4                 When I go to bars, lounges, no one

          5  makes me drink if I don't want to. Drinking does not

          6  affect anything but the drinker, unless you drink

          7  and drive, and we have laws to protect those people.

          8                 I am asking smokers, paranoid bar and

          9  restaurant owners, Council members and the skeptics

         10  society to be responsible and not to focus on

         11  theirself (sic), but instead on the welfare of

         12  others.

         13                 Even if you don't believe the

         14  evidence published in hundreds of journals about

         15  secondhand smoke and its ill-effects in the

         16  workplace, please don't insult my intelligence by

         17  telling me that this is junk science, or people are

         18  going to run rampant like animals in the street.

         19  That's up for residents, and that's for the police

         20  to deal with, not for bar and restaurant owners to

         21  decide what we may do. We are humans, humans adapt

         22  and we will adapt.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         25                 MR. WACHS:: Thank you, Madam Chair.
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          2  I'm honored to be here today. Members of the

          3  Committee, my name is Joel Wachs.  I'm a past

          4  President of the Los Angeles City Council, and for

          5  30 years I served as an elected member of the City

          6  Council before I moved to New York City last year. I

          7  know exactly what you're going through.

          8                 I doubt if there's any issue or few

          9  issues that generated as much heat and intense

         10  lobbying as did the ban on smoking in public places

         11  in bars and restaurants in our City.

         12                 In fact, I, myself, did not vote for

         13  the complete ban when it first came up in our city

         14  back in the early eighties. At that time the

         15  research was not nearly as clear as to the

         16  devastating effects as today. People were concerned

         17  about the economic impact, people were concerned

         18  about the cost of employment. I personally was

         19  concerned about government infringing on people's

         20  rights. I don't believe that government should tell

         21  people what they can't do, simply because someone

         22  else doesn't like it. It has to have a

         23  justification, such as a life-saving justification

         24  to be a valid government imposition.

         25                 And, so, we went for at least ten
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          2  years with a whole series of interim methods, the

          3  smoking, no smoking cessions, exemptions for small

          4  bars and restaurants, special ventilation systems,

          5  et cetera.

          6                 And then the research became very,

          7  very clear, in the early nineties the research was

          8  unequivocal as to the devastating impact of smoking,

          9  especially in the workplace, especially on employees

         10  who are subjected to it for a long period of time,

         11  and that became clear that to not prohibit it in the

         12  workplace was really putting dollars above lives,

         13  and at that point I changed my position, I cast the

         14  deciding vote for a complete ban on all smoking in

         15  all bars and restaurants of all sizes and every part

         16  of the City, and I can tell you firsthand none of

         17  the parade of horribles that people predicted to us

         18  at that time, and that you're hearing today ever

         19  materialized.

         20                 Bars, restaurants did not close.

         21  Asian tourists did not stop coming to Los Angeles.

         22  The cost of enforcement was not prohibitive. People

         23  obeyed the law generally speaking. Most people are

         24  good and they obey the law, even when they don't

         25  like it.
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          2                 And perhaps equally importantly, Los

          3  Angeles became the leader. In a few years the entire

          4  State of California followed suit, and now the bars

          5  and restaurants are doing well in California,

          6  employees are not subjected to the devastating

          7  impact of secondhand smoke, and something I think

          8  you should know, not a single one of us who voted

          9  for the ban lost our elections the next time around.

         10                 I just urge you to resist the

         11  pressure and do the right thing. We did and we've

         12  never been sorry, and you won't be either, and thank

         13  you for having me as a guest in your Chambers.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         15  much for coming.

         16                 MR. SLOCOM: Thank you. My name is

         17  Peter Slocom, I'm with the American Cancer Society.

         18  I'm also speaking today on behalf of the American

         19  Lung Association, the Heart Association in which

         20  gave up their seat, so we could bring more of this

         21  expert testimony to you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: They have a big

         23  heart.

         24                 MR. SLOCOM: It was good testimony,

         25  though. I myself was privileged to work on this
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          2  issue of secondhand smoke back in the mid-1980s on

          3  behalf of the New York State Public Health Council,

          4  and the Health Department. In fact, I remember

          5  organizing a series of public hearings around this

          6  date on a Clean Indoor Air Act back in 1986, the

          7  Public Health Council took its responsibilities on

          8  public health very seriously, as I know you do, and

          9  at that point it was frustrating by the State

         10  Legislature's failure to act. So, in 1987, the State

         11  Public Health Council passed the Statewide Clean

         12  Indoor Air Act, only to be rebuffed by the State

         13  Court of Appeals, which ruled that it had exceeded

         14  its regulatory authority.

         15                 That is when this honorable body,

         16  your predecessors, as members of the City Council of

         17  the City of New York stepped forward and made

         18  history. You did not ignore the evidence. You did

         19  not ignore the needs of protecting the public

         20  health, and you passed the Clean Indoor Air Act

         21  which led the way ultimately to the State

         22  Legislature acting up in Albany, and finally around

         23  the country to a number of other ordinances as we've

         24  heard today from members of other representatives.

         25                 Now you have another history-making
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          2  opportunity. You have the chance to demonstrate that

          3  the City Council of New York believes that

          4  protecting the public health is a top priority.

          5                 You've heard the evidence on

          6  secondhand smoke at previous hearings, you've heard

          7  it again today. I would submit that it is simply

          8  incontrovertible. The tobacco industry isn't even

          9  arguing about it anymore. It agrees that secondhand

         10  smoke is a deadly carcinogen.

         11                 And I think the thing that you have

         12  to confront in weighing the issues before you is how

         13  do you balance that clear evidence of a deadly

         14  carcinogen that these workers have been testifying

         15  are exposed to every day by virtue of their

         16  employment with the other concerns that you're

         17  hearing.

         18                 Frankly, based again on all the

         19  evidence, and I brought tons of it, which I'll be

         20  happy to give you, Fort Wayne, Indiana by a pack and

         21  a half a day smoking scientist, no economic impact.

         22  The entire year-long review for the province of Nova

         23  Scotia, looking at every study published on the

         24  North American continent, bar bans, restaurant bans,

         25  everything bans, no economic impact.
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          2                 The studies from Boston and

          3  Massachusetts, these charts indicate they track the

          4  receipts in communities with bans and without bans

          5  and showing no substantive difference whatsoever.

          6  Every study shows the same thing. We cannot deny

          7  that the City has suffered a tremendous impact last

          8  September and that the restaurant industry and other

          9  industries have taken a terrible hit. That does not

         10  refute the evidence we've seen everywhere around the

         11  country and in other countries indicating that this

         12  factor does not contribute to economic location.

         13                 Thank you very kindly.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Ms. Heald, is that

         15  correct? I want to ask you the same questions that I

         16  asked the other, a couple of the other workers who

         17  testified.

         18                 The asthma and migraines that you now

         19  suffer, how long have you had those?

         20                 Has your doctor said that they were

         21  specifically related to secondhand smoke, are those

         22  conditions that were pre-existing, if you will? Not

         23  to sound like an insurance company, but from prior

         24  to you beginning employment as a bartender or

         25  waitress, I can't remember what you said.
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          2                 MS. HEALD: The migraines, that

          3  condition was pre-existing. But it was, you know,

          4  sporadic. I'd get a couple a year. Now that I'm

          5  working in a bar, I can get as many as two a week.

          6  Usually it's about one a week. But that was a

          7  pre-existing condition.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: But the severity

          9  has increased.

         10                 MS. HEALD: Oh, absolutely. Absolutely

         11  without question. I never had problems with my

         12  sinuses prior to working at this job. I didn't even

         13  have allergies. I certainly didn't have asthma.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: In your

         15  conversations with your doctor, has she or he said

         16  that the asthma or the increase in the migraines is

         17  related to the health impacts of your job?

         18                 MS. HEALD: Yes. My allergist and my

         19  neurologist have both said that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Just restate that,

         21  I'm sorry.

         22                 MS. HEALD: Both my allergist and my

         23  neurologist have told me that my job is what's

         24  making me sick. And my allergist has repeatedly

         25  tried to get me to quit my job.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          3                 Council Member McMahon.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:

          5  Thank you, Madam Chairwoman. And is it Mr. Majority

          6  Leader, or Mr. Speaker? What was your title?

          7                 MR. WACHS: Council President.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Council

          9  President. I want to say that it's a great

         10  recommendation for the City of New York that after

         11  serving so many years in Los Angeles' municipal

         12  government that you decided to call New York City

         13  home.

         14                 MR. WACHS: I'm enjoying every minute.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I'd say

         16  that's an endorsement that we heartily --

         17                 MR. WACHS: Yes, I didn't come to

         18  smoke.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: You just

         20  chose the better City, that's all.

         21                 Are there any differences you see in

         22  the New York experience as opposed to the Los

         23  Angeles experience? Are the businesses different?

         24  The inability to go outside, during half a hear at

         25  least. I understand at least Los Angeles at least
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          2  has an opportunity to have an outside deck for

          3  smokers. The idea of the very small sort of

          4  traditional tavern, which is not as common in Los

          5  Angeles as I think it is here, did you see any

          6  differences there, or is it still your opinion that

          7  the all things considered, you hold the same

          8  opinion? I'm just trying to compare the two.

          9                 MR. WACHS: By and large I think

         10  things are pretty similar. The range of businesses I

         11  think are similar. I represented a district in the

         12  San Fernando Valley that did have a lot of smaller

         13  bars and smaller restaurants, no unlike many that

         14  you would find here.

         15                 There is a whole mix. I'm sure that

         16  the weather conditions are different, but even in

         17  Los Angeles, where the weather conditions are better

         18  much of the year, you don't see large numbers of

         19  people outside restaurants congregating. You may see

         20  an occasional person or two, but not large numbers

         21  at once.

         22                 A far greater problem, really, was

         23  the people going after drinking, you know, than

         24  after smoking, causing a rowdy behavior.

         25                 So, perhaps the only difference we
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          2  have, we tend to have separation between much of

          3  our, at least much of our commercial and

          4  residential, we have a lot of strip commercial, and

          5  then the residents as opposed to being as integrated

          6  as here, at least in Manhattan where I'm living.

          7                 But basically people are the same.

          8  The obeyed the law, because most people obey the

          9  law. A few who wanted to smoke went outside, but

         10  many did not. Most people kept going.

         11                 When I heard the testimony on the

         12  Bingo center, I was like really surprised, my main

         13  constituency were seniors and I used to go to Bingo

         14  centers all the time, and they just didn't smoke at

         15  Bingo, you know, they just didn't, and they were

         16  there and they were always full.

         17                 Basically people adopt their behavior

         18  and adjust their behavior, and a little at first

         19  there had to be warnings that you couldn't go crazy

         20  on enforcement, you had to be reasonable in letting

         21  the law work its way in. Basically now it's just

         22  sort of secondhand, the people just live that way

         23  and I don't think it's had any really negative

         24  impacts. I think you can say it's had positive

         25  impacts.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: But the

          3  people who smoke, is the availability of many places

          4  in Los Angeles to build an outside deck or something

          5  like that?

          6                 And by the way, did your ban limit

          7  smoking in outdoor cafes as well as outdoor? Because

          8  the present proposals I understand would not allow

          9  even for places that had the room to make an outdoor

         10  smoking area. Did you do that in Los Angeles?

         11                 MR. WACHS: We don't have nearly as

         12  many outdoor -- which is really ironic, given the

         13  weather, but we don't have nearly as many outdoor

         14  cafes as you do in New York.

         15                 Our City did prohibit it, but then I

         16  think the state law now, which sort of supersedes

         17  has some exemptions.

         18                 I think, for example, an

         19  owner/operated, no employee stand alone bar is

         20  exempt under state law. I think cigar bar is exempt

         21  under California state law. And completely outdoor

         22  areas, I believe now, are acceptable. But not ones

         23  that are like part of bars or just jutting out, some

         24  are adjacent and things like that.

         25                 So, there were some exemptions,

                                                            162

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  although our City law was tougher really than I

          3  think did the state law that ultimately superseded

          4  had a few exemptions worked in. But by and large in

          5  a bar you don't smoke in LA, in a restaurant you

          6  don't smoke in LA, in most of the workplace, in any

          7  public place you don't smoke. I mean, it's more than

          8  just bars and restaurants, it's all public places.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And then we

         10  look at that as well.

         11                 And then lastly, you said that you

         12  had had an experience of looking at these filtration

         13  systems; what was your experience with that?

         14                 MR. WACHS: Well, that was one of the

         15  proposals that was given by some of the people in

         16  the industry, and after all of the owners themselves

         17  worked it out with building and safety and all, is

         18  what would be required, and none of them felt that

         19  they even wanted to participate and that was not

         20  something that there was any desire of bar owners or

         21  restaurant owners, it was once building and safety

         22  set forth the requirements that it would require, it

         23  was just cost prohibitive and it was just really --

         24  most people thought it was just putting off the

         25  inevitable anyway, and there was really no support
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          2  in the industry itself to do that, and very

          3  expensive on the part of the City to go through each

          4  application, do the testing, do the inspections and

          5  all, and everyone really ended up saying we don't

          6  want that.

          7                 MR. WEAVER: I just want to add to the

          8  question about people going outside. Most clubs that

          9  I visit to in New York City, you're not actually

         10  allowed to go back out. Once you go out you have to

         11  pay another fee. And that's typical to clubs like

         12  Lotus. You had the owner speak there. I've never

         13  been in any paid club that I was allowed to even get

         14  keys or to go out without having to pay and wait on

         15  line and be selected, so that would not affect clubs

         16  in New York City, because most of them, once you go

         17  out you can't get back in or you would have to pay

         18  another fee to get back in.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I will just say

         20  for the record, some establishments do stamp

         21  people's hands and give them wristbands or things

         22  like that, and you were speaking of clubs like

         23  Lotus, not specifically.

         24                 MR. WEAVER: Yes, most of the clubs

         25  I've --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Yes, just for the

          3  record, since the representative from Lotus did

          4  speak, I just want to be clear, you don't work for

          5  Lotus and you weren't speaking of them specifically

          6  but of clubs like that.

          7                 MR. WEAVER: Like Lotus clubs.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you could speak

          9  into the mic.

         10                 MR. WEAVER: I would like to address

         11  clubs like Lotus. I've never been to any club that

         12  had stamped. Once you're in, you have to pay another

         13  fee to get back in.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Some do I know

         15  have stamps that give you a wristband or something

         16  like that, so that may be the case in many, but we

         17  shouldn't make an across the board statement there

         18  because I see people in the back heads spinning, and

         19  I don't want there to be other health-related

         20  problems as a result of this hearing, but that

         21  certainly is the case in some establishments that is

         22  true, once you're out, you're not allowed back in. I

         23  don't go out that much, but I can say I have been to

         24  places where that absolutely is the case also.

         25                 Council Member Stewart.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

          3  Madam Chair.

          4                 President of the Council, some of the

          5  people or the opponent of this bill, when we talk

          6  about the economic, we start talking about the

          7  economic impact and things like that and we talk

          8  about other cities, their response is that New York

          9  is not like any other City; how do you clear that

         10  up?

         11                 MR. WACHS: I think New York is like

         12  other cities. People are fundamentally the same.

         13  Each City has its own uniqueness, its own character,

         14  but fundamentally people aren't any different, and I

         15  just don't think that -- I think saying something

         16  and having it be so aren't necessarily the same

         17  thing. I think people will honor this law and will

         18  obey it. There will be some defiant ones, there will

         19  be some enforcement, but by and large the experience

         20  is that people do obey the law, and people don't

         21  stop eating and they stop going out for a good time.

         22  And I really don't see that there are many

         23  differences between Los Angeles and New York. I

         24  mean, obviously we know that in a physical sort of

         25  way, but I think people are fundamentally the same
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          2  everywheres.

          3                 Our population is as mixed and as

          4  diverse, we have two-thirds of the people in Los

          5  Angeles now are people of color, more than half of

          6  the people are foreign borne. We have all of the

          7  same type of diversity that one would have. In New

          8  York physically it's different, the weather is

          9  different, one is a low density, one is a high

         10  density, but fundamentally people are similar in the

         11  same, they behave in the same way, and they get sick

         12  in the same way too, and I think you'll find that

         13  the experience will be as positive here as it's been

         14  in Los Angeles.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: The other

         16  question I have is that when you were working on

         17  this bill in Los Angeles, did you try the

         18  ventilation system with some of these bars and

         19  restaurants first? And did it work?

         20                 MR. WACHS: No. It was proposed and

         21  the bar and restaurant owners associations

         22  themselves working with the City, building and

         23  safety people and other people, in drafting up what

         24  would be required and how it would be inspected and

         25  all, finally came to the conclusion that it wasn't
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          2  worth the effort, it would be too expensive and too

          3  costly to go through and voluntarily nobody really

          4  wanted to do that in the end. So, it didn't become a

          5  viable option on either side. The City didn't want

          6  it because of the great cost of enforcing it, and

          7  the industry really didn't want it because of the

          8  cost, and they just felt it was a huge investment

          9  that may well not work and was putting off the

         10  inevitable. So, everyone really then started putting

         11  their heads together to come up with the kind of law

         12  that you're talking about today.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you all very

         14  much.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 Next we're going to hear from the

         17  final panel, which is Audrey Silk, Adam Rudin and

         18  Adam Sandler. And if I just want to repeat, for

         19  folks who are here who would like to testify, please

         20  get a slip from the Sergeants-At-Arms table. It's

         21  very important that you mark your position or note

         22  that you are up in the air at the moment.

         23                 If you don't mark your position,

         24  we're going to put those to the side and call those

         25  witness last and rotate back and forth pro/con,
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          2  pro/con. If we get to the point where we don't have

          3  any more witnesses from side, I'll announce that so

          4  you know that's why, you know, numerous people of

          5  the same position are being called back to back.

          6                 I'm going to call people up when we

          7  get to that point in groups of three. They're not

          8  necessarily panels, but just to try to save time of

          9  folks walking up. So, folks should know that.

         10                 Let's reset the clock.

         11                 And whoever would like to go first

         12  could start. It doesn't matter.

         13                 MS. RUDIN: Good afternoon. Testing.

         14  Good afternoon, Chair and members of the Health

         15  Committee, my name is Jody Rudin.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: She's trying not

         17  to laugh, because she actually used to work for me.

         18  So, I'll try not to stick my tongue out or do

         19  something inappropriate.

         20                 MS. RUDIN: If you could also be

         21  lenient with the clock, that would be --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Absolutely not.

         23  That would be very inappropriate, any favoritism.

         24                 MS. RUDIN: Good afternoon, Chair and

         25  members of the Health Committee. My name is Jody
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          2  Rudin, the New York City Issues Organizer of Housing

          3  Works, and I am here to provide testimony on behalf

          4  of my organization.

          5                 I would like to raise various

          6  concerns about a provision in this proposed

          7  legislation that would eliminate smoking in

          8  ventilated rooms within a host of health care

          9  facilities.

         10                 As you may know, Housing Works is the

         11  nation's largest minority-controlled AIDS Service

         12  Organization. Our mission is to reach the most

         13  vulnerable and underserved among those affected by

         14  the AIDS epidemic in New York City, primarily

         15  homeless persons of color whose positive HIV

         16  diagnosis are complicated by histories of chronic

         17  mental illness and chemical dependents.

         18                 Many of the clients we serve in our

         19  three adult day health care facilities are diagnosed

         20  with not only HIV and AIDS but substance abuse and

         21  mental health issues as well. And 90 percent of our

         22  clients smoke tobacco.

         23                 We do offer smoking cessation

         24  opportunities, and, frankly, would like to offer

         25  more if only the Mayor would use the tobacco
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          2  settlement money for tobacco prevention programs.

          3                 However, our clients are grappling

          4  with health and mental health issues. In fact, while

          5  admittedly a health menace, the use of tobacco is

          6  recognized as an important aspect of resocialization

          7  among those who live unstable lives.

          8                 It also often enables our clients to

          9  wean themselves from more severe and immediately

         10  threatening addiction.

         11                 As an organization that embraces harm

         12  reduction principals, we have a responsibility to

         13  work with our clients where they are at in a matter

         14  that reduces harm to themselves and others.

         15                 These many factors help explain why

         16  so many of our clients smoke cigarettes.

         17                 To accommodate this reality in a

         18  manner that does not put any staff and client's

         19  health at risk, we have designed each of our

         20  facilities with an enclosed separately ventilated

         21  smoking room.

         22                 These smoking rooms are regulated in

         23  such a way as to ensure that nobody runs the risk of

         24  contamination by secondhand smoke.

         25                 They are monitored by a stringent
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          2  schedule that disallows smoking at certain key

          3  hours, when staff may be required to enter for

          4  cleaning purposes.

          5                 We at Housing Works agree with Mayor

          6  Bloomberg. The desire of an individual to smoke

          7  anywhere at any time should not trump the right of

          8  others to breathe clean air in the workplace and we

          9  take pride in our smoke-free air.

         10                 We have all become familiar with the

         11  refrain echoed by bar and restaurant owners in our

         12  position to this legislation, that the prohibition

         13  of smoking will cause individuals to congregate

         14  outside bars and restaurants in quiet residential

         15  communities.

         16                 This could not be more true and more

         17  problematic from a neighborhood standpoint than in

         18  the case of people with HIV AIDS and other potential

         19  onuses, loitering in clusters on resident streets of

         20  New York City.

         21                 Furthermore, this would exacerbate an

         22  already increasing problem of neighborhood hostility

         23  toward social service providers. It is becoming more

         24  and more difficult to site much needed facilities

         25  that in actuality contribute to neighborhood
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          2  stability.

          3                 In forcing homeless, disabled and

          4  mentally ill individuals out of stable local health

          5  facilities into surrounding streets, this measure

          6  will continue to contribute to escalating tensions

          7  between service providers and neighborhoods in which

          8  they are situated.

          9                 This is not only a recipe for NIMBY

         10  disaster, but it poses additional health

         11  ramifications for people living with AIDS who often

         12  have to tolerate extreme weather conditions for a

         13  cigarette.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         16                 I did give Jody more time, but she

         17  used to work for me.

         18                 Go ahead.

         19                 MR. SANDLER: Adam Sandler. I

         20  represent Bingo hall owners, and I want to just

         21  state that --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You may have let

         23  some people down, but it's not your fault. Sorry.

         24                 MR. SANDLER: Not mine. That always

         25  happens.
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          2                 Mr. Munter testified how the no

          3  smoking ban worked in Ottawa, but they also closed

          4  down in his own district a Bingo hall, which I don't

          5  know if he's even realized it, 21 charities are

          6  losing money, or don't make money anymore to support

          7  after school programs and education for children

          8  that we all are not giving money to, but Bingo halls

          9  are.

         10                 One of the Council Members,

         11  Monserrate, visited a Bingo hall, and he went in

         12  there, Bingo halls will close, and all those funds

         13  that come from Bingo will be gone.

         14                 The volunteers, Bingo is ran by

         15  volunteers only. You will not find a Bingo hall

         16  worker volunteer complaining about the smoke. If

         17  they do, they don't have to work there.

         18                 That's all I have to say, really.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 Go ahead.

         22                 MS. SILK: Hi. My name is Audrey Silk.

         23  I represent New York City Citizens Lobbying Against

         24  Smoker Harassment.

         25                 I'm here on behalf of the people of
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          2  the City of New York, those that seem to be

          3  forgotten. The people who are aren't just standing

          4  outside of a restaurant or a bar or a nightclub, or

          5  a pool hall, or a Bingo hall. We're the ones that

          6  are being evicted from all of these places.

          7                 While you concentrate on how we'll

          8  harm restaurants or bars or Bingo halls, and each

          9  has our full support, is the 2 million smokers that

         10  are taking the hit from all sides.

         11                 We're here today because some loud

         12  well organized and well-funded busy bodies who now

         13  have a man with power over the City on their team,

         14  having you believing that the public health is at

         15  stake, that curing this crisis, as they call it, is

         16  more important than private property rights, loss of

         17  business and employee layoffs, and they're

         18  restricting a social activity by one-quarter of the

         19  residences required.

         20                 We maintain that there is no concrete

         21  proof of risk to life due to exposure to cigarette

         22  smoke, and that to impose this law is to satisfy

         23  extremists.

         24                 Banning smoking outdoors is proof

         25  that this has nothing to do with detecting others,
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          2  and all to do with socially engineering a group of

          3  people who choose to use a legal product.

          4                 Smoking bans are nothing more than a

          5  step in the anti smoker strategy or getting rid of

          6  smokers, not the smoke. And compromises are nothing

          7  but a stepping stone to greater restrictions.

          8                 Add to that the perverse argument

          9  that one sort of employee is entitles to dictate how

         10  their employers are to work around their lives,

         11  instead of finding work that fits their needs like

         12  everyone else in the world.

         13                 On October 10th, Mayor Bloomberg sat

         14  here and told you that this will be the most

         15  important legislation ever proposed to save lives. I

         16  suppose he went to the same school of thought as Joe

         17  Cherner, who wrote to all of you during your run for

         18  office during the aftermath of September 11th. Only

         19  16 days later and declaring for your attention he

         20  wrote, "although the City faces a crisis which

         21  appropriate requires our immediate attention, we

         22  hope you will not forget that the number one cause

         23  of disease and death in New York City is tobacco

         24  eviction.

         25                 It wasn't just grossly inappropriate,
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          2  but insane. Making smoking an issue immediately

          3  following such a catastrophic loss of life, as it is

          4  comparable, is a perfect example of the anti-smoker

          5  mentality.

          6                 Terrorist attacks aside, they've got

          7  to do something about the smoking and they'll say

          8  and produce whatever it takes to make you believe

          9  that.

         10                 It lives and breathes in the

         11  propaganda that they have manufactured to have you

         12  all believe that smoke from a cigarette will

         13  positively kill people and lots of them.

         14                 You already have our counter

         15  evidence. Crucially, OSHA determined that available

         16  data were insufficient to demonstrate the existence

         17  of a grave danger from workplace exposure to tobacco

         18  smoke. More proof that the lives claiming to be lost

         19  has been produced out of thin air on the hard facts

         20  from the Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor

         21  Statistics.

         22                 The lead agency on Labor Stats, they

         23  said it's too difficult to link illnesses to work

         24  exposures and cannot account for them.

         25                 The data they do have on
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          2  exposure-related deaths does not include exposure to

          3  the cigarette smoke.

          4                 While going around scaring them as

          5  the federal agency empowered to track these sort of

          6  things disproves them. The BLS reports of the total

          7  number of annual fatalities in eating and drinking

          8  places nationwide was 150 in 1999.

          9                 Of those only seven were linked to

         10  some kind of exposure to something --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you could sum

         12  up.

         13                 MS. SILK: -- But not tobacco smoke.

         14                 If it were so conclusive and clear

         15  that tobacco smoke kills, the BLS would have surely

         16  included them though.

         17                 You can find the full examination of

         18  this in the paper I've attached to the copy of my

         19  testimony.

         20                 As a sitting jury over the private

         21  lives and livelihoods of many in the City, and as

         22  long as there is reasonable doubt, you cannot in

         23  good conscience convict adults that choose to smoke

         24  to a life of house arrests and put businesses in

         25  financial jeopardy.
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          2                 Hi-tech filtration is the solution to

          3  any annoyance factor.

          4                 This is not a government of majority

          5  rule but a reason --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Please sum up.

          7                 MS. SILK:-- That you are elected to

          8  ensure prevails.  We urge you to exercise that duty

          9  bestowed upon you by all the people.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         11                 Council Member Sears.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

         13  Madam Chair.

         14                 My question is for Mr. Sandler.

         15                 You stated that the Bingo parlors

         16  would close. Now I know that Bingo has been a great

         17  resource for raising revenue for religious

         18  organizations, charities and so on, the only Bingo

         19  players, and I used to be on the board of a

         20  charitable agency and they used to have Bingo. Bingo

         21  players are very addicted to Bingo. Somehow I don't

         22  see them giving up Bingo, because they can't smoke.

         23                 MS. SILK: I play every Sunday, I will

         24  not go back.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Could you let Mr.
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          2  Sandler answer the question first, and then if you

          3  want to add on, you can.

          4                 MS. SILK: I'm a customer too.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, go ahead.

          6                 MR. SANDLER: They won't give up

          7  Bingo. They're going to go to Foxwood --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Talk closer to the

          9  thing.

         10                 MR. SANDLER: They're not going to

         11  give up Bingo. They're going to go to other states

         12  to play Bingo and give them money to not-for-profit.

         13  It's going to be for-profit for the Indians, the

         14  Foxwood. It's not going to stay in New York, the

         15  Bingo money, it's going to go out of state, Atlantic

         16  City, they'll get on a bus and what's going to

         17  happen to the charities that we are helping today?

         18                 We have little leagues and after

         19  school programs that are funded with this money and

         20  this money only. There are summer camps funded by

         21  Bingo, solely by Bingo. If they're taken away, those

         22  camps will be no longer. What will you do with the

         23  children? You'll have higher crime on the street in

         24  the summertime, you won't have after school

         25  programs. I mean there's so many charities that are
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          2  being funded by it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well, I agree.

          4  I'm not so sure that you should link after school

          5  programs to Bingo and not smoking.

          6                 A lot of Bingo is done in community

          7  neighborhoods where people don't need

          8  transportation, they walk to these places. So, I

          9  somehow, I mean I'm not really going to make an

         10  issue of it but I somehow don't connect. I can't see

         11  the linkage between the two.

         12                 I've heard some other arguments that

         13  are stronger than that.

         14                 MR. SANDLER: Seventy-five percent of

         15  Bingo players smokes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I know that.

         17  That's why I said, if they give up going to Bingo --

         18                 MR. SANDLER: They're not going to

         19  give it up, they're going to leave the state to go

         20  play.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: All right,

         22  thank you.

         23                 MS. SILK: As one of his customers, I

         24  would not go to Bingo, which is three blocks from my

         25  house. It's very convenient.
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          2                 I would not go because that is part

          3  of the night out of enjoyment. That's part of the --

          4  as you heard one other gentleman testify, that you

          5  have 70-, 80-, 90-year-old women, I have one

          6  98-year-old woman I sit with sometimes, that is

          7  their one night out of socializing. They're all

          8  smoking, all of them. It's 80 percent to 90 percent

          9  of their customers. And what he's trying to explain

         10  is that, the Bingo money funds these youth programs.

         11  Without our money they won't have the money to fund

         12  those youth programs, and who are they going to look

         13  to but you, the City, who has no money.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         15  Stewart.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         17  Madam Chair.

         18                 I want to ask Ms. Jody Rudin, you

         19  spoke about the problem with trying to have the HIV

         20  and AIDS patient and finding a place for them to

         21  smoke, et cetera, I'm wondering, how can you help me

         22  with this: This bill was introduced in other cities

         23  and passed. We also have AIDS and HIV folks in those

         24  cities, what accommodation did they make that we

         25  cannot make?
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          2                 MS. RUDIN: Right, in addressing that

          3  I'd just like to point out that I think New York is

          4  kind of alone or original in the neighborhood

          5  reaction component. In other cities I don't know if

          6  it's so much an issue to have such an outpour of

          7  individuals on a street. The bars and restaurants

          8  have made this argument, and I think it would be

          9  even more of a critical impact on the neighborhood

         10  in terms of people who are sick and potentially

         11  homeless and potentially mentally ill, and I just

         12  think historically we haven't seen that type of

         13  reaction in other cities.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But in those

         15  areas we have -- AIDS is not a problem to New York

         16  only, it's a problem there, and I think they have

         17  social services and so on that also help that.

         18                 I just want to know what it is that

         19  they are doing for these type of people that you

         20  don't know about.

         21                 Because right here, you say you are

         22  having a problem of these people going into the

         23  street, et cetera, I don't see that, they're not

         24  planning that that problem is in those cities. That

         25  problem is not there, why do you think it would be
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          2  here?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Well, if I could

          4  just point out, some of the other localities that

          5  have passed this bill, have actually not included

          6  the provision that is in Mayor Bloomberg's bill,

          7  which would ban smoking lounges for clients at

          8  facilities such as this.

          9                 That is not true in every place, some

         10  places have passed it, and why it hasn't been a

         11  problem there I'm not sure, and we can have the

         12  staff go back and look through city by city or state

         13  by state to see which have and which haven't, but

         14  certainly some that have passed it have allowed

         15  facilities, drug treatment, day treatment, et

         16  cetera, to have rooms where the patients can smoke.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So that's an

         18  accommodation?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Yes, and I'll have

         20  the staff get you the location by location breakdown

         21  just to see.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 Now we're going to go, we're finished

         24  with the panels, I'm going to call up three folks

         25  who are in support of the bill, who may or may not
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          2  know each other, but maybe it will work out and

          3  you'll meet each other; and then three folks who are

          4  opposed to the bill, who, again, may or may not know

          5  each other, I'm just calling in groups of three.

          6                 Mariella Moser; David Lennon; and

          7  Emmett Irwin.

          8                 They will be followed by Richard

          9  Christie; Egidio Semetilli. I'm sorry I'm ruining

         10  all these names. And JC Arnwine will be the three

         11  following them.

         12                 And you are?

         13                 MR. LENNON: David Lennon.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: David Lennon,

         15  okay.

         16                 And is Mariella still here? Okay. And

         17  you are?

         18                 MR. SCIANDRA: I'm sorry, I'm Russell

         19  Sciandra.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Are you Mariella?

         21                 MR. SCIANDRA: Did you call David

         22  Bling?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I called David

         24  Lennon; Emmett Irwin and Mariella Moser.

         25                 MR. LENNON: Mariella is not here.

                                                            185

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Mariella is not

          3  here. Is James Miller here?

          4                 MR. MILLER: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Why don't you come

          6  on up.

          7                 We're going to start with the public

          8  with three minutes, but if it goes long, we may at a

          9  point have to move down to two.

         10                 Why don't you go right across.

         11                 MR. LENNON: Hello. My name is David

         12  Lennon, Assistant Director for the American

         13  Federation of Musicians Local 802.

         14                 I want to thank New York City Council

         15  Health Committee Chair Christine Quinn, for allowing

         16  me the opportunity to testify again on behalf of

         17  10,000 professional musicians in the greater New

         18  York area in support of the smoke-free workplace

         19  law, Intro. 256.

         20                 Much has changed since I last

         21  testified. Nassau County Executive Thomas Swazie,

         22  signed Nassau County's Smoke-Free Workplace

         23  legislation into law, making Nassau County the first

         24  county in New York State to actually enact smokefree

         25  workplace legislation.
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          2                 Last week Florida voters passed their

          3  Smoke-free Restaurant Initiative, Amendment 6 by a

          4  landslide margin. The Republic of Ireland has

          5  recently passed laws that banned smoking in

          6  approximately 10,000 pubs. We are at a moment in

          7  history where public opinion on the dangers of

          8  secondhand smoke is exploding.

          9                 Let me briefly explain why smoke-free

         10  legislation is important to the Musicians Union.

         11                 Our members are workers who are also

         12  forced to breathe smoke in numerous workplace

         13  environments. When playing an instrument,

         14  particularly a wind instrument, the musician is

         15  required to breathe in additional oxygen. Other

         16  musicians physically exert themselves during a

         17  performance.

         18                 This exertion increases their

         19  breathing rate, thus increasing their exposure to

         20  secondhand smoke.

         21                 Many of our members who work in jazz

         22  clubs and hotel bars have complained to us about the

         23  difficulty of playing their instruments in a room

         24  filled with smoke. Some of the great jazz artists of

         25  this City have been forced to turn down employment
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          2  because they cannot bear the health repercussions of

          3  second-hand smoke.

          4                 The reality is that most of our

          5  members have the choice of either working in a

          6  smoke-filled room or not working at all.

          7                 We have been working with Council

          8  Member Quinn on the serious complaints from our

          9  Broadway musicians as well, many of whom have

         10  developed serious respiratory conditions from the

         11  smoke used for special effects.

         12                 One musician developed such severe

         13  health problems from the smoke and fog on Broadway

         14  that she was unable to work and was awarded workers'

         15  compensation.

         16                 All workers deserve a safe, healthy

         17  smoke-free work environment, no one should have to

         18  breathe any form of smoke pollution to hold a job.

         19                 The health of all workers is equally

         20  important, and we believe that no one should be

         21  allowed to make anyone else sick. And I respectfully

         22  urge this Committee to support the legislation.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 MR. MILLER: Thank you. I appreciate

         25  the opportunity to speak with the Committee.
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          2                 My name is James Miller. I work as a

          3  freelance cameraman here in New York City. Much of

          4  my jobs have me going into various locations, into

          5  bars, into where there's music. I have clients where

          6  I have to shoot for news and for documentaries and

          7  so on and so forth.

          8                 So, basically I don't really know if

          9  where I'm going to be going is actually smoke-free

         10  or not. I end up going to these locations because my

         11  clients require me to do so, and I cover a

         12  situation, whatever it may be.

         13                 My feeling is that we should make

         14  this as simple as possible. To make 256 work is to

         15  make the restaurants and the various establishments,

         16  working establishments smoke-free would work, and

         17  quite simply we shouldn't complicate this issue.

         18                 I end up going to various places,

         19  where I have to, I have to breathe the smoke.

         20  There's no question about it. I can't say to the

         21  client, I'm sorry, I can't go in there. You'll have

         22  to get another cameraman. I end up doing the job. I

         23  end up coming out smelling like smoke, and I have to

         24  wash my clothes, and I have a feeling it was

         25  probably like smoking a pack or two of cigarettes
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          2  that night, of going into a bar and doing a shoot,

          3  covering a musician or what have you.

          4                 I did a documentary recently for

          5  National Geographic, having to do with the Coast

          6  Guard. I'm sorry to say that many of these young

          7  kids, that are members of the Coast Guard, working

          8  for the Coast Guard, doing their best to protect

          9  lives, many of them are smokers. It's sad to see

         10  that. I have to work around them to cover this

         11  documentary. Some of them were actually smoking in

         12  locations they shouldn't be, next to fuel depots,

         13  and their bosses, the same thing, they're doing the

         14  same thing.

         15                 I just feel right now the laws are

         16  not adequate. I think we should be in 100 percent

         17  full support of item 256. Thank you.

         18                 MR. IRWIN: Hi. My name is Emmett

         19  Irwin. I live on 550 Riverside Drive, which is on

         20  about 124th and Riverside.

         21                 I'm a bartender on the Upper West

         22  Side. My girlfriend is also a bartender at the same

         23  restaurant, and a student at Columbia. Neither of us

         24  smokes, and we both have been pretty badly affected

         25  by secondhand smoke on the job.
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          2                 The morning after we work, both of us

          3  cost, wheeze, and produce this nasty black phlegm

          4  from our lungs, and the hangover, similar to what

          5  you heard from earlier testimony.

          6                 Recently the smoker-eater broke at

          7  our bar, that's the ventilation system and the owner

          8  refuses to fix it until the Council votes on the

          9  Smoke-Free Air Act, I think that's a similar level

         10  of commitment of employees that most bars have.

         11                 As you can imagine, it's like tending

         12  bar in a forest fire. Our symptoms have gotten twice

         13  as bad. Working there is almost intolerable. But

         14  what can we do? Bartender jobs are scarce, they're

         15  actually practically non-existent right now.

         16                 Again, she is a student, she has to

         17  work nights. I've been a bartender for five years,

         18  and really I don't have any other sellable skills,

         19  trying to find another profession right now would be

         20  financial suicide for me.

         21                 But I'm a tough guy and if this act

         22  doesn't pass, I'll take my health problems to

         23  support myself, as many of the pro-smokers here have

         24  suggested I do. But I don't think my girlfriend's

         25  life should be cut short because smokers don't want
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          2  to walk 15 feet to smoke outside. You know, and if

          3  we ever try to start a family I wouldn't allow her

          4  to work pregnant at a bar where there's smoke. I

          5  don't think anybody, any man would.

          6                 And I just want to refute a few of

          7  the arguments that the pro-smoking advocates made

          8  from a bartender's point of view, about the

          9  ventilation or filtration.

         10                 The filtration has to pull the smoke

         11  from the cigarette, the ashtray, to somewhere. Now,

         12  there are about ten to 12 points of smoke, and all

         13  of those are being pulled somewhere.

         14                 Commonly they're being pulled right

         15  through my lungs. So, filtration isn't really the

         16  answer.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you could sum

         18  up.

         19                 MR. MILLER: Please don't compromise,

         20  because we need a level playing field, I need a

         21  level playing field. The well-paying jobs are going

         22  to be at the bars where you can smoke. And then it

         23  would be the same thing that I'm doing now, which is

         24  pimping my health for money basically. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Any
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          2  questions? Thank you.

          3                 Is Richard Christie still here? Come

          4  on up, please. I'm sorry, Egidio Semetilli from the

          5  Pelham Bay Democratic Committee still here?

          6                 Is JC Arnwine still here? Okay. Is

          7  Michael Stutto here? Come on up. Thank you.

          8                 And they'll be followed by a panel of

          9  four. Russell Sciandra. Are you still here? Okay.

         10  Eileen Weiss. Henry Stern.

         11                 Go right head.

         12                 MR. CHRISTIE: Good afternoon, Madam

         13  Chairperson, Council members, distinguished guests,

         14  ladies and gentlemen.

         15                 My name is Richard Christie, I'm the

         16  President of the Brooklyn/Queens Restaurant Tavern

         17  Association.

         18                 I got an education at the last

         19  hearing on October 10th. I heard Mayor Bloomberg say

         20  loud and clear that it was not okay to smoke in

         21  public places, because it is a health concern for

         22  our customers and our employees.

         23                 On the other hand, I heard our

         24  leader, the Mayor, promote excessive drinking in

         25  lieu of smoking.
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          2                 I wonder how the Surgeon General, the

          3  State Liquor Authority and the Police Commissioner

          4  feel about that?

          5                 I wonder how far it would get us in a

          6  court of law, if we were being charged with over the

          7  limit of legal alcohol and your defense was I'm only

          8  following the advice of the Mayor. I didn't smoke,

          9  so I had more to drink. I wonder how the insurance

         10  companies would respond if we had a car accident,

         11  and used the same as defense.

         12                 More importantly, ladies and

         13  gentlemen, what do you think of the Mayor's remarks?

         14                 In one of his previous remarks, Mayor

         15  Bloomberg said and I quote, "anyone who smokes is

         16  stupid." That's possible however, we in the

         17  restaurant and tavern industry do not refer to the

         18  Mayor as being stupid merely because we disagree

         19  with his position. That's yours, the general

         20  public's decision to make.

         21                 Mayor Bloomberg may be a successful

         22  billionaire, but is a fish out of water, as far as

         23  the hospitality industry goes.

         24                 Our job is not to dictate to our

         25  customers, as Mayor Bloomberg is attempting to do to
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          2  our industry. Our job is to make our customers as

          3  comfortable as possible, and respect their choices,

          4  which is something that the Mayor does not know or

          5  care about.

          6                 But then again, if I had the money,

          7  his money, I wouldn't have to care either. But

          8  obviously I don't have the kind of money he does, so

          9  I must be concerned with the choices of my

         10  customers.

         11                 In 1995, before the Clean Air Act

         12  came into effect, there was concern that the public

         13  and our employees should not be forced to inhale

         14  secondhand smoke in restaurant and bars. Today,

         15  seven years later in 2002, I submit that no longer

         16  exists.

         17                 The Clean Air Act of 1995 gives the

         18  public and our employees thousands of choices within

         19  the five boroughs of New York City to avoid smoking

         20  establishments that they did not have before.

         21                 Why does someone who objects to

         22  smoking work or patronize restaurants and bars that

         23  allow smoking when there are thousands of choices

         24  available to them that do not allow smoking.

         25                 Is this truly a health concern or is
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          2  it an attempt to return prohibition. I personally do

          3  not smoke, nor do I encourage smoking. I stopped

          4  cold turkey over 20 years ago. I stopped because I

          5  wanted to, it was my choice, and that is all our

          6  industry is advocating is choice.

          7                 The public is entitled to the same

          8  choices as anyone else. In my opinion, you will not

          9  stop anyone from smoking because Joe Cherner is on a

         10  personal crusade, and you will not stop smoking

         11  because a billionaire who is used to getting his own

         12  way stomps his feet and says this is my way or the

         13  highway. My response to that is take the highway,

         14  Mr. Mayor. Go to California, run for office there.

         15  You have a very good chance, since they are already

         16  used to being dictated to.

         17                 However, this is New York, not

         18  California, the public has the right to freedom of

         19  their choice, not yours.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 MR. STUTO: My name is Mike Stuto. I

         22  own 50 percent share of an 1,800 square foot bar in

         23  the East Village, and I urge the Council to exempt

         24  bars from this proposed legislation.

         25                 If this bill were really about
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          2  employee health and City air quality, what about

          3  garage attendants in Midtown who breathe carbon

          4  monoxide all day and night, and why hasn't New York

          5  City filed suit against New Jersey for all the fumes

          6  being blown in from Elizabeth. I would suggest

          7  perhaps those who can afford to park their cars in a

          8  $400 a month space, and the people who own those

          9  factories in New Jersey, have a lot more political

         10  clout than a guy who rents his apartment and owns

         11  half of a very small bar.

         12                 Federal standards say that one must

         13  have 20 years of daily exposure to secondhand smoke

         14  for it to reach dangerous levels. So, it's

         15  impossible with those standards to say that bar

         16  workers are at a significant health risk.

         17                 This is a comfort issue, and the

         18  question is whose comfort is more important. The

         19  people in favor of this bill will apparently say

         20  anything to get their way, and I'd like to review a

         21  few of the things that we've heard today and prior

         22  to today.

         23                 It's been suggested that bartenders

         24  are being discriminated against. Completely

         25  ludicrous. Bars are one of the only workplaces where
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          2  the public gather to socialize for extended periods

          3  of time and let their hair down, it doesn't happen

          4  in offices, so the circumstances are different, it's

          5  not about discrimination.

          6                 We've heard some bar workers, we've

          7  heard them talk about secondhand smoke as if it's

          8  like breathing tear gas, depicting every bar worker

          9  with watery eyes and congested lungs and coughing,

         10  and if this were true, you'd have waitresses like,

         11  you know, coughing into your gin and tonic every

         12  time you ordered something, who know from this

         13  experience of life that this is not the case.

         14                 And I'd hope that the Council would

         15  not let a couple of hypochondriacs destroy my

         16  business.

         17                 We've been told that the hotel bar

         18  that a woman who previously testified worked in, had

         19  mostly regular neighborhood customers. I don't think

         20  I need to even refute that with anything other than

         21  just stating the statement.

         22                 And in testimony prior to today, we

         23  were told that the bar air is worse than the air in

         24  the Lincoln and Holland Tunnels, and if this were

         25  true, I'm sure there would be science to support it.

                                                            198

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  There isn't any science to support that.

          3                 We've heard the circumstances between

          4  Los Angeles and New York City are the same, it's

          5  completely ludicrous. Every bar I've been in in Los

          6  Angeles has an outdoor patio beside or adjacent to

          7  it where smokers congregate, and there are virtually

          8  no bars in residential neighborhoods in Los Angeles.

          9                 I've been in the bar business for ten

         10  years, and prior to that as a record executive, I'd

         11  spend a lot of time in bars and clubs.

         12                 Not only is my health fine, but the

         13  hundreds of bar workers I know, not a single one of

         14  them has become ill from secondhand smoke.

         15                 The reality is that our real life

         16  experience and our common sense contradicts most of

         17  the outrageous hyperbole, extrapolation and

         18  anecdotal testimony that we've been hearing from

         19  people in support of this bill.

         20                 I sincerely hope that you will put

         21  some of these bizarre claims into context.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         23                 MR. ARNWINE: My name is J.C. Arnwine,

         24  and I am one of the directors for the New York

         25  Bowling Association.
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          2                 Our big problem is that we have two

          3  borderline areas, both Staten Island, that borders

          4  New Jersey, and the Bronx that borders Westchester.

          5  Personally I do not smoke. I have never bought into

          6  the argument that smoking would affect restaurants

          7  or anything else. I'm very concerned about this

          8  because I am a Bowling Director. In the State of

          9  California they did ban smoking but they did it in

         10  incremental levels. They lost 18 percent of their

         11  bowlers.

         12                 In the State of Indiana, the

         13  ownership of Woodlawn Bowl barred smoking but only

         14  in the bars. They lost 40 percent of their business.

         15  If you ask the Indianapolis Bowling Association,

         16  they were not happy about the situation.

         17                 As far as the smoking goes, I don't

         18  smoke. Many members of my league do not smoke, but

         19  there are certain houses that would be affected more

         20  than other houses. Houses that are well run, they

         21  will lose certain businesses, but houses that are

         22  inept are going to lose their businesses. There's no

         23  two ways about this. Our big problem is economics.

         24  When the City's economy was blooming we were still

         25  losing bowlers. When I joined the Board eight, nine
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          2  years ago, there was 44 centers, we're down to 27.

          3                 I have never bought the economic

          4  theory, and as far as we talk about Bingo goes, I

          5  have no confidence in the State of Florida where

          6  they can play 28 cards, but they can't vote right,

          7  whether it's democratic or republican.

          8                 The fact that Long Island has passed

          9  this bill has meant that that's one last headache

         10  for me as a director to worry about.

         11                 My big concern is both the Bronx and

         12  Staten Island. As far as Manhattan goes, Manhattan

         13  is the most expensive place in the world to bowl in.

         14                 Staten Island, we have five separate

         15  bowls and they were as different as day and night.

         16  As far as the costs, whatever decision this Council

         17  makes, the economics is what drives us, not whether

         18  the City is blooming or not, because we lost centers

         19  when the City was rolling in dough. Whatever

         20  decision the City makes, the bowlers are going to

         21  have to adapt, there's just no two ways about it. We

         22  don't have a choice in the matter.

         23                 If the City Council decides they want

         24  this ban, yes, we will lose bowlers, our

         25  Association.
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          2                 As far as the Women's Association

          3  goes, they would be far worse than what we would be.

          4                 Our membership, when I joined the

          5  Board in 1993, 1995, was 28,000, our membership is

          6  down to 13,450. I have never to this day bought

          7  economics. Our problem was ineptitude, stupidity and

          8  greed by bowling proprietors, they never built the

          9  program from the kids on up.

         10                 If we were to do it now, it would

         11  take us five years.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Thank

         13  you, all. If we could ask Russell.

         14                 Oh, I'm sorry. Council Member

         15  Stewart.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         17  Council member.

         18                 I have a question for Mr. Richard

         19  Christie. And you said here the public is entitled

         20  to the same choices as anyone else.

         21                 MR. CHRISTIE: That's correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: That's

         23  correct.

         24                 So you're saying that a worker in a

         25  bar have the same choices as anybody else; isn't
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          2  that correct?

          3                 MR. CHRISTIE: That's correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And so the

          5  person has the choice to choose clean air; isn't

          6  that correct?

          7                 MR. CHRISTIE: That's correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So,

          9  therefore, when you say that you're not allowed,

         10  that they should be working in a bar that there's

         11  smoking, they didn't have a choice, that means that

         12  you're denying that person that right, that bar

         13  worker.

         14                 MR. CHRISTIE: That's not correct.

         15  That's not what I said.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: What did you

         17  say?

         18                 MR. CHRISTIE: What I said, Council

         19  member, is that person has an opportunity to choose

         20  thousands of places that don't allow smoking. What I

         21  said was why would people want to work or patronize

         22  a bar that allows smoking when there are thousands

         23  of other choices that they can go to and choose

         24  their purpose.

         25                 I am in the industry over 40 years
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          2  and I'm inhaling the same smoke as everybody else

          3  is, and that's my choice, and that's what we're

          4  advocating in our industry, freedom of choice.

          5  That's what I thought this country was built on.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: She doesn't

          7  have a choice. That worker would not have a choice.

          8                 MR. CHRISTIE: She has the choice to

          9  work some place else, sir. That's her choice, to

         10  work in places that have no smoking available.

         11                 There are thousands of licensees that

         12  have no smoking available in the State of New York,

         13  in the City of New York, excuse me.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And you think

         15  that's a choice?

         16                 MR. CHRISTIE: It certainly is. It's

         17  the same choice that I have.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I've heard

         19  conflicting information about whether there are a

         20  lot of no smoking places, whether there are. I mean,

         21  other people have testified that there is no

         22  economic incentive for no smoking, that there is no

         23  -- you know, that there aren't any no smoking

         24  nights in places because there's no economic impact.

         25                 So, if you have a list, or even a
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          2  partial list of the thousand places that are no

          3  smoking in the City, if you could forward that to

          4  the staff, because you may be probably 100 percent

          5  right, but that's different from what some other

          6  folks have told me, so I would just like to get a

          7  handle on that for you.

          8                 MR. CHRISTIE: Absolutely. I would be

          9  happy to do that. I do have that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         11                 Thank you all very much.

         12                 Russell, Eileen and Henry Stern,

         13  please.

         14                 And then they would be followed by

         15  Robert Swinton. Is he still here? Okay. Julie

         16  Murray? Okay. And Frank, something with a B, Barons?

         17  Is Frank still here? Okay, you will be the three

         18  after these folks.

         19                 Okay, why don't you start, sir.

         20                 MR. SCIANDRA: I'm Russell Sciandra.

         21  I'm Director of the Center for a Tobacco-Free New

         22  York in Albany. We're a statewide advocacy group

         23  which works with communities that are interested in

         24  going smoke-free. And as you know, Nassau County has

         25  already adopted a law similar to Intro. 256. We
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          2  expect Suffolk and Westchester Counties to adopt

          3  such laws in the next few weeks.

          4                 I have submitted a letter from the

          5  Honorable Ken Seiling, who is the Regional Chair of

          6  the Municipality of Waterloo in Western Ontario.

          7  Waterloo is a mixed urban/rural area, probably most

          8  familiar to New Yorkers as the birthplace of several

          9  New York Rangers.

         10                 They have adopted a no smoking

         11  ordinance that took effect on January 1st, 2000. Mr.

         12  Seiling has sent a five-page letter. I'm just going

         13  to read a few excerpts from that letter.

         14                 He states that "since we adopted the

         15  law on January 1st, 2000, there has not been one

         16  documented closure of an establishment that could be

         17  attributed to the bylaw. In fact, the number of

         18  premises has increased since the implementation of

         19  the law.

         20                 In 2000, approximately 150 owners

         21  sued the region for economic loss as a direct result

         22  of the bylaw.  In the Imperial Superior Court of

         23  Justice proceedings, not one establishment could or

         24  would provide any information to substantiate any

         25  economic hardship, and in fact the judge through the

                                                            206

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  case out saying just because a claim of loss is

          3  made, it is not necessarily true unless it is

          4  proven.

          5                 Many operators are commenting to us

          6  that they are unaware of the conditions they worked

          7  in when smoking was permitted and stated they would

          8  never go back to a smoking environment. They had

          9  become our greatest advocates for smoke-free bylaws.

         10                 To date we have achieved almost a 100

         11  percent compliance rate with only six of 2,700

         12  premises in non-compliance. We have not experienced

         13  a litter problem and the concern of noise loitering

         14  outside of establishments has not materialized. I

         15  can honestly say that in my 17 years as the Regional

         16  Chair, this has been the most popularly supported

         17  thing we have done, something for which citizens

         18  still thank us for regularly."

         19                 I'd also like to address the

         20  ventilation issue which was brought up. I was rather

         21  surprised to hear that this so-called solution was

         22  being considered.

         23                 I want to point out that nuclear

         24  submarines and hospital infectious wards are not

         25  analogous to the hospitality industry where you have
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          2  to have intimate interaction with the customer who

          3  is in fact the source of the toxic chemical. These

          4  systems would require constant monitoring and would

          5  create enforcement nightmare. They're expensive to

          6  run, they require filters which if they're not

          7  replaced actually produce more pollution.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          9                 MR. SCIANDRA: I do have a little bit

         10  more, if you want to hear it?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Twenty seconds.

         12                 MR. SCIANDRA: They produce an

         13  enforcement nightmare. There's going to be a

         14  temptation not to spend on maintenance, to reduce

         15  the operating cost, and I think the greatest danger

         16  is that the ventilation actually does work at

         17  reducing the irritants in the smoke, but not the

         18  dangerous chemicals, encouraging non-smokers who

         19  otherwise leave a smoking environment to linger and

         20  actually get more exposure than they otherwise

         21  would.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. And the

         23  Sergeants just gave us the letter also for the

         24  record. Thank you.

         25                 Go ahead.
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          2                 MR. STERN: Me?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Yes.

          4                 MR. STERN: Thank you, Council Member

          5  Quinn. My name is Henry Stern. I am a former member

          6  of the City Council for nine years, from 1974 to

          7  '83. I spent 15 years in the clean air of parks,

          8  and now I'm heading up New York City Civic

          9  Organization.

         10                 My first encounter with the affects

         11  of smoking came in 1953, when a beloved law

         12  professor and political philosopher, Felix Cohen,

         13  the son of Morris Rayfield Cohen, died of lung

         14  cancer at the age of 46.

         15                 Later I lost a friend James Wechsler,

         16  who was the editor of the New York Post who died of

         17  lung cancer, and a number of other people have as

         18  well.

         19                 In 1982 in this Council, I introduced

         20  the first Indoor Clean Air Act, 20 years ago, and it

         21  was adopted in modified form after I left the

         22  Council to become Parks Commissioner, it was then

         23  sponsored by Stanley Michels, who took over when I

         24  left. And there has been no question a revision in

         25  the United States in the last four years with the
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          2  advance of scientific knowledge, there's much more

          3  proof of the dangerous effects of tobacco smoke, and

          4  all kinds of legislation, litigation, the whole

          5  movement to restrict smoking.

          6                 Now, here I think it's a relatively

          7  easy case because you have the employees who are

          8  adversely affected, and you also have something that

          9  I don't think you even mentioned. The fact is, the

         10  more places that people are allowed to smoke, the

         11  more places they will smoke, because other people

         12  are smoking, and the more people in their group who

         13  may not be smokers, or heavy smokers, will smoke

         14  along with them because that's the milieu of the

         15  place, and it's similar to alcohol, the more places

         16  alcohol is served and becomes a common place, the

         17  more people will drink, and we have enormous

         18  problems, especially with the youth and teenagers,

         19  with binge drinking and things like that.

         20                 So, I think it's in the public

         21  interest to support this bill.

         22                 I think that it's part of a very

         23  important and nationwide trend, and New York City

         24  usually leads in efforts like that, rather than

         25  lagging behind.
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          2                 I think that passing this bill will

          3  save lives. I think that's the bottom line, that's

          4  why I'm for it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          6                 MS. WEISS: Hi. My name is Eileen

          7  Weiss, and I live in Councilman Reed's district, and

          8  I think nobody should have to breathe in toxic smoke

          9  just to hold a job. It's very simple, I can't do my

         10  job to the best of my ability due to my allergies to

         11  cigarette smoke in bars, clubs and restaurants. And

         12  even if I didn't have allergies, why should I have

         13  to breathe something that causes cancer in order to

         14  do my job?

         15                 I'm a performer and a member of the

         16  Actors Union SAG and AFTRA. I also produce and

         17  promote musical talent special events and musical

         18  theatre. And in order to stay on top of my craft,

         19  it's crucial that I see as much talent as possible.

         20                 Many of my friends, family and

         21  potential past members or composers for my shows

         22  perform in venues such as Joe's Pub, Arlene Grocery,

         23  the Village Underground Bar 13 and so on. It's also

         24  important for me to attend industry events for

         25  networking and fundraising, which primarily take
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          2  place at locations, such as the Paramount Hotel or

          3  the Supper Club, whose entire bar and party areas

          4  are completely filled with smoke.

          5                 I've gone into these places hoping

          6  that the smoke would be minimal but always come out

          7  coughing, choking, wreaking of cigarette smoke,

          8  usually leaving before the program is over. My eyes

          9  burn, the throat closes up, and my clothes, hair and

         10  pocketbook stink to high Heaven.

         11                 Several years ago before the

         12  smoke-free office rule was in effect, I was forced

         13  to quit a job in a Broadway producer's office, a job

         14  that I loved, by the way, because the receptionist

         15  and the bookkeeper smoked frequently and it was

         16  impossible for me to avoid the smoke.

         17                 Now every time I visit Los Angeles,

         18  either to see friends or potential work

         19  opportunities, it's a shock when I come home and see

         20  people smoking indoors, in bars, clubs and

         21  restaurants, and it would never have occurred to me

         22  to leave New York City, but now that I've seen how

         23  great it is to be in a smoke-free environment for

         24  the first time in my life, I'm actually considering

         25  moving to a smoke-free city. And I would much rather
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          2  stay here and produce my events here, but it would

          3  give me more leverage to do so, if this legislation

          4  would pass.

          5                 Finally, there are many people here

          6  today hired by the greedy and selfish tobacco

          7  companies, who will use speeches, arguments about

          8  smokers' rights.

          9                 Smoking is not a right - it's an

         10  addiction that kills, and it prevents me from doing

         11  my job to the best of my ability.

         12                 I'm asking you members of the City

         13  Council to settle this debate. The right to breathe

         14  is more important than the right to pollute. Where

         15  are my rights? Where is my choice to breathe clean

         16  air at the workplace? Please, I urge you to pass

         17  this legislation without compromise. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you all very

         19  much. Thank you.

         20                 Next we will hear Robert Swinton,

         21  Julie Murray and Frank -- you know who you are, who

         22  I can't read your last name.

         23                 Is Darryl Hitto here, still here?

         24  Okay, great. You'll be after this. Is Steven Sherman

         25  still here? Is Mr. Sherman still here? No? Okay.
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          2                 Is Josephine Chung still here? Okay.

          3  Is Jean Oynog still here? Okay, you'll be one of the

          4  three to follow these three.

          5                 Okay, thank you. Whatever order you

          6  want to go in.

          7                 MS. MURRAY: Okay, hi. My name is

          8  Julia Murray. Thank you for the entertaining lively

          9  forum I was invited to.

         10                 Two observations; one, there just

         11  seem to be a lot of out-of-towners here voicing

         12  their opinion about our City.

         13                 Number two, the waiters that

         14  testified, or the panels against -- I'm sorry, for

         15  this resolution, were all hotel restaurant

         16  bartenders and waitresses. I also felt that their

         17  testimony sounded suspiciously scripted. They were

         18  very similar in so many respects.

         19                 I work in a small family-owned

         20  35-seat restaurant in the theater district. I've

         21  been a full-time waitress in Manhattan for 20 years.

         22                 Those health problems are shocking.

         23  They certainly should find work in a smoke-free

         24  environment. My bosses built this restaurant under

         25  the '95 restrictions. They, too, would like to keep
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          2  their restaurant. I would like to keep my job. I am

          3  not saying that restrictions shouldn't be happening,

          4  but as far as this goes, the timing couldn't be

          5  worse. In an industry that is still reeling from

          6  September 11th in the swinging stock market, to put

          7  any potential burden financially on them, whether

          8  the risk is implied or truly real, as I believe it

          9  is for the small family-owned businesses, I'm

         10  shocked and I find it unpatriotic.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         13                 Go ahead.

         14                 MR. SWINTON: Hi. My name is Robert

         15  Swinton, Staten Island. I'm a Deputy Director of

         16  Property Management for the New York City Housing

         17  Authority. Now I'm unemployed.

         18                 I'd just like to read you a quote.

         19  "We hold these truths to be self-evident that all

         20  men are created equal, that they are endowed by

         21  their Creator with certain inalienable rights, that

         22  among these are life, liberty and the pursuit of

         23  happiness; that to secure these rights, governments

         24  are instituted among men, deriving their just powers

         25  from the consent of the governed; then when any
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          2  other form of government becomes destructive of

          3  these ends is the right of the people to alter or

          4  abolish."

          5                 As you know, the aforementioned is a

          6  quote, an excerpt from the Declaration of

          7  Independence, which was passed by our Founding

          8  Fathers, July 4th, 1776.

          9                 The young lady up here was just

         10  speaking about rights before. We all have rights. As

         11  such, we, the people, have the right to do what is

         12  legal. Smoking is legal. We are in no way professing

         13  that you or your constituents should take up

         14  smoking. That is your right.

         15                 We are only urging that the City

         16  Council not further infringe upon the rights of

         17  smokers, by passing the Mayor's proposed legislation

         18  to exhibit or further restrict where we can smoke.

         19                 Smokers have already been

         20  discriminated against in the workplace, since in

         21  most cases we must venture outside of our respective

         22  workplaces, no matter where, what the weather is, we

         23  still have to go outside to have a cigarette.

         24                 All right, because the buildings in

         25  New York City, most of them are smoke-free, in some
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          2  cases venturing outside to have your dose of

          3  nicotine, which has proven to be an addictive drug,

          4  can cost a person's job, but this is not the forum

          5  to discuss that matter.

          6                 Certain elected officials have made

          7  statements to the effect that if smoking is

          8  prohibited in bars and restaurants, patrons will

          9  consume more alcohol, therefore increasing the

         10  income of the respective business owner.

         11                 The major problem with that statement

         12  is its effect there will probably be more

         13  intoxicated drivers on the road, which could result

         14  in more deaths to innocent children and adults.

         15                 Furthermore, a situation such as the

         16  aforementioned will probably result in increased

         17  liability insurance for businesses and car owners.

         18                 Another problem which will arise if

         19  you pass the proposed smoking ban, is that the

         20  detrimental effect it will have on New York City

         21  quality of life loss.

         22                 Since bar and restaurant patrons who

         23  smoke will be forced to congregate outside to have a

         24  cigarette, this act could and probably would have an

         25  effect on the surrounding neighborhoods, therefore
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          2  affecting New York City's residents' quality of

          3  life.

          4                 How is the already overburdened New

          5  York City Police Department, who is facing severe

          6  budget cuts, going to police a situation such as the

          7  aforementioned, especially when there are so many

          8  more criminal activities that require their

          9  attention.

         10                 I strongly recommend that the City

         11  Council not approve the smoking ban legislation.

         12  Thank you for the opportunity to present my

         13  position.

         14                 MR. BARNES: Thanks for the

         15  opportunity to talk today. My name is Frank Barnes.

         16  I'm an asthmatic. I stopped smoking about 36 years

         17  ago.

         18                 About eight years ago I set out to

         19  try and find a system that would eliminate

         20  environmental tobacco smoke, and secondhand smoke. I

         21  spent the first couple of years working with

         22  scientists, working with engineers, working with the

         23  owners of filtration companies, and came to the

         24  conclusion that it was a difficult task but one that

         25  could be done.
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          2                 We ultimately built three units that

          3  we thought would work and placed them at the

          4  Richmond International Airport for a three-year-long

          5  field test. This is what the people at Richmond had

          6  to say:

          7                 David Blacks here, the Executive

          8  Director said, "we were surprised that such a simple

          9  system could be so effective in solving such a

         10  complex problem.

         11                 Not only are we pleased, but there

         12  hasn't been a single smoking-related complaint since

         13  the systems were installed."

         14                 At the end of the three-year period,

         15  Bill Barker, the Public and Commercial Affairs

         16  Director, said, "as we see it now, every airport

         17  should have these systems."

         18                 We felt we were onto something, we

         19  decided to go a little further and did a great deal

         20  of more research. We set very rigid standards for

         21  ourself.

         22                 We ultimately redesigned our system

         23  and then submitted it to an 18-month test at a

         24  leading university, who also included as outside

         25  help, the Lawrence Labs (phonetic) in Berkely,
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          2  California, and a laboratory in Maine.

          3                 The idea was to find out if in fact

          4  filtration, today's filtration, state-of-the-art,

          5  could eliminate environmental tobacco smoke.

          6                 A report is about to come out from

          7  the people who did the survey saying it absolutely

          8  eliminated environmental tobacco smoke, and we think

          9  that's very significant.

         10                 We're the first ones to tell you that

         11  we don't think smoking is a good thing, that

         12  secondhand smoke is a bad thing, and the system the

         13  way we designed it today, is only good for one

         14  person smoking one cigarette.

         15                 The fact remains our applications are

         16  where this could and should be used; for example, I

         17  think today, if I'm not mistaken, the existing law

         18  says that if you're in a private office and there

         19  are three or fewer people and they choose to smoke

         20  and no one objects, when the door is closed they can

         21  do so.

         22                 The problem I see with that is the

         23  secondhand smoke goes up to the ventilation system

         24  and other people are affected by it.

         25                 We feel if a system such as ours, or
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          2  someone elses, were installed in that same office,

          3  not only could that person smoke, but that office

          4  would be cleaner than the ambient air of the office

          5  next door where nobody smoked. The reason being that

          6  the unit would eliminate the secondhand smoke

          7  entirely and because it works 24 hours a day, seven

          8  days a week, it would significantly clean the other

          9  contaminants that are not caused by environmental

         10  tobacco smoke.

         11                 So the message I have today is, as

         12  difficult the problem is, depending on the

         13  applications, there are some solutions that have

         14  been field tested, laboratory tested, and should be

         15  looked at before we accept a notion that, well,

         16  filtration just doesn't work.

         17                 As someone who has devoted eight

         18  years of his life and substantial resources, I can

         19  tell you that it does and we've got the proof.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         21                 If the other folks, Josephine, Darryl

         22  and Jean could come forward. They're going to be

         23  followed by, is Harold Kramer still here? Okay. Is

         24  Wade Farthing still here? Just hang on, you're going

         25  to be after this panel.
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          2                 Is Rick Hansen still here? No, okay.

          3  Is Stephen Helfer still here? Okay.

          4                 Is Joseph Dobrian still here? Okay.

          5                 Great. You can go in whatever order

          6  you want. Just identify yourself, please, when you

          7  begin.

          8                 MS. CHUNG: Chairperson Quinn, City

          9  Council members, my name is Josephine Chung. I've

         10  been active in the community for the past 15 years,

         11  and I have served on the Small Business Association

         12  and the U.S. Department of Commerce Minority

         13  Advisory Group. And I also served as a past chapter

         14  president and also national officer of

         15  organizational Chinese Americans which has 50

         16  chapters, and 30 college affiliates.

         17                 You have the power and also the

         18  opportunity right now to protect the equal rights

         19  and equal equipment of all the workers, you know,

         20  who is still suffering from secondhand smoke work

         21  environment. You also have the power and also the

         22  authority right now to protect the general public,

         23  especially our children, from breathing secondhand

         24  smoke in public places. And there are a lot of

         25  minority workers who are not here today to testify
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          2  before you because they are in fear of retaliation.

          3                 I would like to share with you a

          4  press report, whereby three workers of Chinese

          5  restaurants being interviewed but they dare not give

          6  the name of where they work themselves. They decry

          7  that restaurants have turned into smoking parlors

          8  which affect their health. However, because they

          9  need to make a living, that's why they have no

         10  choice of working in this environment. And, also,

         11  their ethnic paper that show that they are very

         12  scared to come forth and tell the customers that

         13  they cannot smoke and they cannot complain.

         14                 So, I also would like you to think

         15  about children. One-third of Asian-American 12th

         16  graders are smokers, one out of four blacks and

         17  Hispanic children, 12th graders, are smokers, and 38

         18  percent of white 12th graders are smokers. They

         19  learn by example. They also breathe in secondhand

         20  smoke in public places, like when their parents

         21  bring them out to eat.

         22                 So, I would like you to also consider

         23  the public health of all of us. When I was

         24  administrator of a law firm in the late '80s I

         25  interact to protect all attorneys and also the
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          2  workers, as well as my health.

          3                 You know, I sing the National Anthem

          4  in community events, and like to patronize my good

          5  friend, she has a restaurant and Karoke, however

          6  because of the smoke, I can't even practice my

          7  singing or bring my friends over.

          8                 So, I urge you to please put down on

          9  record and down in history that you support health

         10  and the breathing right of workers and the public

         11  and our children.

         12                 Thank you very much for the

         13  opportunity to speak before you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Thank

         15  you very much.

         16                 Whoever would like to go next.

         17                 MR. SUKHDEO: Good afternoon. My name

         18  is Darrel Sukhdeo. I represent both the American

         19  Cancer Society, and Agenda 21 in Richmond Hill,

         20  Queens.

         21                 I am asthmatic and the main trigger

         22  for me is cigarette smoke. So, I'm absolutely in

         23  favor of the bill as it is.

         24                 Unlike all of my triggers, cigarette

         25  smoke is immediate. If I smell it in a bar where
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          2  there's cigarette smoke, I immediately begin to have

          3  asthma. The other triggers will take days.

          4                 I would also like to dispel one of

          5  the myths that's being put here by the other side,

          6  which is people don't go to bars because they want

          7  to smoke, they go to bars because they drink, all

          8  right? That's what it has been over the course of

          9  history and continue to be so when smoking is in

         10  bars and restaurants.

         11                 Their revenues will not hurt because

         12  they can't smoke, because people will still come to

         13  drink, and they will continue to do that, all right?

         14  So I want to immediately dispel that myth, that

         15  their revenues are going to be hurt because people

         16  can't smoke. That's not going to happen, not in

         17  bars, all right?

         18                 I'd also like to advocate on behalf

         19  of 1.3 million kids who are suffering needlessly

         20  because of secondhand smoke.

         21                 We have a chronic asthma problem with

         22  kids in the City, and a lot of that certainly is

         23  because of the pollution in the air, but mostly

         24  because of a pollution, sorry, secondhand smoke.

         25                 While a lot of them may not face that
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          2  in bars, they certainly face it in restaurants all

          3  the time.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: We hope not.

          5                 MR. SUKHDEO: Right. Certainly by

          6  parents who smoke in the house. I strongly believe

          7  that banning smoking in restaurants and bars and all

          8  these other establishments would help parents to

          9  quit smoking, because the only place they can then

         10  do it is the home, and they will continue to see

         11  pressure in their homes from their relatives and

         12  hopefully everyone else in the community.

         13                 So, I strongly urge you people on the

         14  Council and certainly everyone else to support this

         15  bill going through and to do it as soon as possible.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         18                 MS. OUYANG: My name is Jean Ouyang.

         19  I'm working for Chinese Unit, smoking doesn't speak.

         20  Smoking is the silent killer. Cigarette smoke

         21  contains 43 toxic chemicals which can cause cancers.

         22  Each year 430,000 deaths in the US are attributed to

         23  smoking. This means about 1,200 people die from

         24  smoking every day. Smoking does not just affect

         25  those who do it. For the employees of our

                                                            226

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  restaurants and other world places who work an hour

          3  shift, the amount of carcinogens they inhale is the

          4  same as smoking more than half a pack of cigarettes.

          5                 As a result of exposure to secondhand

          6  smoke, many employees have increased rates of lung

          7  cancer, heart disease, asthma and other respirator

          8  ailments.

          9                 For many people secondhand smoke

         10  causes coughing, itching, skin rashes, short breaths

         11  and watering eyes. Children are at greatest risk.

         12                 Going smoke-free could save 11,000

         13  lives in New York City each year. Isn't life more

         14  valuable than anything in the world?

         15                 As we know, smoking -- so secondhand

         16  smoke, it's really bad for everyone, we already know

         17  that. Smoking is no longer socially acceptable, we

         18  will prevent millions of youth from ever starting

         19  and encourage smokers to quit.

         20                 Council member, we need you to vote

         21  for a smoke-free workplace act. Through your support

         22  many, many lives can be saved. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Thank

         24  you all very much.

         25                 If Harold, Wade and Joseph could come
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          2  up.

          3                 Then I just want to call the next

          4  folks who would be after that.

          5                 Is Isip Kim still here? Okay. Is Kay

          6  Wong still here? Okay. And Paul Chesik? Okay, you

          7  guys will be the three folks after these folks.

          8                 You're going to need to speak to the

          9  Sergeant when he comes over here.

         10                 Why don't you start.

         11                 MR. KRAMER: Okay. Good afternoon,

         12  everybody. Ladies and gentlemen of the City Council.

         13  Thank you for letting me testify.

         14                 My name is Harold Kramer.  Along with

         15  my wife, Ria, I own and run the Raven Bar in the

         16  East Village of Manhattan.

         17                 Since the qualify of life issue seems

         18  to be the most important aspect of Intro. 256 to

         19  many of the members of the City Council, I will try

         20  to illustrate just how big a problem this will be.

         21                 Between East 12th Street, which is my

         22  corner, and East 14th Street, on or adjacent to

         23  Avenue A, there are no less than 14 bars and

         24  restaurants that are fully licensed to sell liquor.

         25  I will now read the names and capacities of these
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          2  establishments:

          3                 The Cock, capacity 150.

          4                 Raven, capacity 75.

          5                 Korova Milk Bar, capacity 175.

          6                 Parlay, capacity 200.

          7                 Il Covo Dell'est, capacity 75.

          8                 Oggi, capacity 50.

          9                 Forbidden City, capacity 125.

         10                 Casanova, capcity 75.

         11                 Planet Rose, capacity 75.

         12                 Phoenix, capacity 100.

         13                 Keybar, capacity 50.

         14                 Love, Hope, Unity Social Club,

         15  capacity 60.

         16                 Totem, capacity 75.

         17                 Old Devil Moon, capacity 50.

         18                 If you add all these capacities you

         19  get a grand total of 1,335. Mind you, this is just a

         20  short two-block stretch, it takes less than a minute

         21  to walk between 12th and 14th Streets. On any given

         22  night these streets are packed with people. On the

         23  weekends even more so.

         24                 Can you imagine how disastrous it

         25  will be for the quality of life in this neighborhood

                                                            229

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  if patrons from these establishments are lining the

          3  streets to grab a smoke?

          4                 Avenue A stretches from Houston to

          5  14th Street. There are many, many more licensed

          6  establishments on Avenue A than the ones I just

          7  listed, and Avenue A is just one of many busy

          8  streets in the East Village, and the East Village is

          9  just one of many busy neighborhoods throughout New

         10  York.

         11                 All of these residents are

         12  residential. In New York people live side by side

         13  with these establishments. I know that at least 90

         14  percent of my patrons smoke cigarettes. It doesn't

         15  take a rocket scientist to do the math here.

         16                 If Intro. 256 passes, the streets in

         17  these neighborhoods will be choked with people

         18  grabbing a smoke. It happens in Midtown with office

         19  workers. There's no reason to believe it wouldn't

         20  happen on Avenue A and all the other avenues and

         21  streets that play host to New York City's nightlife,

         22  and it won't be long until your offices are flooded

         23  with calls from angry voters demanding to know why

         24  this bill was passed by the City Council.

         25                 And I just wanted to add one thing
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          2  about the Holland Tunnel remark that the Mayor made

          3  at the last statement. The reason the Holland

          4  Tunnel's air is healthier than smokey bars, is

          5  because the Holland Tunnel uses ventilation, and if

          6  ventilation works on auto exhaust, which has many of

          7  the same components as cigarette smoke, then why

          8  shouldn't it work on cigarette smoke in bars and a

          9  smaller atmosphere.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 MR. FARTHING: Hello. My name is Wade

         12  Farthing, Assistant Manager of a hotel bar in

         13  Midtown Manhattan.

         14                 I oppose this proposition. I do have

         15  something to say to the hotel workers and bar

         16  workers that are protesting, that are for the

         17  proposition, they knew when they got the job as a

         18  bartender or a waiter that smoke was allowed, and

         19  they knew that so that's part of their job, is to

         20  serve people who drink and want to relax and have a

         21  good time.

         22                 And I have lived in California and in

         23  New York. California is completely different than

         24  New York. In California you can go out any time of

         25  the day and it's warm usually, and you can smoke.
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          2                 New York is completely different. I

          3  do believe that it will affect the revenue of the

          4  waitresses and waiters and I was a bartender in

          5  California when the law did pass out there in

          6  California and it did affect my tips quite a bit,

          7  I'd say about $100 a week less. So, they should take

          8  the in mind as well. When they think about they want

          9  to have a no smoking law in New York.

         10                 We have suffered a great deal. We

         11  lost billions of dollars in revenue. I've worked in

         12  the hotel since I've been in New York and I was laid

         13  off of one job and I had to get another one, the job

         14  I'm in presently, due to 9/11 and I don't think this

         15  is the time to implement this sort of action into

         16  this City. Thank you.

         17                 MR. DOBRIAN: My name is Joseph

         18  Dobrian.

         19                 For God's sake, let's stop pretending

         20  that employee safety is the issue here.

         21                 Apparently, some people's sole idea

         22  of an acceptable bar or restaurant is one where smug

         23  yuppies of the - hi, I'd like to start getting home

         24  delivery of the Sunday New York Times variety,

         25  smugly, primly sipping their heart-smart glasses of
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          2  Merlot in a lovely smoke-free atmosphere.

          3                 Well, I'll tell you, plenty of such

          4  places exist. Waiters or bartenders who wish to work

          5  in a smoke-free atmosphere have many very attractive

          6  options at their disposal.

          7                 Moreover, with the ventilation

          8  systems currently in use, the idea of anyone could

          9  risk his health by working in a bar or restaurant

         10  where smoking is permitted is ludicrous. It is a red

         11  herring drawn across the path to throw people off

         12  the scent of a true motive behind this proposed

         13  legislation.

         14                 Through the use of pseudo science and

         15  funny facts that would do credit to Stalinist

         16  Russia, the anti-smoke fanatics have cynically

         17  fashioned employee safety into a cudgel with which

         18  to smash smokers.

         19                 The hand wielding that cudgel is

         20  driven not by concern for the common weal. No, it is

         21  driven by malice and spite.

         22                 For reasons known best to themselves,

         23  these anti-smoke fanatics have developed such an

         24  obsessive hatred of smoking and smokers that they

         25  cannot tolerate the possibility that someone,
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          2  somewhere, might be enjoying a cigarette in

          3  comfortable surroundings.

          4                 The motive behind this proposal is to

          5  discomfort and humiliate smokers, to make it ever

          6  more difficult for them to enjoy the experience of

          7  smoking.

          8                 It is purely and simply malicious

          9  legislation. It is punitive legislation. It is

         10  coercive legislation. It is spiteful legislation. It

         11  is legislation of a type that has no place in

         12  America.

         13                 Now, some of you may fear, and

         14  perhaps with reason that if you listen to your sense

         15  of fairness and decency, and refuse to support this

         16  measure, you'll be accused of voting against clean

         17  air or voting against the public health, but that

         18  accusation will not stick.

         19                 Rather, oppose this legislation, and

         20  you will protect your constituents from the worst of

         21  human instincts: The urge to bully, the urge to act

         22  upon malicious motives, the urge to punish any

         23  lifestyle of which one might personally disapprove.

         24                 I conjure you to pluck up your

         25  courage to thwart this effort to use legislation as
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          2  an instrument of spite. Vote down this proposal.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

          4  Stewart I think has a question.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes, Madam

          6  Chair, I have a question.

          7                 Based on the arguments that are being

          8  put forward here, I would like to know from members

          9  on the panel, you said that basically this is

         10  sticking with the rights of people to smoke in

         11  essence. But if you drink and drive, don't you think

         12  that we should have laws to protect one who is

         13  drinking and driving from hurting other people?

         14                 MR. DOBRIAN: Sir, smoking cigarettes

         15  does not make you an incompetent driver. That's a

         16  very faulty analogy.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I understand

         18  that, but smoking cigarettes in the presence of

         19  others gives them the secondhand smoke which causes

         20  them problems. So, that's the reason why we are

         21  instituting these laws.

         22                 MR. DOBRIAN: No, sir. The health risk

         23  supposedly of secondhand smoke is spurious. I would

         24  refer you to a website called junkscience.com, which

         25  you'll find very enlightening on that subject.
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          2                 Now, as to discomfort that secondhand

          3  smoke may cause people, mere discomfort, I submit

          4  that the law should not be in the business of

          5  protecting people from being possibly jostled or

          6  offended by the process of living life.

          7                 If you don't like cigarette smoke,

          8  sir, don't go to a bar where smoking is permitted.

          9  There are plenty of very nice places where smoking

         10  is not permitted and I wish them well.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I understand

         12  your argument, sir, but I just want to let you know

         13  that the pursuit of happiness should be equal to

         14  everyone.

         15                 MR. DOBRIAN: Including smokers.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right. So,

         17  the one who is working there, that should be their

         18  opportunity to earn a living. Just like anybody else

         19  who --

         20                 MR. DOBRIAN: No, sir. There's an old

         21  saying that the "righteous swing your fist ends

         22  where my nose begins," well that holds true

         23  generally speaking, but, sir, if you don't want to

         24  be hit in the nose, don't step into the boxing ring.

         25                 Now, sir, let me just mention,
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          2  speaking of boxing, that I once as a boy had a dream

          3  to be a professional boxer, and I decided against it

          4  because I didn't want to get hurt. You know,

          5  sometimes you just have to make these little

          6  adjustments.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But because

          8  you are a boxer, that doesn't mean you can go

          9  outside and hit anybody.

         10                 MR. DOBRIAN: But I can go into the

         11  boxing ring and hit people.

         12                 You're trying to take that away.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: On the rules.

         14  On the rules.

         15                 Anyhow, the other question that I

         16  have basically is this: It was mentioned here that

         17  in the Avenue A vicinity there's so many bars, et

         18  cetera, and there's about 90 percent of these people

         19  are smokers.

         20                 MR. KRAMER: Ninety percent of my

         21  customers.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Of your

         23  customers are smokers.

         24                 And you said if we were to ban the

         25  smoking in these bars, it would cause chaos in the
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          2  streets.

          3                 MR. KRAMER: Quite possibly.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right. But

          5  you also said right now it's very crowded on the

          6  streets with them smoking there.

          7                 MR. KRAMER: So it would add more to

          8  that.

          9                 Right now people who want to smoke in

         10  my bar stay in my bar to smoke. I fear that if this

         11  Intro. 256 is passed, many of those people, if

         12  they're good enough to still come to my bar, will go

         13  outside to grab a smoke. I mean, it happens in

         14  office buildings in Midtown Manhattan and down here

         15  in the financial district, why wouldn't it happen --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I don't see

         17  the logic where it will create such a chaos in areas

         18  -- remember, it's going to be banned throughout the

         19  entire City and I don't see the logic whereby, you

         20  know, to say that because you ban smoking, you have

         21  a lot more people on the street smoking and this

         22  sort of thing.

         23                 More than that, people are

         24  responsible, they're not just going to do what they

         25  feel like. They obey the laws.
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          2                 MR. KRAMER: Well, smokers want to

          3  smoke, and if their only option is to smoke outside

          4  that's what they're going to do.

          5                 I don't smoke cigarettes myself, but

          6  my experience in my nine years in the bar business

          7  has been if people want to smoke they will smoke,

          8  and you can't smoke in the bar, I expect they will

          9  smoke outside.

         10                 They do it in office buildings. We

         11  already see it in Midtown, you see them congregating

         12  outside of office buildings, there's smoke breaks.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Do you have

         14  employees?

         15                 MR. KRAMER: Yes, I do.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And you value

         17  your employees?

         18                 MR. KRAMER: I love my employees.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Their rights

         20  are just as your rights, right, in terms of health

         21  risk?

         22                 MR. KRAMER: That is the truth.

         23                 The money to regulate this, where is

         24  this going to come from? Are they going to hire

         25  people to go into the bars and spot people who smoke

                                                            239

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  and then give fines? Why can't that money --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sir, typically we

          4  ask the questions, so, sorry.

          5                 Thank you all very much. Thank you.

          6                 The three folks that I called up, I

          7  believe it's Iisup, Kai and Paul. And everyone has

          8  been very kind to the degree of which I'm butchering

          9  people's names.

         10                 They would be followed by, is Stephen

         11  Helfer back in the room? Okay, Is Mimi Burnam here?

         12  Okay. Is Patrick Kelly here? Patrick Kelly? Okay, so

         13  work your way down, please. You'll be on the panel

         14  after this.

         15                 Go right ahead, sir.

         16                 MR. CHESKI: Hi. My name is Paul

         17  Chesik, and I work in the music industry, and up

         18  until a few months ago I had a part-time job as a

         19  doorman at a lower east side bar, which featured

         20  live music nightly.

         21                 I held this job for over two years,

         22  and if it weren't for all the secondhand smoke I was

         23  forced to breathe in for eight hours every shift,

         24  I'd still be working there, making some sorely

         25  needed extra income.
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          2                 Most people, smoker or nonsmoker, can

          3  relate to how lousy they feel after spending just

          4  two or three hours in a smoky bar club. Your eyes

          5  and lungs burn and your entire body and all of your

          6  clothing are drenched in the stench of cigarette

          7  smoke.

          8                 Many people who feel hung over the

          9  next day aren't even aware that a large contributor

         10  of this feeling of unwellness is from secondhand

         11  smoke.

         12                 Imagine how cigarette smoke affects

         13  people who have to endure eight or more non-stop

         14  hours a night, two to five nights a week.

         15                 These people, many of them

         16  non-smokers, are being forced to take in relentless

         17  amounts of smoke that would make the average tobacco

         18  addict gasp for air.

         19                 It's not just the bartenders that

         20  have to endure this abuse, there are waiters, door

         21  people, bouncers, bar backs, DJ's, sound and

         22  lighting people, stage hands, promoters and bar

         23  managers.

         24                 What most don't consider is the fact

         25  that a lot of people who are not bar workers have to
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          2  conduct significant amounts of their business in

          3  bars and clubs, such as the case in the music

          4  industry.

          5                 Pretty much anyone involved in the

          6  vast business of music has to spend a significant

          7  amount of their time in the smoked out bars and

          8  clubs that showcase musical acts.

          9                 The fact that New York City is one of

         10  the top music cities in the world make it especially

         11  important that the strict non-smoking laws are

         12  passed, in order to protect the health of all the

         13  people who help to make it so. There are the

         14  musicians themselves who, believe it or not, don't

         15  find it sexy or romantic to have to try to sing

         16  while somebody at a table up front blows smoke in

         17  their face.

         18                 There are the people who work

         19  directly with the artists, such as Road Crew, sound

         20  engineers, managers, road managers, lighting people

         21  and merchandise people.

         22                 They're the people of numerous

         23  positions at record labels and record distributions

         24  are required to go out to see their acts on a

         25  regular basis, and our people whose job it is to
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          2  find new talent, bounce from smokey bar to smokey

          3  bar night after night particularly affected by the

          4  present lenient smoking laws.

          5                 There are also music journalists,

          6  music publishers, and music retailers, to name a few

          7  more who also need to go to bars and clubs that

          8  showcase live music on a regular basis.

          9                 There are thousands of people in New

         10  York who either work in bars or who have to conduct

         11  business in them whose lives are in jeopardy because

         12  of secondhand smoke. Not to mention the thousands

         13  upon thousands of non-smokers who frequent these

         14  establishments and attempt to enjoy themselves and

         15  be the social creatures that we humans are by

         16  nature.

         17                 This is an issue that if you boil it

         18  down to its essence can be placed in the no brainer

         19  category to use a popular expression, even a

         20  complete airhead should be able to easily grasp that

         21  cigarettes kill, secondhand smoke kills. When we

         22  allow tobacco addicts to light up around other

         23  people, we allow them to inflict physical harm upon

         24  others. And I think that most of us would agree that

         25  inflicting harm upon innocent people is wrong, it is
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          2  also illegal and trying to defend someone's right to

          3  smoke is --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you could sum

          5  up, please.

          6                 MR. CHESIK: -- Just absurd. Thank

          7  you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          9                 Go ahead, whoever would like to go

         10  first.

         11                 MR. KIM: Good afternoon. Thank you

         12  for the opportunity to speak. My name is Iisup Kim,

         13  at building manager at Korean-American Association

         14  of Greater New York. Location is 149 West 24th

         15  Street.

         16                 Since I started to work at KAANY, I

         17  started to make the building smoking free. At the

         18  first time it was not easy to coaxing smokers to not

         19  smoke inside of the building.

         20                 Now most of our smokers in the

         21  buildings have the no smoking rule. However, since

         22  this building is often toured by public and have

         23  community meetings, whenever there is meetings still

         24  many people smoke in the building.

         25                 I believe that secondhand smoking is
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          2  a very danger to the nonsmoker. If there is the law

          3  that smoking inside of the building, the danger of

          4  the secondhand smoking will be reduced.

          5                 I hope the Smoke Free Air Act of 2000

          6  must be -- 2002 must be passed for New York to be

          7  healthier. Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          9                 MS. WANG: Hi. My name is Kai, and it

         10  is a pleasure to be here today.

         11                 As a Boyscout leader of Troop 74 in

         12  Flushing, I and another leader led Boyscouts three

         13  times participating in anti-tobacco activities,

         14  picking up cigarette butts on Flushing Meadow Street

         15  during the summertime.

         16                 This experience were truly

         17  worthwhile, giving each Boyscout a clear message, to

         18  say no to smoking.

         19                 Concerning the smoking, Smoke Free

         20  Workplace Act of 2002, many establishments fear that

         21  banning smoking will cause a sharp decline in

         22  business. However, people such as I, feel

         23  comfortable going to establishment, knowing that

         24  secondhand smoke will not become a health issue.

         25                 On a more personal note, a dear
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          2  family member of mine works in restaurant.

          3  Mentioning time and time again, he is forced to

          4  breathe secondhand smoke from co-worker. He fears

          5  much for his health.

          6                 With the Smoke Free Workplace Act in

          7  place he can be assured that secondhand smoke killer

          8  will be safely kept at bay.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you all very

         11  much.

         12                 Any questions?

         13                 Thank you all very much.

         14                 If Stephen, Mimi and Patrick could

         15  come forward.

         16                 And then I just want to see if these

         17  folks are here who would be the three after this.

         18                 Eduardo Barahona, are you still here?

         19  Eduardo, are you still here? No, okay.

         20                 Bernadette Lin? Okay.

         21                 Mike Kaplan? Is Mr. Kaplan still

         22  here? Okay.

         23                 Theresa Cassiack, still here? Okay.

         24  And Mariella Moser? Okay, Mariella, sorry. Great.

         25  You three will follow this group.
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          2                 MR. HELFER: (Not identified for the

          3  record.) We've heard a lot today about asthma, and

          4  indeed this is a very big problem in the United

          5  States today particularly. In the last 20 years, 14

          6  million Americans have given up smoking, and smoking

          7  has been banned in almost all public and many

          8  private places.

          9                 Yet, amongst adults, the incidents of

         10  asthma has increased 75 percent during this time,

         11  and among children over 160 percent.

         12                 Now, we all want to find reasons why

         13  we are sick, and it has become recently very

         14  convenient to blame secondhand smoke. But I would

         15  ask our public health authorities who have long said

         16  that if we got rid of smoking in public places

         17  asthmatics would be benefitted, why is it that we're

         18  reaching epidemic proportions of asthma, when the

         19  number of smokers is declined and exposure to

         20  secondhand smoke has gone down?

         21                 We've heard many times tonight how

         22  secondhand smoke is a class A carcinogen. This is an

         23  EPA ruling put out in 1993, which the Congressional

         24  Research Service looked at at the behest of

         25  Congress.
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          2                 The research service and independent

          3  organization of Congress found the statistical

          4  evidence does not appear to support a conclusion

          5  that there is substantial health effects of

          6  secondhand smoke.

          7                 In 1998 this EPA classification was

          8  thrown out by a federal judge. The EPA said they

          9  would appeal it, I've heard nothing of this appeal,

         10  yet our public health officials continue to call

         11  secondhand smoke a class A carcinogen.

         12                 1998, the World Health Organization,

         13  the largest study ever done in Europe, according to

         14  the Times of London, it failed to find a clear link

         15  between secondhand smoke and lung cancer.

         16                 There is not one restaurant in the

         17  State of New York, nor one bar which is required to

         18  allow smoking for any reason. It is the choice of

         19  the owners, and this is the prerogative and it

         20  should remain the prerogative of owners to have

         21  control over their own establishments.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 MR. KELLY: Good afternoon. My name is

         24  Pat Kelly, and I own a small pub in Queens. The pub

         25  has been in the neighborhood since 1939 and it has
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          2  effectively served that area through four different

          3  owners who all lived in the neighborhood.

          4                 The neighborhood benefits from us

          5  because we give them a meeting place where people

          6  can sit, chat, have a drink and a cigarette if they

          7  so choose.

          8                 I've sat here today and listened

          9  about surveys from Los Angeles and Cape Cod, two

         10  areas that we're all very well aware of, if you're a

         11  person of note, you can get away with murder.

         12                 I hear about Waterloo, Ontario. I've

         13  been to Waterloo, Iowa, and I would compare them to

         14  be about probably the same size.

         15                 I don't think anybody in the room

         16  here, maybe one or two people have been to Ottawa,

         17  everybody in Ottawa wants to come to New York. We

         18  should be setting the rules and the standards and

         19  not go by what some small town in some insignificant

         20  part of the country has to do with it.

         21                 Bartenders and waitresses are exposed

         22  to secondhand smoke. This is true. But all the

         23  surveys and all of the technical data that comes

         24  down talks about a 20-year exposure.

         25                 Now, we listened to, I forgot his
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          2  name, he said he was pimping his health, I'll use

          3  him as an example, talk about how sick he is after

          4  day after day after day, but he's so afraid that if

          5  it's not banned in all bars, the better jobs will be

          6  in those bars where there's smoking.

          7                 So, obviously the people here, their

          8  argument is that, well, yes, there is smoking in the

          9  bars, and I want to work in the smoking bar, because

         10  there's more money to be made.

         11                 Why is there more money to be made in

         12  a smoking bar than a non-smoking bar? Is it that

         13  more that people who frequent bars choose to smoke?

         14  Then they should have a right to. Employees, and we

         15  heard it here, there are thousands of premises in

         16  the City of New York that don't have smoking.

         17                 Let them apply for a job in that

         18  place. Why do they have to apply in a smoking place?

         19  All industries, and most jobs have inherent danger

         20  in them, people who work on bridges might fall off

         21  and kill themselves. It's their choice to take such

         22  a dangerous job.

         23                 These people full well know

         24  beforehand what they're getting into.

         25                 Ventilation systems, filtration
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          2  systems, the other side says they don't work, but

          3  don't produce any evidence to support what they're

          4  saying.

          5                 If you filter the smoke out of a

          6  room, it's going to go out, but let's call what it

          7  is here, people don't like the smell of it.

          8                 I'm a non-smoker. Well, I have been

          9  for the last 25 years.

         10                 I gave it up when I found I couldn't

         11  run a mile too good anymore.

         12                 Now, when I listen to your stories

         13  about these hangovers the next day from these

         14  people, I'm kind of concerned about why I don't have

         15  a similar hangover when I leave my place of

         16  establishment after having been there for 16 hours.

         17                 MS. BURNHAM: Hi. My name is Mimi

         18  Burnham. I'm a former bartender. I'd like to thank

         19  the Chairwoman, Chairwoman Christine Quinn, and

         20  Stewart, being the last two remaining here. Thank

         21  you for staying.

         22                 I'm against this.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I just want to say

         24  I think we should all give Kendall Stewart, who is a

         25  Committee member, and I think somebody has to chair
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          2  so I have to stay, to give him a round of applause

          3  for staying. I'll allow that round of applause

          4  because I think it's a credit to what a good

          5  Committee member he is.

          6                 Anyway, no time taken away from you.

          7  Go ahead.

          8                 MS. BURNHAM: Thank you, Christine.

          9                 I'm against this smoking, Smoke Free

         10  Air Act. I'm tending to lean more towards freedom of

         11  choice.

         12                 I don't understand why individual

         13  bars and establishments, restaurants and taverns

         14  can't decide for themselves whether they're going to

         15  be smoking or nonsmoking.

         16                 When you realize and consider that 60

         17  percent of bartenders are smokers, what's it doing

         18  to their rights?

         19                 Recently the thing that bothered me

         20  the most is when I read King Michael Bloomberg --

         21  oh, I'm sorry, Mayor Michael Bloomberg, and his very

         22  personal agenda, which seems to be quite out of

         23  touch saying, and I quote, any Councilperson that

         24  votes for this measure I'll help. Does that mean

         25  that if you vote against this measure he won't be
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          2  filling potholes in your districts, and individual

          3  constituents are going to suffer because you didn't

          4  go along with the Bloomberg demand of a Smoke Free

          5  Air Act?

          6                 I find that to be very disconcerting.

          7  Any government that uses blackmail to enact

          8  legislation should be deemed unconstitutional and

          9  illegal. You should all stand united against this,

         10  whatever your belief is, for Smoke Free Air Act, pro

         11  or con.

         12                 Obviously Councilman Stewart has

         13  already made up his mind. He apparently has bought

         14  the Bloomberg challenge. I see that he's been

         15  nothing but against anybody that stands up here and

         16  talks about the anti-smoking legislation act. It's

         17  unfortunate.

         18                 So, what's next after we ban smoking

         19  in all bars and restaurants? Do we close McDonalds?

         20  Because obesity is really the number one inherent

         21  risk factor in this country, and is killing people

         22  every day with obesity? I just want to know where we

         23  join the line.

         24                 Everybody was comparing California

         25  and saying, you know, how we should ban things the
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          2  way they did there.

          3                 Well, California always had less

          4  smokers. Since 9/11 I've noticed there's been a lot

          5  more social smokers than there ever has been. Social

          6  smoke is a very strange thing. They go to a bar,

          7  they have a cocktail and they have a cigarette. It's

          8  quite a civilized thing if you admire that kind of

          9  lifestyle and behavior.

         10                 I think that we should bear in mind

         11  that LA used a gradual change, using exemptions for

         12  small bars and taverns before they banned it all

         13  together. They also had a tremendous amount of

         14  anti-smoking education.

         15                 New York City is very different.

         16  There's always been more smokers than any other

         17  City, except perhaps in the south.

         18                 It is for this reason that I think

         19  New York City taxpayers deserve a place to have a

         20  cocktail and a smoke in a civilized manner.

         21                 I live in New York City and I don't

         22  want to see people standing outside of a bar, which

         23  happens to be like four or five on every City block,

         24  and smoking and talking all night long, which is

         25  probably going to be me and my friends and it's just
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          2  not right.

          3                 It's not fair to the neighbors, there

          4  is going to be people out on the street, Councilman

          5  Stewart, contrary to what you might like to believe,

          6  people in the bar are going to go out and have a

          7  cigarette, yes, that's true. You're going to take 2

          8  million smokers that live in New York City and

          9  they're going to be out on the sidewalk smoking and

         10  creating a giant ashtray. I'd just like to know who

         11  is going to clean it up? Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         13  Stewart.

         14                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         15                 I take exception to the fact that you

         16  said I made up my mind. I just want to get the facts

         17  out, because it seems as though some of the facts

         18  are not being portrayed correctly.

         19                 Let me ask a question here. If you

         20  remember when we had, before the "Pooper Scooper"

         21  law came in, people used to take their dog to the

         22  park and do what they want, as far as that's

         23  concerned, and the people who want to use the parks

         24  made big noise. The people said, listen, if you

         25  wanted to use the park, you can go to another park.
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          2                 That's exactly what you're saying, if

          3  the worker was working in the bar, wants to work in

          4  another smoke-free area, you should go to another

          5  bar. That's what you're saying. And we had a law to

          6  protect those people who wanted to use the park,

          7  because they want clean parks, that's what we're

          8  talking about.

          9                 MS. BURNHAM: No, I'm not.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: The reason

         11  why I'm asking questions, I want all the facts to be

         12  out, both sides, so that I can make up my mind.

         13                 I want to understand what is

         14  happening here, see whose rights are being trampled

         15  upon. And every time your side comes up, they do not

         16  talk about the worker, the worker who have just as

         17  much rights as you and I.

         18                 MR. KELLY: We certainly do talk about

         19  the worker, and we mention that there are a number

         20  of places, where there is no smoking, they can apply

         21  to work there. If they've applied to work in a

         22  premise that has had smoking, and there have been

         23  places for many years now. We've had people up here,

         24  they're bartenders for three or four years, in that

         25  period of time there were many nonsmoking premises
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          2  here in the City that they could well have applied

          3  to.

          4                 When they applied to that job, they

          5  knew there was smoking involved. And unless you were

          6  born in a vacuum, I've known since 1943, '44, when I

          7  could understand what my father was saying, that

          8  smoking is no good for you.

          9                 So, I mean, this isn't a mystery or a

         10  disease that cropped up yesterday. So, therefore, if

         11  they went and applied for a job, or a position in a

         12  club that had smoking, they had to know what the

         13  risks and the dangers were.

         14                 That's what we're saying. We're not

         15  telling somebody who is working there now or has

         16  been for ten or 15 years should decide to go down

         17  the street, if you don't like working here, but the

         18  problem that they're having is that they like

         19  working here.

         20                 This young lady who brought out all

         21  her medication here today, my God in Heaven, I would

         22  have left that job the day after I started taking

         23  all that medication, or I would have went out on

         24  disability. But obviously she can't get a doctor to

         25  approve that disability to say in fact it was caused
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          2  by secondhand smoke, otherwise she'd be a fool to be

          3  in that workplace, and if it's in fact true that

          4  she's on all this medication, the woman is a fool

          5  for staying there, no matter what the price.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: To me that's

          7  a form of discrimination to those workers.

          8                 MS. BURNHAM: Wait a minute. What

          9  about the bartenders that are smokers, sir?

         10                 What about them? What about their

         11  rights? You know, they've chosen a livelihood that

         12  accommodates their lifestyle, you know, and that's

         13  like a 60 percent amount here in New York City, you

         14  have to realize that, you have to consider that.

         15  What are they supposed to do? They're supposed to go

         16  jump outside on the sidewalk or go down in the

         17  basement and have a quick smoke because it is an

         18  addiction?

         19                 I'm not happy that I'm a smoker, but

         20  it's what it is. I don't smoke a lot, I happen to be

         21  a social smoker, but it's the point, that I have the

         22  choice.

         23                 I mean, this reminds me of the Boston

         24  Tea Party, you know, it's like ridiculous.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: That worker
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          2  also needs that choice. Not the smoke. That is the

          3  question.

          4                 MS. BURNHAM: What if he is a smoker,

          5  sir? What about that? Now he has no right, even

          6  though he chose a business where he could smoke, it

          7  accommodates his situation and his lifestyle, and

          8  you're telling him now that he can't. What about

          9  him?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: No one is going to

         11  yell out from the audience.

         12                 I want to just say before we go back,

         13  I'd like witnesses in the future at all Health

         14  hearings, not to call other witnesses names. So, you

         15  may disagree with the woman who called before, to

         16  testify before, but to call her a fool is not

         17  appropriate. You put questions out about disability

         18  and stuff, we don't know the answers to those. Maybe

         19  she can't afford to take the decrease in the money

         20  that would be in her salary. You don't know.

         21                 They were very valid questions to

         22  ask, though, about whether those folks have tried

         23  for disability, which they may or may not be able to

         24  afford, that said no one is called, I don't believe

         25  anyone from the Council has called anybody on either
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          2  side a fool, although the Mayor has said things that

          3  are unfortunate, which I don't think he should say

          4  either. So, I'm going to ask witnesses please to not

          5  do that, and I should have said it as soon as you

          6  said it. I apologize for interrupting my colleague.

          7  Go ahead, Council Member Stewart.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

          9                 Now, I understand everyone has rights

         10  and they need to have that right, but your privilege

         11  ends where my right begins, and that goes for

         12  everybody.

         13                 Now, let me draw that scenario so

         14  that you may understand where I'm coming from.

         15                 You're a smoker, and you love your

         16  smoking, fine. But from lighting up a cigarette is

         17  the smoke which may or may not come on me, when I'm

         18  very close to you, it will get on my clothing.

         19  That's all agreed, right?

         20                 MS. BURNHAM: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Or I may get

         22  it, inhale it, et cetera. That is granted, we know

         23  all of that.

         24                 But that's what happened with you.

         25  You're a smoker, and that happens to me. I am sure
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          2  you wouldn't like, I'm being a beer drinker, the

          3  residue from being a beer drinker is what? Urine.

          4  You wouldn't want me to urine all over you.

          5                 MS. BURNHAM: Sir, in a civilized

          6  society we typically use bathrooms, but --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: That's the

          8  same thing I'm talking about.

          9                 MS. BURNHAM: No, it's not.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Let's not

         11  interrupt each other.

         12                 MS. BURNHAM: I'm sorry.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: What you are

         14  saying is that you can allow your smoke to be all

         15  over me. The residue from lighting up a cigarette,

         16  you can allow that, I have no choice because I have

         17  to work there.

         18                 MS. BURNHAM: No, what if you're a

         19  smoker, sir? You're not addressing that. If you are

         20  a bartender and you are a smoker, what about that?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: We have to

         22  deal with the people who are not a smoker, the

         23  people who are workers, that's all I'm concerned

         24  about. He may not want that smoke to be on him,

         25  that's what we're concerned about.
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          2                 MS. BURNHAM: And that's why I'm

          3  saying you guys absolutely need to consider

          4  exemptions, period.

          5                 MR. HELFER: Can I respond?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure.

          7                 MR. HELFER: Okay. First of all, a

          8  public park is owned by the City. We're talking

          9  about establishments which have been in the hands of

         10  families for maybe 50 or 60 years that attract a

         11  certain clientele. Everybody who works there knows

         12  what kind of clientele, everyone who goes there know

         13  they may smoke.

         14                 Now, when you go as a worker in an

         15  establishment, you may not like the music. You may

         16  not like the kind of people who come in. You may not

         17  like the way they dress, or the fact that they put

         18  things in their ears and that bothers you. We adapt

         19  to each other and we tolerate each other, we

         20  tolerate looking at each other and hearing each

         21  other's music - same thing with smoking.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         23                 If we could hear from Bernadette Lin;

         24  Theresa Cassiack and Mariella Moser.

         25                 Are those three folks still here? If
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          2  they could work their way on up? And then is Michael

          3  Kaplan in the room? Michael Kaplan? Okay. Then these

          4  three folks, is Dan Kelly still here? Okay. Sarah

          5  Porter? Okay. And Jay Craig. Mr. Craig still here?

          6  Okay, is James Gilligan still here? Mr. Gilligan? Is

          7  Jean McKenna still here? Okay, so you'll be part of

          8  the three that follow this.

          9                 Let me just ask one question, I'm

         10  sorry. Is Susan Sherbell, S-h-e-r-b-e-l-l here?

         11  Okay, I just want to say that this is a panel in

         12  support of the bill. Dan Kelly, Sarah Porter and

         13  Jean McKenna will be the last panel in opposition to

         14  the bill, last group of three in opposition to the

         15  bill, and we're going to, the witnesses we are going

         16  to be left with are those who are in support of the

         17  bill, so it will begin to not rotate back and forth.

         18                 There are other folks who are in

         19  opposition to the bill who would like to testify,

         20  please sign up, or somebody who I call who is in

         21  opposition who stepped out and has returned, please

         22  let the Sergeants know that. I just want folks to

         23  know how the format will change.

         24                 Go right ahead in whatever order

         25  you'd like.
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          2                 MS. CASSIACK: Good afternoon, Madam

          3  Chair. My name is Theresa Cassiack, and I'm the

          4  public health project coordinator for the New York

          5  Public Interest Research Group. And NYPIRG is a

          6  statewide nonpartisan research and advocacy

          7  organization involving a wide range of issues.

          8  Particularly we have long worked on the issue of how

          9  to best protect the public health on the hazards

         10  posed by tobacco use. And on behalf of NYPIRG I'm

         11  here to strongly urge that you support this

         12  critically important public health initiative. This

         13  legislation not only will help protect the public

         14  from exposure to secondhand tobacco smoke, a known

         15  human carcinogen, but it will also ensure a much

         16  safer workplace.

         17                 And workers in restaurants and bars

         18  have had their health put at risk due to continued

         19  exposure to secondhand smoke, and an analysis of

         20  worker exposure from the bartenders had rates of

         21  lung cancer prior than workers regularly exposed to

         22  unhealthy air conditions, firefighers, miners,

         23  cooks, duct workers and dry-cleaners, and in

         24  addition, waiters and waitresses have been found to

         25  have nearly twice the risk of lung cancer due to
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          2  exposure to secondhand smoke. And why is exposure to

          3  secondhand smoke so dangerous, because tobacco smoke

          4  contains over 4,000 chemicals, including chemicals

          5  that had been designated as hazardous waste by the

          6  federal government.

          7                 Clearly no worker, nor should a

          8  member of the public be exposed to such toxins, and

          9  the policy balance rests on the impact a smoking ban

         10  would have on the industry and the California law is

         11  a really helpful guide.

         12                 Researchers have concluded that these

         13  laws appear to be good for business ultimately, and

         14  furthermore, a recent study found that after a

         15  California smoking ban in bars was implemented,

         16  bartenders' health all around improved.

         17                 The study published in the journal of

         18  American Medical Association found that before the

         19  ban, 74 percent of bartenders reported respiratory

         20  problems, including coughing, wheezing and shortness

         21  of breath, and 77 percent of bartenders also

         22  reported eye, nose and throat irritations.  After

         23  the ban went into effect, those percentages dropped

         24  dramatically to 32 percent respectively. And can

         25  technology adequately protect workers in the public
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          2  health from the hazards posed by secondhand smoke?

          3  Clearly not.

          4                 And as you consider how to best

          5  address the issue of protecting workers and the

          6  public from the real health hazards posed by tobacco

          7  smoke, NYPIRG urges you to support a strong law that

          8  minimizes the regulatory burden to businesses and

          9  government alike.

         10                 Carveouts that all smoking in certain

         11  circumstances to continue exposure to the public and

         12  workers will add against significant regulatory

         13  enforcement and burden.

         14                 For example, if the City allows the

         15  use of ventilation systems, despite evidence that

         16  these systems don't clearly work, how will the City

         17  monitor these devices, how will the City unmask the

         18  resources to deploy adequate numbers of staff with

         19  the technology to ensure compliance, and how will

         20  you be sure that allowing carveouts will provide

         21  adequate protections for the public and workers

         22  alike. I have no doubt that you'll be under immense

         23  pressure to agree to changes to the Mayor's bill to

         24  respond to the concerns raised by members of the

         25  industry. I can appreciate the dilemma that it puts
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          2  you in.

          3                 However, amendments that allow

          4  carveouts for the use of technology make oversight

          5  much more difficult, and make it more difficult for

          6  businesses with fewer resources to comply.

          7                 That's I guess it. So, thank you.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Next.

          9                 MS. LIN: Hi. My name is Bernadette

         10  Lin. I'm a member of the Asian Tobacco Control Task

         11  Force, in Queens, and a volunteer for the American

         12  Cancer Society.

         13                 According to the US Department of

         14  Health and Human Services, 60,000 people die each

         15  year from breathing other people's cigarette smoke.

         16  Cigarettes kill more Americans than AIDS, alcohol,

         17  car accidents, fires, illegal drugs, murder and

         18  suicides combined. This is a very serious problem.

         19                 Secondhand smoke is the third leading

         20  preventable cause of disability and early deaths in

         21  the United States. For every eight smokers who die

         22  from smoking, one innocent bystander dies from

         23  secondhand smoke.

         24                 Secondhand smoke poses serious health

         25  hazards to bartenders, food service workers. They
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          2  should have the same option of a smoke-free

          3  environment, as employees who work in offices.

          4                 California and Colorado State are

          5  completely smoke-free. No smoking in restaurants,

          6  bars and nightclubs, smoke-free laws have not

          7  affected restaurants and bar revenues. Actually

          8  revenue has grown in both bars and restaurants,

          9  since this health measure was enacted in 1998.

         10                 Eighty to 90 percent of smokers

         11  become addicted before reaching age 19. This product

         12  is as addicting as heroin. Tobacco education

         13  programs are very important.

         14                 The Clean Air Bill will not only

         15  benefit of nonsmokers, but will also benefit for all

         16  our children. It is time for every worker to be

         17  protected from secondhand smoke. We support the

         18  Smoke-Free Workplace Act of 2002.

         19                 Wouldn't it be nice to go out for an

         20  evening and not have your clothes, your hair, your

         21  lungs filled with smoke? Thank you.

         22                 MS. MOSER: Hi. My name is Mariella

         23  Moser. I'm a bartender, a student and a nonsmoker. I

         24  bartend to pay my rent and living expenses while I

         25  study architecture and visual arts at Columbia
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          2  University.

          3                 Before I was a bartender, I was a

          4  customer, and as customers should be, I was

          5  oblivious to how bad this problem was. I was annoyed

          6  by smokey hair and skin and irritated by my throat

          7  and watery eyes, as well as smelly clothes and some

          8  burn marks, as well, on my clothes.

          9                 Since bartending I have become a

         10  second-hand chain smoker. I cough, I am suddenly

         11  winded easily and that's not because I'm out of

         12  shape, I was a professional dancer with Miami City

         13  Ballet before I chose to go to school.

         14                 I have headaches and irritated eyes

         15  that affect my studies. I am disheartened that there

         16  is any opposition to this. This is not about

         17  convenience, this is about basic human rights.

         18                 I'm going to have kids some day and I

         19  would be so relieved to not have the guilt of the

         20  damage that is going to be done to me.

         21                 I do not have the option to find

         22  another job because I have to work at night, and

         23  honestly, I cannot wait to begin my profession and

         24  not depend on customers throwing me a dollar and

         25  heavy physical labor I have to do and why I have
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          2  enough respect for people who are not blowing smoke

          3  in my face.

          4                 In my opinion, this is a very easy

          5  decision, and for those who are opposed to it, if

          6  this act passes, I'm very sorry to inconvenience

          7  you. Thank you.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Thank

          9  you. I have one question that I want to ask. We all

         10  talk about rights. We have rights to smoke and we're

         11  having rights to the job and we're having rights for

         12  everything, what we call civil rights; how would you

         13  explain to the folks, that, listen, the people who

         14  have their small pubs, their small bars and they've

         15  been doing this for umpteen years, and they feel

         16  it's their right to keep doing the same thing

         17  continuously, how would you answer to that? Any one

         18  of you?

         19                 MS. MOSER: Well, I don't think that

         20  this would pass or work if it was only halfway done,

         21  because people will go where their friends who smoke

         22  can be comfortable, most comfortable, and

         23  convenienced, and inconvenienced -- or

         24  inconvenienced, so I hope it's passed completely and

         25  not halfway, because it will cause a problem.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Thank

          3  you.

          4                 For the next panel we have Dan Kelly,

          5  Sarah Porter and Gene McKenna.

          6                 The next would be Ann Arlan, William

          7  Howard, and Richard Toes. Either one could start.

          8  Just state your name and you can start.

          9                 MS. PORTER: Hi. Thank you for staying

         10  this long time here at this hearing.

         11                 My name is Sarah Porter, I'm from

         12  Williamsburg Brooklyn, and I'm speaking as a

         13  Steering Committee Member of Friends of the

         14  Northside, a volunteer community group that is

         15  successfully organized around quality of life

         16  issues, mainly issues that deal with late night

         17  businesses. And it seems that in the rush of signing

         18  up to support this public anti-smoking ban, it

         19  appears that little real consideration has been

         20  given to the effect that this ban will have on

         21  residents who live adjacent to popular bars, clubs

         22  and late night restaurants.

         23                 For neighborhoods like mine, in the

         24  north side of Williamsburg, Brooklyn, which is

         25  currently one of the City's hottest spots, it's
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          2  going to turn our current nightmare of being awoken

          3  by drunken, noisy bar traffic into a constant hell,

          4  and I'm not kidding, as our ability to sleep is

          5  greatly decreased due to the increase in noise on

          6  the street.

          7                 It's unclear to me what is going to

          8  happen the next Mayoral initiative for the decrease

          9  in nighttime noise because this anti-smoking, indoor

         10  anti-smoking ban is going to force all the smokers

         11  outside, and they will come outside and they make a

         12  lot of noise and I don't know how that's going to be

         13  dealt with.

         14                 For neighborhoods like mine, which

         15  are saturated by bars and restaurants that serve

         16  alcohol and stay open late, it's going to make our

         17  situation much worse. There are almost 30 late-night

         18  establishments within a two-block radius of the

         19  center of our neighborhood, and these contribute to

         20  a carnival free-for-all that occurs from 12:00 or

         21  11:00 to 5:00 a.m. Unfortunately, these businesses

         22  don't just occur in a commercial or industrial

         23  setting, but are set cheek by jowl with three and

         24  four story multi-family residences that has, many

         25  that have first floor apartments that are right at
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          2  street level. It's not like we have a big setback,

          3  the streets are very narrow. When someone is on the

          4  street talking, they're in our living rooms and in

          5  our bedrooms, because that's how the apartments are

          6  designed with the kitchens at the back.

          7                 And unfortunately, what this means

          8  for us is that we are constantly awoken by drunken

          9  partiers. This is right now kind of an intermittent

         10  issue where I'd say at 2:30 a.m. we're waked up in

         11  the morning by someone carousing on the street. It

         12  doesn't have to be a group, it can just be one

         13  person, and then, you know, we get angry, we get

         14  frustrated, by the time this resentment and

         15  frustration wears off, we're just dosing back to

         16  sleep - well, guess what, we're waked up again, and

         17  this happens repeatedly night after night.

         18                 Now, unfortunately, the smokers and

         19  they will smoke and they will come out, they're

         20  going to have to come outside, are going to make

         21  this a continuous problem and it will guarantee no

         22  way of our getting back to sleep. It will mean a

         23  continuous cocktail party outdoors on the sidewalk.

         24  Clusters of smokers will hang outside my window as

         25  they puff and laugh and talk away. They'll be
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          2  continuing their conversation and their good time,

          3  which they want to have when they go out, outside,

          4  so instead there won't be any walls to contain their

          5  noise.

          6                 They'll hang out in groups, because

          7  friends will invite another friend to come out and

          8  smoke with them, and then they'll drink faster as

          9  they finish up a drink as they have to join their

         10  friend to go outside. This is a really big problem.

         11  The door opening continuously for places that play

         12  loud music, that music will be constantly blaring

         13  for all the neighbors to hear. And it's very

         14  difficult for us because this is placing the burden

         15  and onus especially on us.

         16                 Just like a State Liquor Authority

         17  that licenses these establishments, they don't

         18  really help in doing anything to solve the problems

         19  that these places create, and the burden is placed

         20  on neighbors, residents like me and hundreds of my

         21  neighbors that have to, first have to deal with the

         22  problem, you know, can't sleep, which I think

         23  everyone can understand is a very significant health

         24  issue, and also then have to organize to try to stop

         25  the problem. That's a lot of time and effort for
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          2  volunteers who, like me, should be at work right

          3  now. Thank you.

          4                 MR. McKENNA: My name is Gene McKenna.

          5  I'm President of the Bronx Restaurant and Tavern

          6  Owners.

          7                 After prohibition, there were as many

          8  as 1,500 licensees in the Borough of the Bronx.

          9  There are now fewer than 200. There are whole parts

         10  of our county that have no restaurants to speak of,

         11  other than McDonalds or Burger King or Pizza Hut,

         12  and no restaurants or bars for any kind of a

         13  nightlife. So, the lights are out in large parts of

         14  the City.

         15                 Just like Avenue A and a lot of

         16  places in Manhattan that have gotten new life

         17  because bars and restaurants took the chance at

         18  going into those communities, and set up a social

         19  live that was attractive and comfortable to large

         20  numbers of young people, and brought them back into

         21  the urban setting, and gentrified neighborhoods that

         22  had been given up by not only the politicians but by

         23  the police. So, too, there are parts of the Bronx

         24  that no one will tread in. And there are many, many

         25  residents of the Bronx who would welcome a bar or a
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          2  restaurant on their corner, welcome a restaurant of

          3  any kind at any part of the week or the night.

          4                 The City's needs are different in

          5  different places. What the lady next to me just

          6  spoke of is very valid complaint, and it's one that

          7  I want to address in my brief time here.

          8                 Who is going to police this? The

          9  Mayor has told us that there's going to be a hiring

         10  freeze. So, this certainly is not going to be the

         11  Health Department. It's going to be the Police

         12  Department. And what happens when the Precinct

         13  Commander is told that you will get 50 summonses in

         14  bars and restaurants in this given month, which is

         15  like he's told how many traffic violations or

         16  summonses for parking he's going to get, and we

         17  start sending out the smoke police, to complicate

         18  all the other things that the New York City

         19  Department has to handle.

         20                 And what are we doing when we're

         21  criminalizing our people and our businesses?

         22                 The State Liquor Authority puts a bar

         23  owner or a restaurateur who wants a liquor license

         24  under incredible scrutiny to get that license; what

         25  you're going to do is criminalize that person by
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          2  making them responsible, and the tune of the fine is

          3  $1,000, $1,200. If you've got three people in your

          4  place smoking, $3,400. Only Bloomberg can pay that.

          5                 Now, we've come from a City where

          6  Bella Abzug used to sit in this Chamber and was a

          7  wonderful addition to any public forum. Had a father

          8  who owned a meat market called the "Live and Let

          9  Live Meat Market." That represented the generational

         10  thing in this City for poor people, for people who

         11  were discriminated against from other countries and

         12  from our own country.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Can you wrap up,

         14  please?

         15                 MR. McKENNA: I will wrap up. But the

         16  live and let live mentality is being woefully thrown

         17  aside in this Chamber if the Mayor is rubber

         18  stamped, and I think the City Council is the last

         19  offense of the little guy in this town.

         20                 Let me finish just by saying that

         21  last night they did a story on Jimmy Carter. Jimmy

         22  Carter wanted to cut the budget of the federal

         23  government, and he sat down with the democratic

         24  leaders, and he was reminded by Chip O'Neal, that

         25  the democrat party defense the little guy, that the
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          2  democratic party is still a champion of the poor,

          3  and it was not his place to cut out the programs

          4  that he wanted to cut.

          5                 We have a City imbalance of $6

          6  billion --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Please sum up.

          8                 MR. McKENNA: -- And cutting

          9  businesses that are tax producing and job producing

         10  is not the way to make up that imbalance.

         11                 Thank you for your courtesy and thank

         12  you, Chair, for an evenhandedness throughout this

         13  hearing.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Thank

         15  you. I'm sorry I missed part of your testimony, I

         16  had to -- well, I guess you can all figure it out.

         17                 Did you all go? Okay, great. Thank

         18  you very much.

         19                 MR. KELLY: Good afternoon. My name is

         20  Dan Kelly, and my family is one of those small

         21  family-owned taverns that we've often heard spoken

         22  of today. So small that I can walk into my place on

         23  any given day and not only call my customers by

         24  name, tell you the brand of cigarette they're

         25  smoking and the drink that they're enjoying.
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          2                 That is what my neighborhood bar is.

          3  And now you're saying that all those smokers that I

          4  have in there which represent 80 percent of them,

          5  they should not be allowed to hang out there.

          6  Because it's the workers rights you're looking to

          7  protect.

          8                 Well, each job has certain risks with

          9  everything that, you know, people choose to do. A

         10  cop has the risk of being shot every day he's on the

         11  job. The fireman, the risk of being burnt. A miner,

         12  risk of a mine collapse. A doctor, the risk of

         13  contracting a disease that could obviously cause

         14  death within months. But the point is that there are

         15  inherent risk with every job that we choose to do.

         16  Risks that make one job more or less desirable than

         17  another job to take. And as many of the employees up

         18  here have stated against smoking, but yet they still

         19  keep on working, the fact of the matter is, it's a

         20  desirable job, because it can help pay the ways

         21  through universities, such as Columbia, Pennsylvania

         22  State University for my case, and many other

         23  universities across the country.

         24                 You know, the employee is right. Are

         25  the employees of our state prisons not an important
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          2  matter to the Mayor? For it's all right for

          3  prisoners to smoke throughout the prisons, so our

          4  Corrections Officers have to breathe that air in.

          5  How about that of the toll booth collector? Is his

          6  rights not of significance? The Mayor looks to add

          7  toll booth on the East River Crossing, we all know

          8  what the traffic jams that will lead to, the

          9  increase in harmful air pollutants to those workers,

         10  but I guess it's all right to them.

         11                 The issue about this is the right to

         12  choose. The right for my family to choose to operate

         13  a business that has smoking. The right to employees

         14  to choose to work for my family or to not work for

         15  my family, to go somewhere else, to choose to work

         16  in a smoke-free environment.

         17                 Please do not use this legislation to

         18  make my family cater to 20 percent of our business

         19  and tell 80 percent of our customers, sorry, I have

         20  to listen to the small minority of my place, because

         21  each place is definitely very different.

         22                 And as far as my employees, this will

         23  not hurt my employees, this will eliminate my

         24  employees.

         25                 I'm not sure what's worse, taking the
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          2  risk of going to work, or not going to work at all.

          3  And just to dispute a couple of things that have

          4  been said around here today, New York is definitely

          5  not LA. I spent the last three years actually living

          6  in LA, and I can contest to the fact that New York

          7  is far from LA.

          8                 The City Council president from LA, I

          9  challenge him any day to name, I can go name after

         10  name in regards to how many places --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you can sum up.

         12                 MR. KELLY: -- Have outdoor areas that

         13  don't have outdoor areas. After all, February 3rd in

         14  LA, you can walk outside in 60 degree temperatures

         15  and enjoy that cigarette where you can't do that in

         16  New York.

         17                 Basically stating the fact that,

         18  again, to sum up, it's all about the right to

         19  choose. Choose where you hang out, choose where you

         20  work, choose how to own your own private business,

         21  which we all pay an incredible amount of taxes to

         22  do.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         24                 Council Member Stewart.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,
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          2  Madam Chair.

          3                 I would like to know have you thought

          4  about whether we should consider the idea of an

          5  exemption, the certain bars, like the mom and pop

          6  bars being exempt? What is your thinking on that?

          7                 MR. KELLY: Yes, I definitely think

          8  that something like this would have to be looked at

          9  in a case by case situation.

         10                 There are many restaurant chains out

         11  there that could do fine without having a smoking

         12  policy, you know, with the restaurants that they

         13  are, people going there for two hours, they can

         14  fight their urge for two hours, and those businesses

         15  can still thrive.

         16                 But a business like myself, and the

         17  many businesses in my neighborhood of Queens that

         18  would not be able to, so you'll just be able to

         19  stand up there, and in one broad stroke wipe out all

         20  that business. I definitely do not think it's fair

         21  and as a businessman, I would obviously be open to

         22  suggestions and meeting halfway, but as we've heard,

         23  it's either the Mayor's way or no way.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Ms. Porter?

         25                 MR. McKENNA: May I address that? I
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          2  agree in part. I think that exemptions are going to

          3  have to be made, because the impact of this is

          4  horrendous, and yet does anyone really believe that

          5  the clubs that the Mayor favors, the private clubs

          6  that he populates, that he wines and dines his

          7  friends, do you think any of those places will be

          8  harassed by the Health Department or by the Police

          9  Department?

         10                 Does anyone seriously think that the

         11  Princeton Club or the University Club or the Union

         12  League Club is going to enforce a smoking bill?

         13                 Do they think that they're going to

         14  turn away their members?

         15                 Does anyone believe that the Waldorf

         16  Astoria will do it? I sat in the Waldorf one

         17  Christmas Eve and listened to a French family that

         18  came in with their three children, none of whom were

         19  ten years of age, and the children were wonderfully

         20  dressed for Christmas, they were Christmas itself,

         21  and they sat down and their father ordered a bottle

         22  of wine and five glasses, and the waiter looked at

         23  the Maitre de and the Maitre de nodded his head and

         24  they served the five glasses, because in their

         25  country children drink wine. And they wouldn't think
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          2  of offending that foreign tourist.

          3                 Does anyone believe that the Waldorf

          4  is going to tell a foreign tourist to put out the

          5  cigarette or go out on the street, God forbid?

          6  Absolutely not.

          7                 So, what we're talking about is one

          8  rule that will apply for the wealth, and another

          9  that's going to apply for the working man and the

         10  poor in this City, and this whole business of

         11  Bloomberg's elitism is what is at the heart of this

         12  thing.

         13                 MR. KELLY: The Clean Air Act of '95

         14  was actually that compromise. It was where we did

         15  come up with a medium ground, based on your size,

         16  your percent of business through your restaurant and

         17  so forth, and that's where the bar -- we said, okay,

         18  you're right, and we were willing to meet halfway

         19  and all has been fine, but now to come in and just

         20  say, no, it's the Council that has obviously shown

         21  compromise is not the answer because we have already

         22  done that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

         24                 Ms. Porter, you spoke about turning

         25  your neighborhood into a nightmare with the people
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          2  from the bar. What kind of stats do you have that

          3  indicate that all these people are going to be

          4  hanging out outside?

          5                 Do you have any stats? See, these are

          6  other places that have had this law put into place,

          7  and to the contrary, it's not the case that people

          8  are hanging out in that great abundance.

          9                 MR. PORTER: That's a very good point.

         10  And I would actually like to invite you to come and

         11  spend the night in our neighborhood so you can

         12  experience some of the stuff that I'm talking about.

         13                 Perhaps your neighborhood, your

         14  district doesn't have these problems and you're

         15  lucky, okay? Let me tell you, you're really lucky.

         16  But regarding the issue with the different cities

         17  not having this problem, what I'm talking about is

         18  an increase in noise. And our physical structure of

         19  our City is different than that of San Francisco,

         20  LA, Ottawa, Salem, Massachusetts. I mean, come on,

         21  we are talking about very narrow streets with a

         22  continuous street wall, you know, facade, building

         23  facade on both sides of the street.

         24                 What this does is that people even

         25  talking at a regular voice level, you don't have a
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          2  lot of other ambient sound, like car traffic you

          3  might have in Manhattan, that sound starts echoing

          4  and ricocheting up and around, off of the streets,

          5  off of the building facade and gets louder and

          6  louder, and it's a really big problem.

          7                 LA doesn't have that problem, they

          8  don't have that continuous street, San Francisco has

          9  two-way streets, not as tall buildings, et cetera,

         10  et cetera, and Salem, Massachusetts, well, you know.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Back about

         12  ten years ago we had social club crackdown, and

         13  everyone was clamoring that because of so many

         14  social clubs that were illegal, et cetera, we would

         15  have the underground clubs, and we would have

         16  quality of life, we would have a lot more crime.

         17                 Contrary to that, the reverse has

         18  happened. And I would like to know if you have any

         19  stats that would show that what we try to do is

         20  going to be what you're saying --

         21                 MS. PORTER: You know what? It's

         22  actually ironic that the evening after the first

         23  hearing that there were so many people here, and I

         24  came home, I didn't actually go because I knew it

         25  was packed out, but I came home and there's a little
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          2  bar actually across the street from me, little

          3  restaurant, but they don't actually smoke in there,

          4  may that's why they don't have very good clientele,

          5  no one goes there, but at any rate, this restaurant,

          6  there were people outside, congregating in groups,

          7  smoking, and they were bringing their drinks out and

          8  they were talking together and they were smoking and

          9  they're having a good time. And maybe it's your

         10  experience that the people that you know don't get

         11  louder and more obnoxious when they're drinking.

         12  But, unfortunately, the people who come to my

         13  neighborhood, and neighborhoods like the Lower East

         14  Side, and Greenwich Village, and Smith Street and

         15  the new hot spot in Smith Street in Brooklyn, and

         16  Fifth Avenue in Brooklyn, is just not the case. They

         17  don't give a crap whether they're loud or not, and

         18  it's really going to happen.

         19                 And also there's another

         20  establishment in our neighborhood where you can't

         21  smoke inside and I, myself, actually used to be a

         22  smoker, and since January, and I would go outside

         23  and smoke, and that's what everyone else did, and

         24  they would bring their drinks out.

         25                 MR. KELLY: May I add the fact that
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          2  you're saying there was no pop up in underground

          3  clubs. Well, it's good to know -- that's an illegal

          4  action, so there's laws again doing illegal actions.

          5  This smoking that is going to be taking place out in

          6  the street is not illegal. It's very legal and

          7  apparently in the people's rights to go outside and

          8  talk. So, you can't stop a legal act, but you can

          9  stop an illegal act. So, I mean that goes along with

         10  in comparison to DUI. We have laws to regulate it,

         11  because people don't have a choice to get hit by a

         12  drunk driver, but you do have a choice on whether or

         13  not you're going to go in the hangout or work in the

         14  environment where smoke is. When people don't have a

         15  choice, they need to be protected. But when they

         16  have a choice and the choice can be made, they do

         17  not need the protection of the state.

         18                 MR. McKENNA: Councilman, I'd also

         19  like to remind you that under the Bloomberg years,

         20  and this is following on the very repressive years

         21  of Rudolph Giuliani, we're finding that the Police

         22  Department is enforcing noise regulations and codes,

         23  putting very acceptable businesses out of business

         24  on technicalities, like Cabaret, which is an

         25  antiquated law, and badly needs the review of the
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          2  City Council. Cabaret and catering and they have

          3  every way of harassing and closing and padlocking

          4  places that are perfectly legitimate businesses, but

          5  we cannot seem to find a way of closing all the

          6  places that sell drugs. We can't seem to find a

          7  place that sells drugs anywhere in this City. And if

          8  you can show me where the clubs are dealing in drugs

          9  and dealing in death are being closed, I'll shut up.

         10                 MS. PORTER: And I'd just like to

         11  bring up one other thing, is that, yes, after the

         12  Happyland disaster, whenever it was, like ten years

         13  ago, there has been a real crackdown on the social

         14  clubs, but there has been a great increase in the

         15  diminishment of quality of life in neighborhoods

         16  where there's been an outrageous influx of bars and

         17  restaurants, like the Lower East Side, the East

         18  Village, my neighborhood, et cetera. And if you go

         19  to any community boards committee meetings on the

         20  State Liquor Authority, you'd hear the continuous

         21  complaints from these people, and in my neighborhood

         22  over 700 people signed onto a lawsuit to sue the

         23  State Liquor Authority for improperly granting a

         24  liquor license to a large club in the middle of a

         25  residential block.
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          2                 So, if that's any indication, these

          3  are, you know, immigrant Polish people, immigrant

          4  Ukranians, newer people like myself, long-time

          5  residents, artists, musicians, people who go to

          6  bars, you know, these people know what the

          7  ramifications are.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you all.

          9  Thank you.

         10                 MR. McKENNA: Thank you.

         11                 MR. KELLY: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Ann Arlen, Richard

         13  Toes, and William Howard. And then if I could see --

         14  that was the last group of three in opposition.

         15                 Is John Seirup here?

         16                 MR. SEIRUP: Seirup.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Seirup. Okay,

         18  you'll be in the next group.

         19                 Is Melanie Smith still here? Melanie

         20  Smith, okay. Jade Mandrake still here? Okay, you

         21  guys will be the next group of three.

         22                 Are we missing our third one? There

         23  are two here. Are you William or Richard?

         24                 MR. TOES: Richard.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Is William Howard
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          2  here? Mr. Howard left? Okay.

          3                 John why don't you come on up and be

          4  part of this panel then. And is Yoon Won Choi still

          5  here? He's gone, okay. Is Anita Thacher here? Okay,

          6  so you'll be in the group of three following these

          7  folks.

          8                 Go ahead, whoever would like to

          9  start.

         10                 MS. ARLEN: Okay. My name is Ann

         11  Arlen. I am Vice Chair of Community Board 2,

         12  Manhattan, and Chair of its Environment Committee.

         13                 Community Board Manhattan covers the

         14  district of Greenwich Village, SoHo, NoHo and a

         15  large portion of Little Italy and Chinatown. That

         16  means we're in an area with significant nightlife.

         17                 A little over a week ago, Monday the

         18  4th, we had a public hearing very, very well

         19  attended on this issue. It was, everybody who came

         20  to that hearing testified and they testified, the

         21  testifiers were about equal on both sides. So we had

         22  a number of people from the New York Nightlife

         23  Association and individual bartenders and we had

         24  bartenders who favor the ban because of the effects

         25  on their health.
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          2                 In the end, we're very concerned

          3  about the quality of life issue and also about the

          4  business drop-off issue. However, we felt that the

          5  data on second-hand smoke and the health effects on

          6  second-hand smoke on people was not only stronger

          7  data in itself, in that we don't really know what

          8  the effects will be from a smoking ban in terms of

          9  quality of life and in terms of business drop-offs,

         10  since there's plenty of evidence that the 65, 80

         11  percent of the people who don't smoke and really

         12  don't want to go into places where there is smoke,

         13  will come out and go to these places if they become

         14  inviting places because they're not filled with

         15  smoke.

         16                 So, what it came down to in the end

         17  was that we were not willing to trade the health and

         18  lives of people who work in those places and seek a

         19  level playing field in terms of not having to

         20  breathe secondhand smoke in order to be employed. We

         21  were not willing to trade their lives and health for

         22  these issues of quality of life, and the business

         23  environment.

         24                 Let's see, we want to thank the Mayor

         25  for his courageous leadership. This is a tough issue
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          2  and he got out in front, and we want to thank the

          3  individual Council members, including our Council

          4  Member Christine Quinn, Alan Gerson, who are

          5  sponsoring this bill, that also is courageous

          6  leadership.

          7                 A number of people today have

          8  testified today that on the importance of having a

          9  level playing field, that is important. If we wind

         10  up with certain exemptions --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Ann, if you could

         12  wrap up?

         13                 MS. ARLEN: Sure.

         14                 So, I guess we would say that the

         15  challenge for the bar owners is to go after the

         16  other 65 to 80 percent of our population who they

         17  might find are really happy to be there to give them

         18  half a chance.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 MR. TOES: Good evening. My name is

         22  Richard Toes. I've been a bartender for 22 years,

         23  and I'm sure by now you have heard just about all

         24  you care to regarding the tobacco industry inspired

         25  debate.
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          2                 With this proposed bill, Intro. 256,

          3  you are being asked to weigh my health and my fellow

          4  workers health against other people's convenience,

          5  that's health versus convenience, that's nothing

          6  more and nothing less.

          7                 It is my hope that your decision will

          8  be based upon fairness, and not about who makes the

          9  most noise. This fairness to workers and the

         10  innocent public to breathe smoke-free non-polluted

         11  air, is what I hope you will make your decision

         12  upon.

         13                 For over 22 years I have been

         14  breathing secondhand smoke, and for the last ten of

         15  those years I have been dealing with sometimes

         16  massive nosebleeds, which I can only attribute to

         17  secondhand smoke.

         18                 I am not a second place citizen and I

         19  desire the same workplace protection that you people

         20  enjoy. Please do not send me back to this unhealthy

         21  environment.

         22                 Secondhand smoke is an unacceptable

         23  hazard to workers.

         24                 I'd just like to leave you with this

         25  quote from an unknown person. It goes like this:
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          2                 "The enslavement of contracting

          3  cancer or emphysema should not be the price even one

          4  citizen should have to pay for another person's

          5  freedom to smoke."

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          8                 Go ahead.

          9                 MR. SEIRUP: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thanks.

         11                 MR. SEIRUP: My name is John Seirup.

         12  I'm Chair of the Clean Indoor Air Committee for the

         13  Seira Club New York City Group. Thank you, Madam

         14  Chair for the opportunity to speak before you, for

         15  the opportunity to please support and pass Intro.

         16  256 intact as it reads today without amendments that

         17  would weaken it.

         18                 Intro. 256, as written, sets forth a

         19  very simple public policy, a public policy that is

         20  easy to understand, is straightforward to implement,

         21  a public policy that is easy by comparison to

         22  enforce, that restored a level playing field and a

         23  public policy that protects all workers from

         24  secondhand tobacco smoke.

         25                 Effective, simple public policy like
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          2  this suffers very quickly by the introduction of

          3  amendments to weaken it.

          4                 Exemptions would complicate

          5  compliance. Exemptions would make enforcement more

          6  complicated and more expensive.

          7                 Exemptions would encourage

          8  establishments to qualify for the exemption, rather

          9  than to comply with the intended policy.

         10                 Exemptions would create an uneven

         11  playing field that would leave some businesses

         12  justifiably unhappy, and that would even leave the

         13  door open to legal action.

         14                 But worst of all, some exemptions

         15  would leave unaddressed the most egregious forums of

         16  exposure to secondhand tobacco smoke on the part of

         17  workers.

         18                 Please support the passage of Intro.

         19  256 as proposed.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Thank

         22  you, all.

         23                 Melanie Smith; Jade Mandrake; and

         24  Anita Thacher.

         25                 And then is Alex -- okay, you'll be
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          2  the next. Harry Crane. Is Mr. Crane still here?

          3  Okay. Is Peter Koo still here? Okay, you'll be in

          4  the next group after this.

          5                 Is Frank Cvervo here?

          6                 Okay, let me just do some

          7  housekeeping. Hold on a second.

          8                 Is Sara Velez still here? Ms. Velez?

          9  Okay. Is Carrie Lu still here? Okie dokie. I think

         10  it's Santamaria Archila still here? If any of these

         11  folks come back, just let the Sergeant know.

         12                 Is Dr. Lamin still here? No. Dr.

         13  Lamin has left; is that correct? Okay. Albert Hsu

         14  still here? Okay, you're still here. Phil Konigsberg

         15  still here? Okay. Marlene Smith? Is Ms. Smith still

         16  here?

         17                 Jeannette Cadavajo still here? No.

         18  Okay, Alison Jolicoeur still here? Okay. Sorry,

         19  almost done. Tracy Sainvil, I think it's

         20  S-a-i-n-c-i-l still here? Okay. Beatrice Dupont

         21  still here? Okay. And Geoff Geringer still here?

         22  Okay, great. So, you three folks reset the clock,

         23  and just go ahead in whatever order you want.

         24                 MS. SMITH: Hi. My name is Melanie

         25  Smith. I'm a waitress currently at a nonsmoking
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          2  restaurant jazz club. Before that I used to work at

          3  a smoking restaurant where I in part had to quite

          4  because of the excessive smoke.

          5                 I'm not a hypochondriac.  I don't

          6  have any asthmatic conditions or anything like that,

          7  but I am a singer and because of the smoke and

          8  talking over customers, the music combined with the

          9  smoke, I developed a polyp on my throat and it made

         10  me unable to sing and pursue my music career which

         11  is what I do primarily.

         12                 At the restaurant that I work at now,

         13  which is nonsmoking, there have been a couple of

         14  customers who have complained about not being able

         15  to smoke, but not one customer that I've ever served

         16  has walked out of the restaurant because they

         17  couldn't smoke. They stayed and enjoyed themselves

         18  fine.

         19                 I'd like to make a comment to the

         20  people that have commented on waitresses working at

         21  another establishment if they don't like smoking,

         22  the smoking. You know, with the economy that we live

         23  in right now, it's very difficult for every

         24  industry, so it's not like waitresses really have an

         25  option to just up and decide, oh, I want to work
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          2  with this other restaurant now, because they don't

          3  let you smoke.

          4                 Like when you find a job as a

          5  waitress you kind of have to stay there because it's

          6  very difficult to just find another one quickly, and

          7  when rent is due, rent is due, you can't tell them

          8  I'm waiting for another position where, you know,

          9  smoking isn't allowed.

         10                 So, if we're talking about the

         11  economy, every industry is hit, and, so, you don't

         12  have the freedom to just choose and quit your job

         13  because they let people smoke. So, that's pretty

         14  much it.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         17                 MS. MANDRAKE: My name is Jade

         18  Mandrake, and I'm a bartender on the lower east

         19  side. I'm not an out-of-towner, I was born and

         20  raised here. I've been bartending about four years.

         21                 I believe it is extremely important

         22  that this ban on smoking in all workplaces is

         23  passed.

         24                 After working a shift at the bar, I

         25  go home feeling disgusting. I can feel the weight in
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          2  my lungs from breathing in the secondhand smoke, my

          3  eyes burn and I cough.

          4                 I work as a bartender, like many

          5  others, because it gives me the flexible hours I

          6  need to go to school and the necessary income to pay

          7  my rent and bills.

          8                 I have been forced to cut my shift

          9  down to two nights a week because I am prone to

         10  colds, foods and excessive coughing and phlegm due

         11  to the unhealthy environment.

         12                 I would like to continue to tend

         13  bars, I'm skilled in this, but the health threats

         14  are apparent and threatening me physically.

         15                 I don't believe there should be any

         16  exceptions to workers health, that some workers

         17  should be protected and not others is inexcusable.

         18                 One argument I have heard is that

         19  people will not patronize bars when smoking is

         20  banned.

         21                 As a bartender this would concern me

         22  if I believed it to be true. What must be considered

         23  are the large amounts of nonsmokers that would

         24  patronize these establishments, when it is a

         25  healthier environment.
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          2                 Also, nightlife is a fundamental part

          3  of the City and I think it is foolish to think that

          4  people will not adjust to such a law.

          5                 Many smokers want to quit anyway and

          6  an extra boost would be helpful.

          7                 Many of the smokers in bars are just

          8  casual smokers and will be happy to quit once and

          9  for all.

         10                 People go out to have a good time

         11  with friends to see music and dance. To hold the

         12  idea that smoking is an integral part of this is to

         13  allow the tobacco companies' marketing strategy to

         14  win. Smoking is nothing but fatal. We are a

         15  progressive society and music and entertainment has

         16  no needed relationship with this lethal behavior.

         17                 I urge you to see through the smoke

         18  of this issue and look at the facts. Smoke kills and

         19  bar and restaurant workers should not be excluded

         20  from the kind of protection that other workers have.

         21                 A strict ban on smoking in bars,

         22  restaurants and clubs is a win situation for all

         23  involved.

         24                 Nonsmokers will be able to go out

         25  more often and stay out longer, bar owners will make
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          2  as much or even more money and be able to provide a

          3  safer environment for their staff, their patrons and

          4  themselves.

          5                 Casual smokers will probably quite

          6  all together and even the most hard core smoker will

          7  be healthier from the lack of secondhand smoke.

          8                 The only possible losers in this

          9  scenario are the tobacco companies who are certainly

         10  going to do everything they can to prevent this law

         11  from happening.

         12                 They could care less that people are

         13  hurting themselves and others in the process. They

         14  depend on it. Thank you.

         15                 MS. THACHER: Thank you. My name is

         16  Anita Thacher. I live in one of those areas where

         17  there are lots of new bars. I'm in a residential

         18  area.

         19                 We're very affected as residents. I

         20  know this law is to protect workers, but as

         21  residents, in all buildings where there are bars and

         22  restaurants, smoke travels. We live above a bar, our

         23  apartment is like walking into the bar.

         24                 We put our heads on the pillow, we

         25  smell smoke.
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          2                 We can't get away from it. We have

          3  smoke machines in our house to take the smell out.

          4  It doesn't work. In the bar they have smoke eaters,

          5  and there's been a lot of discussion about these

          6  machines and how powerful and wonderful they are.

          7  They don't work.

          8                 The people who own the bar spent a

          9  lot of money on these machines. They don't work. We

         10  walk into our lobby of our building and smoke is

         11  coming through the walls.

         12                 I know also I'm sympathetic to people

         13  who live in the same sort of areas and their fears

         14  about what it's going to do to their quality of

         15  life.

         16                 Luckily Mayor Bloomberg is addressing

         17  those issues now with further legislation about

         18  noise, and about quality of life issues in general.

         19                 So, while he hasn't handled this

         20  issue beautifully, hopefully he'll handle all of

         21  those issues in total in a conceptual way that will

         22  address those issues that I think the people who

         23  spoke here were very reasonably concerned with.

         24                 And as far as small businesses losing

         25  business, I care very much about that. I'm a New
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          2  Yorker. I was born here, raised here, and every time

          3  a small business goes away, it's a piece of me that

          4  I'm losing in this City, and I don't know what the

          5  outcome of this will be. Maybe these bars will lose

          6  some business in the first few months. I have no

          7  idea. But I think that if there's a real impact, and

          8  I can't believe that suddenly people will stop going

          9  to bars and restaurants, but if there is a real

         10  impact I think that the issue should be revisited in

         11  a year and see, are the businesses, are the small

         12  businesses suffering? And if they are, then perhaps

         13  something can be done.

         14                 But I think we should give this a

         15  try, this is a really important issue. We're going

         16  to be teaching the young people who go out to bars

         17  that it isn't good for them to smoke, that even

         18  though their friends are smoking, even though there

         19  are other people in the bar smoking, that in fact

         20  it's not a really smart idea for them. This is when

         21  they're going to form their habits for life, and if

         22  they start smoking, it's very, very difficult to

         23  stop. So, it's going to have a very powerful

         24  economic effect on this City all around. Because if

         25  we can save dollars on health care, we're going to
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          2  be able to safe the City economically in a larger

          3  way.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you all very

          6  much.

          7                 Alex Stavis. Peter Koo. Frank Cvervo,

          8  and they'll be followed by Sarah Velez, Carrie Lu

          9  and Albert Hsu.

         10                 And those three folks will be

         11  followed by Phil Konigsberg, Alison Jolicoeur, and

         12  Beatrice Dupont. Those are the other names that I

         13  called, the people who signed up when I called their

         14  names they weren't in the room, so if for some

         15  reason you are now in the room and you want to

         16  testify and you had signed up, please see the

         17  Sergeant and let him know that you have returned,

         18  otherwise these nine folks will be our last

         19  witnesses.

         20                 Okay, go ahead, in whatever order you

         21  want.

         22                 MR. STAVIS: Good afternoon,

         23  Councilman, Councilwoman Quinn. Thank you for giving

         24  me the opportunity to speak. My name is Alex Stavis.

         25  Thank you also for giving us the late hour, and
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          2  second time.

          3                 I work full-time as an environmental

          4  health and safety engineer. I, and I'm sure a lot of

          5  others who could not make it, implore you to pass

          6  Intro. 256 as it stands now, i.e., with no

          7  amendments and/or exemptions for a number of

          8  reasons.

          9                 Tobacco smoke is a class A

         10  carcinogen. Some of the other, the eight elements of

         11  the eight things that are classified as class A

         12  carcinogens are asbestos, benzene, beryllium and

         13  arsenic. It is the equivalent of allowing people to

         14  be exposed to arsenic, benzene, beryllium and/or

         15  asbestos. That's what we have, the time has come to

         16  stop it.

         17                 We heard before about these air

         18  cleaning machines.

         19                 As an engineer and as someone like

         20  you, and a lot of other people who have a brain

         21  here, we know that cleaning machines don't work. I

         22  submit to you, either your automobile and/or your

         23  refrigerator, they may both make a little noise, or

         24  any other piece of equipment, but we say, hey, it

         25  doesn't bother us, and we let it go until it stops.
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          2  Unfortunately, when it's not working properly, which

          3  is often, and it may be turned off and on a lot,

          4  even if someone isn't aware of it, the result is

          5  that people's health suffer.

          6                 Next, if we allow exemptions, we are

          7  taking out the premise of the government of the law

          8  which says equal protection for all, we are making

          9  some people set classes.

         10                 I don't think any of us want to be,

         11  any of you or your colleagues want to be in that

         12  position.

         13                 Next, it's a cost to owners for their

         14  health care. The cost is higher for people who don't

         15  have, or wind up going to the hospital.

         16                 Also, an example of the health cost,

         17  $300 for an ambulance, $300 for emergency room visit

         18  roughly.

         19                 Additionally, an example, not

         20  including the time of lost work and the other time

         21  costs, a friend of mine who is exposed to cigarette

         22  smoke once in a bar winds up with bronchitis so bad,

         23  she winds up on a course of antibiotics and has loss

         24  time at the job, loss of revenue, from the

         25  multiplier effect and all, true it does run
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          2  pharmaceutical bills and doctors.

          3                 I often can't go out to a place

          4  because of smoking. It's one of the first questions

          5  I have to ask because I have an allergy to smoke. I

          6  say to people, if you're going, you're going without

          7  me.

          8                 About 20 years later, it maybe now

          9  has become the time, it should have been before, but

         10  maybe now is the time that we begin to look after

         11  the next generation so they can take care of us when

         12  we are older.

         13                 It's a lot cheaper to prevent a

         14  problem than clean it up.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Can you sum up,

         16  please?

         17                 MR. STAVIS: Yes.

         18                 An example being PCBs and look what

         19  it's going to cost to clean it up, versus what it

         20  would have cost had we not had it.

         21                 Thank you for your time.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         23                 MR. STAVIS: And I hope you pass the

         24  law as is, with no exemptions or alterations or

         25  anything else.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          3                 Go ahead.

          4                 MR. KOO: Good afternoon. I have a

          5  long day myself, I came here since 9:30. My name is

          6  Peter Koo. I'm a board member of Flushing Chinese

          7  Business Association, and I'm also honorable member

          8  of American Cancer Society at the Chinese Unit.

          9                 I have been a community pharmacist

         10  for the last 25 years. I'm here to support the

         11  passing of this bill for secondhand, banning

         12  secondhand smoking.

         13                 We all know smoking, and secondhand

         14  smoking are no good. I mean after a whole day of

         15  hearing everybody's expertise, we should know about

         16  it already.

         17                 I also, because I'm a pharmacist, I

         18  cannot think of a single reason for smoking or

         19  secondhand smoking.

         20                 Smoking is what you can choose, but

         21  secondhand smoking you cannot choose. If you are

         22  there, somebody else smoking, you cannot just say,

         23  you cannot tell other people about smoking because

         24  there's no such law yet.

         25                 As a family, I always take my family
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          2  out to eat, even though I pick a nonsmoking section,

          3  and after awhile my daughter always complain about

          4  the smoke from the surrounding areas coming through,

          5  and then they have tears in their eyes and sneezing.

          6                 And we should know that 90 percent of

          7  children who grew up in smokers' houses, they

          8  develop some kind of asthma problem. And asthma

          9  alone costs America billions of dollars in terms of

         10  medication, hospital stays and the time lost when

         11  their parents have to take off from work to take

         12  care of them, to go to see doctors, et cetera.

         13                 Smoking also cause a lot of other

         14  cancers, lung cancer, oral cancer, and it also

         15  decreases your oxygen in your body and lung

         16  functions.

         17                 There are so many bad side effects of

         18  smoking, and secondhand smoking, why should we not

         19  pass a law to stop it? We know we have laws against

         20  DWI, like when you drink and drive, against law, so

         21  we should have a law about -- we shouldn't say

         22  illegal, but smoking intoxication.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         25                 MR. CVERVO: Yes, good afternoon.
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          2                 My name is Frank Cvervo. I live in

          3  Chelsea. I've been living in New York for a very

          4  long time. I don't go out because I hate cigarette

          5  smoke. I cannot live around cigarette smoke. I go

          6  out to a club and dance for 15 minutes, then I get

          7  sick, so I have to leave. I stand near air

          8  conditioners and they don't help.

          9                 People complain about their rights to

         10  smoke, I complain about my right to breathe, and I

         11  think it's unfair that I cannot go out.

         12                 People say, well, I want to go drink

         13  and have a good time, I say, well, have fun, because

         14  I cannot sit there and watch people puff this

         15  horrible smoke into my face.

         16                 Everyone complains about the noise

         17  outside their restaurant, in case these people go

         18  out to smoke, but we're talking about life, we're

         19  talking about oxygen. We're not talking about money,

         20  even know everybody talks about money, they're all

         21  thinking about their business, their money, their

         22  lives, their mortgage; what about my right to

         23  breathe? That's all I want to do, I want to breathe

         24  and drink water. I'm not worried about the money,

         25  and everybody is worried about money. And I think
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          2  it's really sad to sit here and watch all these very

          3  educated people talk about how much money they're

          4  going to lose, what about people's regular health,

          5  oxygen and right to live as a human being in this

          6  world? And no one is really giving any care to that.

          7  They just care about their money and their business

          8  - my small family fortune. Well, guess what, son?

          9  If your family fortune is killing thousands of

         10  people, your business should not exist. And I think

         11  they should be recording this. Here I am, there's

         12  only 15 people, 20 people left, what am I saying? No

         13  one is listening. You're not recording this, what

         14  about the rest of the community people.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Actually, you

         16  should know the entire proceeding is being taped.

         17                 MR. CVERVO: Wonderful. Thank you very

         18  much for putting me at ease.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And as I said

         20  earlier, we will of course submit a full transcript

         21  to the Department of Health.

         22                 MR. CVERVO: Wonderful.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You may not have

         24  been here then, but we used to have stenographers,

         25  we don't anymore, we have it taped. And also,
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          2  Crosswalks has been taping the entire hearing so it

          3  will get played on television. You might have to

          4  really be an insomniac to see all of that, say hello

          5  to all those insomniacs out there.

          6                 MR. CVERVO: Thank you very much for

          7  clarifying that, because I was feeling quite cheated

          8  to sit here and talk about this and no one would be

          9  listening.

         10                 But honestly, my concern is my health

         11  and other people's health. And you know what? Maybe

         12  some people will lose money, but, you know, let's

         13  think about our lives, let's think about our health

         14  and the children that are coming after us. And I'll

         15  never have children but that's something we think we

         16  should think about. And thank you very much for your

         17  time.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         19                 If the folks could just hang on who I

         20  called because we're going to have, before we go to

         21  the other six in support, there's an additional

         22  witness in opposition who signed up. So, thank you

         23  all very much.

         24                 And it's Jay Schrand I believe is now

         25  going to testify, and then after Mr. Schrand there
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          2  will be Sara Velez, Carrie Lu and Albert Hsu. Thank

          3  you.

          4                 Ma'am, before you we're just going to

          5  have one witness in opposition. If you can just wait

          6  in the front row, it will be three minutes,

          7  actually, give or take.

          8                 MR. SCHRAND: My name is J.R. Schrand,

          9  I'm a systems engineer, I'm a graduate of

         10  statistics, an older graduate of statistics student

         11  at George Mason University of Virginia. I'm a

         12  Virginia resident. I do come up here very frequently

         13  to visit but mostly I'm here to speak on behalf of

         14  people who smoke.

         15                 We're looking for better solutions

         16  all the way around. I'm especially concerned about

         17  veterans. I've tried to get in touch with the

         18  veterans in this area. I've made an attempt to try

         19  to get a hold of the right people, and I haven't

         20  heard back from them. I'm not sure they've had an

         21  opportunity to speak or not. I haven't heard any

         22  feedback.

         23                 I'm also concerned whether --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Just so you know,

         25  I'm sorry, I'll stop the clock. But my office has
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          2  called out to numerous VFW halls, American Legions,

          3  Elk, Knights of Columbus, we now know more than we

          4  ever thought we would about all those

          5  establishments, none of them have seemed to want to

          6  come and testify. We have proactively reached out to

          7  folks. You were very helpful in getting us some of

          8  those numbers. If you have other contacts, you know,

          9  please let the staff know. We would have actually

         10  liked to have them testify, though we have had

         11  extensive conversations with those folks, and

         12  understand which of those establishments have

         13  employees, which ones don't.

         14                 MR. SCHRAND: Right, that's a big

         15  issue. Where I'm from there are all employees, you

         16  know, they're wonderful people, to stand in the bar,

         17  serve drinks, they would not do it for free unless

         18  it was a couple of hours a week, that sort of thing.

         19  And I'm honestly not sure how it is up here.

         20                 The other issue is the Bingo halls,

         21  and how many there are. I know there's at least one,

         22  and I don't know how many others there are.

         23                 The other issue, you know, I am very

         24  concerned about allowing alcohol use without tobacco

         25  use. There is a relationship there, and I've
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          2  submitted some information, and I hope the Council

          3  looks at it very closely. There is some evidence

          4  that nicotine is being used to modulate with the

          5  more harmful effects of alcohol, and this is why,

          6  you know, people who drink alcohol do tend to smoke

          7  at the same time. Forcing these people outside would

          8  either force the alcohol outside, to smoke while

          9  they're doing that, or other areas, or forcing to

         10  stay home, or to go to other areas, if you will,

         11  different states or what have you.

         12                 And I think that would be a shame. We

         13  do have bars right now where it's a place where you

         14  can go to socialize, it's helpful for people to do

         15  that, and we do tend to smoke and drink alcohol at

         16  the same time, hopefully in moderation, of course.

         17                 I would like this looked into. I

         18  think we really need to find out what's going to

         19  happen. I worry about the smokers if they end up

         20  having to run outside and smoke out there and raise

         21  noise level in the community. We don't want to do

         22  that, we feel the proper place for that is in the

         23  bars.

         24                 As far as protecting the workers, and

         25  I have to agree the Smoke Eaters, and that's a brand
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          2  name, it's the electronic air cleaning industry,

          3  that does help, but really it does not do the job as

          4  well as ventilation does. Ventilation does work.

          5  They use that successfully in Las Vegas. They are in

          6  the business of catering to people who gamble, drink

          7  and smoke, and there are a few people that don't

          8  smoke that still want to come and gamble. They don't

          9  even notice the difference, that you can stand right

         10  next to a person who is smoking there, you can't

         11  tell they're smoking, they take the exhaust, the ETS

         12  out very easily.

         13                 It is possibly expensive, but these

         14  are choices, choices as to whether to lose

         15  essentially the smoker's business in a bar and have

         16  him go elsewhere, or you know find some other means,

         17  and I can only recommend looking into ventilation.

         18                 Thank you very much for your time.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. And

         20  thanks again for your help with the numbers and

         21  stuff.

         22                 Sara, Carrie and Albert, please. And

         23  they'll be followed by Phil Konigsberg, Alison

         24  Jolicoeur and Beatrice Dupont. And those three will

         25  be the final witnesses.
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          2                 Again, if somebody I called and you

          3  were out, if you've come back, please let the

          4  Sergeant know. You should speak to the Sergeant if

          5  your name hasn't been called, okay?

          6                 Whatever order you'd like to go in,

          7  please. If you just will step over there, Peter, the

          8  Sergeant will work with finding your name. Thank

          9  you.

         10                 Go right ahead.

         11                 MR. HSU: Thank you for the

         12  opportunity to address you. My name is Albert Hsu,

         13  and I'm a medical student in the Bronx.

         14                 As a member of the medical society of

         15  the State of New York Task Force on Tobacco, and the

         16  Asian Pacific American Medical Student Association

         17  Physician Advisory Board, I urge the City Council to

         18  pass Intro. 256 without compromise.

         19                 I have been asked to read testimony

         20  on behalf of a fellow medical student. His name is

         21  Stephan Samuelson and he's a 29-year-old medical

         22  student at Columbia College of Physicians and

         23  Surgeons.

         24                 On behalf of Stephan:"I worked four

         25  years as a bartender in Miami Beach just prior to
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          2  coming to med school, most recently at Crobar,

          3  Miami. Prior to bartending, which I did four nights

          4  a week for around nine hours per shift, I had been

          5  pursuing a career in musical theater. I  mention

          6  this because I was especially aware of the state of

          7  my voice and my lungs. The clubs in Miami all allow

          8  smoking, as do the clubs in New York City.

          9                 Soon into my bartending career, I

         10  developed chronic respiratory problems: nagging

         11  cough unrelated to any specific ailment, aggravation

         12  of mild asthma that hadn't reappeared since I was a

         13  child, repeated respiratory infections and the like.

         14                 The amount of smoke I was exposed to,

         15  even as a staunch nonsmoker, was exorbitant. Anyone

         16  who has gone to a nightclub in which smoking is

         17  allowed has noted the strong smell of smoke, gets

         18  into the hair and clothes.

         19                 For four years you would think I was

         20  a two-pack-a-day smoker, judging by the odor that

         21  seemed to emanate from my skin. There was absolutely

         22  no way to escape this exposure. Even the club

         23  provided ventilation, the share volume smoke that

         24  came at me constantly from customers and employees

         25  alike overwhelmed any efforts to filter it.
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          2                 I didn't really have any other

          3  options for employment, because as a full-time

          4  student, my time available to work a day job was

          5  severely limited.

          6                 After all that exposure to smoke, my

          7  voice has currently changed, I've developed a bit of

          8  a smoker's rasp, and I still have not completely

          9  kicked the respiratory problems that I developed.

         10                 As a medical student I have seen

         11  firsthand the effects of smoking on the human lung.

         12  I cringe of the thought of what my own

         13  permanently-blackened lungs must look like.

         14                 I always prided myself on excellent

         15  physical health and a clean lifestyle before working

         16  in the club. It's very unfortunate that I had to

         17  sacrifice some of that in order to make a living.

         18                 I would definitely be more inclined

         19  to patronize establishments that did not permit

         20  smoking. More often than not I have decided not to

         21  do so simply because I didn't want to be forced to

         22  endure someone else's smoking habits.

         23                 As far as working in a nightclub

         24  again, forget it. I'm an excellent bartender and I

         25  know I could support myself even with the limited
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          2  schedule of a med student, but I am afraid to damage

          3  my health any further by working amidst the

          4  cigarette smoke."

          5                 That is the end of Stephan's

          6  testimony. I would like to close by saying that

          7  dozens of my medical student friends care very much

          8  about this issue, but because of classes, exams and

          9  clinical rotations they could not be here to provide

         10  their own testimony.

         11                 As my buddy Scott says, I like to

         12  breathe, I think I'm pretty good at it, and I hope

         13  that you pass this bill so I can start going out

         14  again.

         15                 On behalf of all of my friends, I

         16  strongly encourage you and the City Council to pass

         17  Intro. 256 without amendments, without compromise

         18  and without exemptions, for we should not compromise

         19  on the health of New Yorkers.

         20                 Thank you for your time.

         21                 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Hello. My name is

         22  Nancy Rodriguez, and I'm actually reading this on

         23  the behalf of Sara Velez. She would have loved to be

         24  here but due to her employment she cannot be here at

         25  this time to read this herself. So I'll go ahead and
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          2  read it in the first person as she indicated in

          3  Spanish, and I will go ahead and translate it.

          4                 "I was working in a restaurant as a

          5  coat checker. It is a small site frequented by many

          6  smokers. The entrance to the restaurant was filled

          7  with individuals sipping their drinks along with the

          8  cigarette, but what about people like me who are

          9  there every day due to our employment?

         10                 I left my job because I could not

         11  stand the smoke. It was not uncommon for a client to

         12  blatantly light a cigarette in front of me as I

         13  search for their coats.

         14                 I am not sure if there is great

         15  coincidence, but at the time that I had this

         16  employment, I was diagnosed with a pneumonia.

         17  Cigarettes cost me my job.

         18                 I left my job because I could not

         19  continue to work in a smoking environment. The

         20  cigarette smoke would stay on my clothing until my

         21  children began to ask me if I actually smoked.

         22                 I ask you to please support this

         23  fight to ban smoking in all employment settings, as

         24  well as for my rights and for my children, that they

         25  do not have to be exposed to secondhand smoke. Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 MS. LU: Hello. Hi, everyone. My name

          4  is Carrie. Thank you for also giving me this

          5  opportunity to speak in the public.

          6                 I am a nonsmoker, and I support

          7  having a smoke-free workplace because we all know

          8  that the nonsmokers exposed to secondhand smoke in

          9  the workplace have a high risk of lung cancer.

         10                 Think of many nonsmokers, they could

         11  be your family, relative or friends. Many of them

         12  are exposed to the secondhand smoke in their

         13  workplace and have a high risk of cancer. Many of my

         14  friends and relatives have told me they have a nice

         15  shop, but the place they work, people smoke makes

         16  them have a difficult time breathing, or drying

         17  eyes, or throat itchy.

         18                 They have no choice because they need

         19  their job earning for a living.

         20                 We all love our families, friends and

         21  relatives. Please be concerned about their health.

         22  We don't want them to be long-term exposed to the

         23  secondhand smoke in their workplace and have a high

         24  risk of cancer.

         25                 I hope everyone can support the act
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          2  of having smoke-free in workplace.

          3                 The smoker can smoke at their house

          4  or go outside whenever they finish their cigarette

          5  and then come back, enjoy their meal, or after they

          6  smoke they could come back for their work, but

          7  please don't force us to become a secondhand smoker.

          8                 We all know the air pollution

          9  increase over the years. Every day we go outside we

         10  inhale the pollution air from the buses, cars and

         11  smoke from the smoker. The worst thing is even when

         12  we go into a market store or office, we still inhale

         13  the smoke from the smoker. I become a secondhand

         14  smoker.

         15                 We need more fresh air. We need your

         16  support to have a smoke-free in workplace. Your

         17  support will give us a better environment to live.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 Phil Konigsberg, Alison Jolicoeur,

         22  Beatric Dupont, please.

         23                 Then there's going to be two more

         24  witnesses after that, and those will be the final

         25  two.
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          2                 After that will be Geoff Geringer and

          3  Candida Bido, please.

          4                 Okay, you guys please go in whatever

          5  order you want.

          6                 MR. KONIGSBERG: Hello, again. My name

          7  is Phil Konigsberg, and I'm a member of Community

          8  Board 7, Queens, and a member of Smoke Free

          9  Educational Services.

         10                 I've heard Joe Cherner's name

         11  mentioned a couple of times today, and I'm sure

         12  you're aware he's out of the country, otherwise he

         13  would be here testifying.

         14                 At the October 10th hearing, the New

         15  York Nightlife Association advised the Health

         16  Committee that it would be contacting all 51

         17  community boards in New York City, to pass

         18  resolutions against 256, Intro. 256. That effort

         19  does not seem to have transpired.

         20                 In fact, there's actually a stronger

         21  effort being undertaken to have community boards

         22  around the five boroughs pass resolutions endorsing

         23  the Smoke-Free Air Act.

         24                 Most communities recognize Intro. 256

         25  is a health issue, and will also improve the quality
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          2  of life of all workers in their neighborhoods, a law

          3  to allow someone to breathe clean air I take as an

          4  improvement of a quality of life.

          5                 As I mentioned, I'm a member of

          6  Community Board 7 in Queens. On December 9th, our

          7  Board will vote on a resolution that I submitted to

          8  endorse, Intro. 256.

          9                 I hope that I can count on a former

         10  fellow community board member, Community Board 7

         11  member, and currently Council Member from the 20th

         12  district John Liu to support the bill.

         13                 Councilman Liu recently held a town

         14  hall meeting in downtown Flushing on Intro. 256,

         15  which was well attended. Over 40 speakers testified

         16  and all but one, all but one endorsed the bill.

         17                 That is a significant statement from

         18  a community to its representative and should make

         19  the vote easy for Councilman Liu to make.

         20                 Councilman Liu, if you can hear this,

         21  please take heed of it.

         22                 I am also counting on my Council

         23  Member Tony Avella from the 19th District to support

         24  the bill as written.

         25                 In closing, we need to pass Intro.
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          2  256 the way it reads without any amendment.

          3                 As a veteran to these hearings, we

          4  have all heard the fears of financial gloom and doom

          5  and an exodus of businesses if additional smoke

          6  restrictions are passed.

          7                 All of these fears perpetuated by the

          8  tobacco industry or their pawns were proven to be

          9  just a smoke screen in an attempt to keep the

         10  tobacco sales from declining.

         11                 Nassau County's Smoke-Free Workplace

         12  Act goes into effect March 1st. Let's send the bill

         13  to the full Council and pass it, so we can join our

         14  eastern neighbor and send a strong message to Albany

         15  that a strong statewide bill is needed as well.

         16                 I just want to point out one thing

         17  which wasn't mentioned, that the owners should

         18  consider workers compensation claims that have

         19  already been passed and awarded in Canada, and

         20  that's something you really should consider, if

         21  there's any bar owners or establishments here.

         22                 You might have some problems with

         23  your employees on workers' comp claims.

         24                 Thanks very much.

         25                 MS. DUPONT: Hello. My name is
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          2  Beatrice Dupont. I am a nonsmoker. I spoke a couple

          3  of weeks ago at the last hearing, but I thought it

          4  was important that I speak again.

          5                 I worked at a law firm for two years

          6  where they allowed smoking by some of the lawyers.

          7  The support staff had to smoke in the street.

          8                 As a result of this, I developed a

          9  condition known as "multiple chemical sensitivity,"

         10  wherein I have become hypersensitive to any kind of

         11  noxious fumes, including pollution, of course,

         12  secondhand smoke, cleansing liquids, chemical

         13  sprays. As a result of that, inhalation of any of

         14  these things causes me to have heart problems, my

         15  blood pressure goes up, and I become very ill, I

         16  have chronic bronchitis, asthma, a number of health

         17  problems, and I'm now on Social Security disability.

         18                 This is something that can happen to

         19  anyone who is exposed to secondhand smoke. I have to

         20  walk with a mask in the street, the blue surgical

         21  mask and I have to cover it with a thick washcloth

         22  to prevent myself inhaling any exhaust fumes from

         23  the cars. I become very dizzy, fatigued, develop

         24  problems with my joints, a host of things.

         25                 So, I hope that this information will

                                                            328

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  alert people to a problem that anyone could develop,

          3  and that you would go ahead and pass Intro. 256, so

          4  as not to expose other people to this type of health

          5  problem.

          6                 MS. JOLICOEUR: Hi. My name is Alison

          7  Jolicoeur, and I don't want to reiterate a lot of

          8  the things that have already been said, but I just

          9  wanted to say that, first of all, I think it's

         10  ridiculous to tell me that I should go and get

         11  another job because of the smoke that I have to

         12  encounter.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Are you a waitress

         14  or a bartender?

         15                 MS. JOLICOEUR: I'm sorry. Yes, I am a

         16  bartender, and I have been there for five years.

         17  When I first started I was 18 years old and I was a

         18  smoker myself, and, no, actually I didn't know what

         19  I was getting myself into, and after working a

         20  ten-hour shift, I have told you about the effects on

         21  my health and how it affects my lungs and I'm

         22  coughing and I have to not work the next day because

         23  of the effect. It takes a whole day to recover.

         24                 I just wanted to address some of the

         25  issues that I know are some of the oppositions
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          2  issues.

          3                 I just want to reiterate that your

          4  right to smoke ends when my rights begin and I have

          5  to inhale that secondhand smoke. I think it's pretty

          6  much common sense. And I think it's funny that these

          7  people say that people are going to go outside and

          8  smoke and cause a big ruckus, I think that's kind of

          9  offensive to say that people are going to be so

         10  uncivil. You know, I mean, it takes two minutes to

         11  smoke a cigarette, I think that people want to be

         12  inside where their friends are, where the music is,

         13  where the party is, I think, you know, look at

         14  today, it's going to be winter, it's not nice

         15  outside, people are going to go outside for their

         16  two minutes and go back inside.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: It's not nice

         18  outside now? It's so nice in here in this room.

         19                 MS. JOLICOEUR: It's not nice outside,

         20  and I think that these hypothetical situations are

         21  not as important as the facts and the facts are that

         22  the smoke, the facts are the people that work there,

         23  the facts of people that go into these

         24  establishments, and I think the most important thing

         25  is to pass Intro. 256 the way it's written, because
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          2  when you start making exemptions, you take away the

          3  key to success which is to have a level playing

          4  field. If it's the same everywhere people are still

          5  going to go out, they want to have their nightlife,

          6  they want to have their social life, and if they

          7  don't have a choice they're going to go out and do

          8  what they can and have fun where they can. And I

          9  think that change is constant in this world and that

         10  society evolves and that people will adapt to these

         11  changes and that at least is worth a shot.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         14                 If we can hear from Geoff and

         15  Candida. Those are the final witnesses for this

         16  evening.

         17                 MR. GERINGER: Ready?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure. Go ahead.

         19                 MS. GERINGER: Hi. My name is Geoff

         20  Geringer, and I want to make a few quick points.

         21                 First of all, it's clear from this

         22  hearing, there's no question that smoke even to

         23  nonsmokers is dangerous and lethal.

         24                 Two, the scope of these hearings is

         25  not whether we have the power to regulate the
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          2  smoking, but how far we should go. So, we've

          3  established, one, that there's a harm, and two that

          4  the City has the power to prevent that harm.

          5                 Therefore, I think the third thing

          6  that I haven't heard mentioned is liability. We're

          7  setting ourselves up as a City and in a community

          8  with tons of lawsuits of billions of dollars.

          9                 Fifteen years ago they said tobacco

         10  companies wouldn't lose lawsuits to smokers. They

         11  were wrong. They're losing. And I think that if we

         12  don't regulate this harm, showing that we have the

         13  power to do so, we're setting ourselves up for big

         14  bucks, you know, by people harmed by this smoke.

         15                 I also want to talk about the money

         16  issue. Yes, there's some people that are going to

         17  lose money, and you know something? This is a money

         18  issue about taking money from the many and giving it

         19  to the few.

         20                 I read in the Post on Sunday, I think

         21  it was the Post, that a hospital bed in the City

         22  costs $6,000 a night. Well, we don't have the money

         23  for the health care costs that are caused by

         24  smoking, harms to nonsmokers.

         25                 And, so, the money that bar owners
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          2  and restaurant owners that don't care about their

          3  patrons will lose will be more than made up by the

          4  rest of us in health care costs.

          5                 And to show you what we're dealing

          6  with, tobacco advocates say, well, it's not so bad

          7  because some of these people will die so they won't

          8  have health care costs, but they'll still have acute

          9  medical costs before they die, and they'll leave

         10  families that they were supporting and some of these

         11  people that were exposed to smoke will have to be

         12  replaced in their job.

         13                 You know, I think that our studies

         14  show about 70 percent of the population are

         15  nonsmokers, so I think that there are a lot of

         16  people like myself, that as much as I could I avoid

         17  smokey places in bars, and I think there's a lot of

         18  money to be made, you know, in nonsmoking places.

         19                 And, you know, we regulated asbestos,

         20  we regulated lead paint, and I think we could do it

         21  with smoke.

         22                 And, finally, I hate to say something

         23  nice about a place that stole our Dodgers and our

         24  Giants, but California has smoke-free bars and

         25  restaurants, and they're doing fine. They have major
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          2  tourist industry, they have Disneyland, San Diego,

          3  LA and San Francisco. They did it; we can do it.

          4  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Not only did they

          6  steal our Dodgers, their state, their World Series

          7  was all about them and not so much us this year,

          8  right?

          9                 MR. GERINGER: I was rooting for the

         10  New York Giants, nationally representative.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, go ahead.

         12                 MS. BIDO: Hi. Good afternoon. I

         13  apologize for coming so late to testify.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That's okay.

         15                 MS. BIDO: But I'm glad that you're

         16  still up and awake and I thank you.

         17                 My name is Candida Bido, and I'm here

         18  testifying today as a resident of the Bronx, because

         19  a lot of people said that there was not a lot of

         20  different people representing the City, and that is

         21  not true.

         22                 I have brought many kids from the

         23  Bronx to your hearing in the last couple of times

         24  that you've been here. Today they're not here

         25  because tomorrow we're having a press conference a
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          2  the steps of City Hall and we'll be preparing for

          3  that on the same issue, on the secondhand smoke, on

          4  the fact that people made smoking seem glamourized

          5  and it's not so. It does kill.

          6                 A lot of people testified here that

          7  the bars and restaurants, they sponsor community

          8  events. Well, they sponsor, they give $1,000 to

          9  different little leagues and whatever, but they take

         10  in 10 million. They're taking a lot more than what

         11  they actually give back to the community.

         12                 The ventilator issue, well, there's

         13  no proof in ventilating system that actually filters

         14  out carcinogens from the air. That's been proven.

         15  You've heard a lot of facts on that.

         16                 On the economic issue. Well, the only

         17  people that are going to be voting in terms of the

         18  economic is going to be the tobacco industry,

         19  because they are the one spending over $9 million to

         20  target our teens and our community to smoke. They're

         21  the only ones. Small businesses get the money from

         22  the small people in the area, and if there's no

         23  smoking they're still going to go out and they're

         24  still going to drink and they're going to still

         25  support them, and they're still going to make money.
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          2  That's why they're there.

          3                 So, it's not true that they're going

          4  to be losing anything economic, it's already been

          5  proven.

          6                 And so once you, and together with

          7  all the different Council people in the Health

          8  Committee pass Intro. 256, our community will be

          9  healthy.

         10                 I know my kids were not here today to

         11  really be here, because I know the school hours have

         12  been increased, and have been given ten more minutes

         13  per period, so it was very difficult for them to

         14  come, and they probably would have been working here

         15  today now, so I apologize for that, but they'll be

         16  here tomorrow and maybe you can join us for a press

         17  conference, okay?

         18                 So, thank you. Please do the right

         19  thing, okay?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Don't

         21  apologize for the folks not being able to be here,

         22  they have been more than well represented on

         23  numerous times on this issue.

         24                 I do know about the press conference

         25  tomorrow. I actually have a conflicting appointment
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          2  with Commissioner Dykstra, so it's possible that I

          3  might be there, but someone from my office will

          4  definitely be there. But thank you for bringing, you

          5  and all the young folks who come to the hearings,

          6  and for all the work that you're doing.

          7                 MR. GERINGER: Can I make one quick

          8  point I forgot?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure. I just think

         10  she wanted to say something.

         11                 MS. BIDO: I just want to make sure

         12  that you know and you remember that for the teens,

         13  it's very important that you help them go into a

         14  smoke-free workplace in the future.

         15                 As you know, they're coming up and

         16  they're going to be voters, you know, you're still

         17  going to be getting people to vote for you, believe

         18  me.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         20                 Yes, sir, you wanted to add

         21  something?

         22                 MR. GERINGER: Yes. I'm sorry, I'm not

         23  even going to us my time, I just have one point I

         24  forgot to make.

         25                 When we walk out today we're going to
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          2  see on all the sidewalks here, there are cut-outs

          3  for wheelchairs, because of laws about people with

          4  disabilities. Well, there are people with

          5  disabilities of asthma, allergies, diabetes, and

          6  people that testified here, like the woman before

          7  me, and I think they have to have an environment

          8  that's hospitable to these people, too, and that

          9  means smoke-free. Because someone said, you can't

         10  have smoking and nonsmoking. Once there's one

         11  cigarette, it's not smoke-free, and you have to

         12  consider disability, as well as the liability.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         14                 Thank you, all. This hearing is

         15  adjourned.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 5:28 p.m.)
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